CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA
1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL
DECEMBER 6, 2010
BUSINESS MEETING
6:30 P.M.

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROCLL CALL/INVOCATION /
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. APPROVE MINUTES: [Council meeting minutes / November 15, 2010
Council Work Session Minutes / November 29, 2010

PUBLIC HEARING:

[I. Amending the Land Use Ordinance / Table of Permitted Uses / Add a bowling alley
land Entertainment Center as a use allowed upon Planning Commission approval in|
fa B-1, Local Business District / Ordinance 2010-69

2. Amending the Land Use Ordinance / Table of Permitted Uses / For the designation
fof a convenience store by right 1n a B-1, Local Business Daistrict, as a use allowed|
upon Planning Commission approval / Ordinance 2010-70)

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES:

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY - Lake
Review minutes / November ﬁ

C. PUBLIC SAFETY - Palumbo

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE - Palumbo

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY - Yelding
Review minutes / October 18ﬁ

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:
A. Board of Zoning Adjustments — Jones
Re-appoint:
a.) Glen Swaney / Term to end May 2013
b.) Willie Robison / Term to end November 2013

=

Downtown Redevelopment Authority — Barnette

Review minutes / November 22{E

. Industrial Development Board — Yelding

. Library Board — Lake

Review minutes / October 7t

Planning Commission — Barnette

Review minutes October 28ﬁ

[I.) Set Public Hearing date for January 3, 2011 to consider]
fa.) KRezome: Plan B Investments|

=N

=

ILocated: Northeast of the intersection of Parker Lane and Whispering Pines Road

[Northwest of Madison Place Subdivision|
IPresent Zoning: R-3, High Density single Family Residential District]
Requested Zoning: R-4, High Density Single Family Residential Distric]
[Recommendation: Recommend Approval / Unanimous
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b.) Rezone: MPWS, LLC
Located: Southwest corner of Lawson Road and County Road 13
Present Zoning: B-1, Local Business District
Requested Zoning: B-2, General Business District
Recommendation: Unfavorable / Eight members present / Seven members
voted in the affirmative and one dissented

F. Recreation Board — Reese
G. Utility Board - Scott

6. REPORTS OF OFFICERS:
A. Mayor’s Report
a.) AIG Baker Development Agreement: Sixth Amendment and Supplement / Resolution 2010-110
b.) MOTION: To execute any documents with CimCo Refrigeration, LLC which are necessary for the
placement and operation of the temporary skating rink at Jubilee Square
B. City Attorney’s Report

C. Department Head Comments
7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES:

RESOLUTIONS:
h.) Street Acceptance / Oldfield Subdivision, Phase One. . .. ... ... ... ... ...... /Resolution 20T10-107
b.) Street Acceptance / Caroline Woods Subdivision, Phase Two A............ /Resolution 2010-10§
€.) Street Accepfance / Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part B .. ... ... ..... /Resolution Z0T0-109
d.) AIG Baker Development Agreement: Sixth Amendment & Supplement. .. .. /Resolution 2010-1T10
ORDINANCES:
2" READ
a.) Hwy 98 Median Engineering/Agreement with ALDOT. . ... ... .. ... ... /Ordinance 2010-69
I READ
b.) Amending the Land Use Ordinance Table of Uses and Conditions /|
[Bowling Alley & Family Entertainment Center. .. .....cccivetieecnncans /Ordinance 2010-69

c.) Amending the Land Use Ordinance Table of Uses and Conditions /|
ConvenIent StOTE. « v oo e vttt eeeoesooesssescssosssesssssssssasssssnns /Ordinance 201070

d.) Fiscal Year 20T Budget. . . . . . .. ... ...cccceeeeeeeeceoeooceccccoeecse /Ordinance 2010-71

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS
10. ADJOURN



CITY OF DAPHNE

CITY COUNCIL MEETING

ROLL CALL
CITY COUNCIL: CALL VOTES
COUNCILMAN YELDING PRESENT__ ABSENT_ __
COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE PRESENT__  ABSENT__
COUNCILMAN LAKE PRESENT__ ABSENT_ __
COUNCILMAN BURNAM PRESENT_ ABSENT_ __
COUNCILMAN SCOTT PRESENT__ ABSENT_ __
COUNCIMAN BOULWARE PRESENT__ ABSENT_ __
COUNCILMAN PALUMBO PRESENT_ ABSENT_ __
MAYOR
MAYOR SMALL PRESENT__ ABSENT_ __
CITY CLERK:
DAVID L. COHEN PRESENT___ ABSENT_
CITY ATTORNEY:
CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS PRESENT__ ABSENT

MINUTE NOTES:




CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MINUTES

NOTES:

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS




NOVEMBER 15, 2010

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
1705 MAIN STREET
DAPHNE, AL

6:30 P.M.

1. CALL TO ORDER
Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

2. ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Invocation was given by Councilman Reese.

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Bailey Yelding left at 7:55 p.m.; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly
Reese; Ron Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo.

Also present: Mayor Small; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross,
City Attorney; James White, Fire Chief; Tonja Young, Library Director; Richard Johnson, Publics Works
Director; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief Kim Briley, Finance Director;
Richard Merchant, Building Official; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; David McKelroy,
Recreation Director; Vickie Hinman, Human Resource Director; Jane Robbins, Mayor’s Assistant;
Battalion Chief Joey Holasz, Fire Department; Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee; Tomasina
Werner, Beautification Committee.

3. APPROVE MINUTES

MOTION BY Councilman Yelding to approve the November 1, 2010 council meeting minutes.
Seconded by Councilman Lake.

AYE ALL IN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve the November 8, 2010 Council Work Session minutes.
Seconded by Councilman Lake.

AYE Lake, Reese, Scott, Boulware, Barnette ABSTAIN Boulware, Palumbo

MOTION CARRIED

PRESENTATION: Scott Hunter / James & Associates
Mr. Hunter gave a presentation on the qualifications of his company to invest money for the city.
PRESENTATION: Kellie Meyers / Arthritis Foundation

Mrs. Meyers presented a list of requests for a post party for the Jingle Bell Run being held December 4,
2010.




NOVEMBER 15, 2010 2
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

1705 MAIN STREET

DAPHNE, AL

6:30 P.M.

Jingle Bell Run being held December 4, 2010:
Permission to use the City Hall lawn

Permission to cook and serve food and adult beverages on site

o 50 B I

(Liability insurance provided with the city as beneficiary)

Permission to have port-o-lets at the event

Permission to have signage along the race route and around the event / Yard signs
Permission to have music and announcements

Permission to have a health fair set up at the event

© %

Seconded by Councilman Scott.

AY E ALLIN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to approve the requests listed below for the Arthritis Foundation’s

Permission to run power from City Hall for the music (DJ) and inflatables in the children’s area

Permission to serve beer at the event pending the Foundation meeting insurance requirements

DISCUSSION: 1-10 SERVICE ROAD
This will be discussed after Public Participation.
Council President Barnette announced that Resolution 2010-104 has been pulled from the agenda.

4. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES:

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE — Boulware
The minutes for the Special Finance meeting held November 1%, and the regular meeting held November
8™ are in the packet.

Treasurers Report / October 31, 2010

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to accept the Treasurers Report as of October 31, 2010 in the
amount of $19,424,148.43. Seconded by Councilman Yelding.

AYE ALL IN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED

Sales & Use Tax / September 30, 2010

Sales and Use Tax Collected for September 2010 -$ 841,035
Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for September 2010 - $_859.320
Under Budget (for September ) -$  (18,285)

YTD Budget Collections Variance — Over Budget - $ 225,965
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Ms. Briley noted that the total collected for FY 2010 is $9,934,178.81 which is $225,965.31 over budget, but
down from FY 2009 collections by $105,368.34.

Lodging Tax Collections, September 30, 2010

The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $52,662.79 collected for September 2010 and $643,461.54 collected
for FY 2010.

The next meeting will be December 13" at 4:00 p.m. in the Executive Conference Room

MOTION: Set Work Session Date

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to set a Work Session date for November 29, 2010 at 6:30 p.m. Seconded
by Councilman Lake.

AYE ALL IN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED

Back to the Finance Report

MOTION: To authorize the Mayor and Finance Director to work with Gardnyr Michael Capital, and
Hand Arendall (legal counsel) to move forward with the restructuring and refunding of the
2002 Warrants

MOTION BY Councilman to authorize the Mayor and Finance Director to work with Gardnyr Michael
Capital, and Hand Arendall (legal counsel) to move forward with the restructuring and refunding of the
2002 Warrants. Seconded by Councilman Scott.

AYE ALL IN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED

B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE - Lake
The committee will have a special called meeting to discuss having alcohol at the Civic Center, and try to find a
solution to the problem.

C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE -
The committee did not meet in November, but the items on the agenda will be carried over to the December
meeting.

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE - Palumbo
The committee did not meet in November, but the items on the agenda will be carried over to the December
meeting.
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E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY - Yelding
Report on projects: the round-about project is almost complete there is just a few things that need to be
finalized, the project around Bayside is finished, and the May Day Boat Ramp is finished, and a new project is
about to begin at Whispering Pines Road from Pollard Road to Highway 98.

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments — Mrs. Jones
No report.

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority — Barnette
No report. The next meeting will be Monday at 5:15 p.m. in the Executive Conference room.

C. Industrial Development Board — Yelding
No report.

D. Library Board — Lake
No report.

E. Planning Commission — Barnette
The minutes for the September 23™ meeting are in the packet.

MOTION BY Councilman Yelding to set a Public Hearing date for December 20, 2010 to consider:

a.) Rezone: Big Sandy / 0.72 acres
Located: Southeast of the intersection of U.S. Highway 98 and Johnson Road
Present Zoning: B-2, General Business
Requested Zoning: R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential District
Planning Commission Recommendation: Unanimous Favorable

b.) Rezone: TDG Lake Forest, LLC /2.92 acres & 3.39 acres
Located: Southeast of Van Buren Street and North Main Street
Present Zoning: B-1, Local Business and R-3, High Density Single Family Residential District
Requested Zoning: R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential District
Planning Commission Recommendation: Unfavorable / Six members present / Five members
voted in the affirmative and one dissented. A supermajority is required for a favorable
recommendation

Seconded by Councilman Scott.

AYE ALL IN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED

F. Recreation Board — Reese
No report.

G. Utility Board — Scott
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The minutes for the August 25™ and September 29" meetings are in the packet. The next meeting will be the
last Wednesday of the month at 5:00 p.m. Councilman Scott reported that Mr. Ross and Mr. Speegle are close
to getting the property issues worked out.

Mr. Ross stated that the proper procedure is to take it to the Buildings and Property Committee first, and then
come to council.

6. REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS:
A. Mayor’s Report
a.) Parade Permit / Apollo’s Mystic Ladies / Mardi Gras / February 25, 2011 / Rain Date March 3,
2011

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve the Parade Permit for Apollo’s Mystic Ladies Mardi Gras /
February 25,2011 / Rain Date March 3, 2011. Seconded by Councilman Yelding.

AYE ALL IN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED

B. City Attorney Report
No report.

C. Department Head Comments
Richard Johnson — Public Works Director — reminded everyone that the holidays are challenging, and that
there would not be any garbage pickup on Thursday or Friday. If a citizen’s garbage pickup day is Thursday or
Friday of next week the garbage pickup would be the Wednesday before Thanksgiving. He said that they had
some complaints regarding Veterans Day.

Councilman Palumbo asked Mr. Johnson if he would get them an update on the delinquent garbage fee
collections.

Vickie Hinman — Human Resource Director — reported that the posting for the Revenue Officer position
closed last Friday, and they have been sent to the Finance Director for review.

David McKelroy — Recreation Director - reported that the Christmas Parade will be December 3™ at 6:30 p.m.,
and the Tree Lighting and Christmas Open House will be at 5:30 p.m. If the Daphne High School Trojans are
into the Super 6 Playoffs then the Christmas Parade would be on December 2™ with approval from council.

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to suspend the rules to consider a motion to approve the Christmas
Parade contingency date of December 2, 2010 in the event that Daphne High School is in the State Finals.
Seconded by Council Palumbo.

ROLL CALL VOTE

Yelding Aye Boulware Aye
Lake Aye Palumbo Aye
Reese Aye Barnette Aye
Scott Aye

AYE ALL IN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED

9
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MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve the Christmas Parade contingency date of December 2, 2010
in the event that Daphne High School is in the State Finals. Seconded by Councilman Yelding.

AYE ALL IN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED

Mr. McKelroy invited everyone to come out the home game where Daphne will be hosting Wetumpka. He also
reported that Daphne basketball starts tonight.

Adrienne Jones — Planning Director — reported that the Planning Commission meets Thursday.

David Cohen — City Clerk — reported that the Industrial Development Board will meet Monday.

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Mpr. Rod Drummond — Ridgewood Drive — spoke regarding of burglaries in the neighborhood, the rash of alarm

companies coming the their homes, the sound system that seems not to be working, the interest rate for the bond
issue, and he asked for a list of the Volunteer Firefighters.

Mpr. John Steadman — TimberCreek — spoke against supporting the I-10 Service Road.

Councilman Palumbo asked that Mr. Steadman’s written comments submitted to him be entered into the record.
(Written comments are spread out upon these minutes.)

Mprs. Tomasina Werner —109 Brentwood Drive — spoke against supporting the I-10 Service Road.

Mr. David Chalk — President of the TimberCreek Home Owners Association - spoke against supporting the I-
10 Service Road.

Mrs. Frieda Romanchuk - 30615 Laurel Court - spoke against supporting the I-10 Service Road.

Mr. Chester McConnell - 8803 Pine Run — spoke against the developments around I-10, because of the storm
water runoff that runs into D’Olive Creek.

Mr. John Davis — 30757 Pine Court — spoke against supporting the I-10 Service Road.
Mpr. Ian Walters — Daphne — spoke against supporting the 1-10 Service Road.

Mpr. Tom O’Hare — TimberCreek — spoke against supporting the I-10 Service Road.

10
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MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo in response to the motion of the current Baldwin County
Commission requesting financial assistance and support to complete the I-10 Service Road
project, the City of Daphne City Council hereby re-affirms the previously adopted Resolution
2010-37 of April 19, 2010 (attached) and does not support financially or in any other way the
construction of this roadway; and further urges that all attempts to build such roadway be
abandoned. Seconded by Councilman Lake.

Councilman Scott requested a brief recess to discuss a legal matter with the City Attorney regarding
his being a county employee, he would like to know if he should recuse himself from the vote.

Council President Barnette said that this is a parliamentary inquiry with the City Attorney, and she
granted the recess.

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to table Mr. Palumbo’s motion, and continue to let the process
go forward so they can look at both sides, because there are conflicting opinions. The folks from
TimberCreek have done a fine job of presenting their argument. As with most attorneys, they
can argue virtually either side of an issue, and he read, for the record, what the other side of the
argument is putting forth:
1.) Improving the environment

a.) Filling in some very high erodible areas

b.) Repairing over 840 linear feet of D’Olive Creek from I-10 to US Hwy 90

¢.) Securing land between I-10 and US Hwy 90 and placing under a Conservation

Easement to permanently allow repair to and control a buffer to D’Olive Creek

d.) Dredging Lake Forest Lake

e.) Providing detention north of I-10
2.) Traffic and Public Safety

a.) Reducing traffic on local roads, US Hwy 90, US Hwy 98, AL Hwy 181,

US Hwy 31 and I-10

b.) Connecting the local shopping complex’s with a lower speed

¢.) Improving Public Safety and roadway system
3.) Dredging will also provide a source of fill material and reduce impacts to local borrow

pits
4.) Provide additional economic benefits to the cities and county
5.) Provide assistance to hurricane evacuation by bypassing the potential I-10 congestion, and

Providing access to the local north bound routes such as AL Hwy 225, Jimmy Faulkner,

etc.

No Second.
MOTION FAILS

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION

AYE Yelding, Lake, Reese, Boulware, Palumbo NAY Scott

MOTION CARRIES

11
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NOTE: Councilman Yelding left at 7:55 p.m.

8. RESOLUTIONS. ORDINANCES., ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS

RESOLUTIONS:

a.) Bid Award: Daphne Fire Department Training Facility /

Ladas Construction ........ccoviiiiiiiiiiiieiienrneneneencnenens /Resolution 2010-99
b.) Bid Award: Civic Center Electronic Signage/Modern Signs........... /Resolution 2010-100
c.) Bid Award: Cellular Telephones/800 MHZ Equipment /

Sprint Solutions, Inc. . ..ottt i i ittt /Resolution 2010-101
d.) Street Acceptance: Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part A /

Fionn Loop. ... oo ittt ittt ittt it ttetenrnnsonsnnns /Resolution 2010-102
e.) Bid Award: Trione Sports Complex Concessions & Bathroom

Facilities . ... ..ottt i i i it ittt iineenennnns /Resolution 2010-103
f.) EPA STAG Grant: Storm Water Structure Inventory Database....... /Resolution 2010-104
g.) Investment Account Manager & Additional Investment............. /Resolution 2010-105

h.) Declaring Certain Property Surplus & Authorize the Mayor
to Dispose of Such Property .........ccitiiiiiiiiiiiiininneennnns /Resolution 2010-106

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolution 2010-99, 2010-100, 2010-
101, 2010-102, 2010-103, 2010-105 and 2010-106. Seconded by Councilman Boulware.

AYE ALL IN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2010-99. Seconded by Councilman
Palumbo.

AYE ALL IN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2010-101. Seconded by Councilman
Palumbo.

AYE Reese, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette NAY Lake

MOTION CARRIED

12
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MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adogt Resolution 2010-100. No second.

MOTION FAILS

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Resolution 2010-102. Seconded by Councilman
Scott.

AYE ALL IN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Resolution 2010-103. Seconded by Councilman
Reese.

AYE ALL IN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED

Resolution 2010-104 was pulled from the agenda earlier in the meeting.

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Resolution 2010-105. Seconded by Councilman Palumbo.

AYE ALL IN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Resolution 2010-106. Seconded by Councilman
Palumbo.

AYE Reese, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette NAY Lake
MOTION CARRIED
ORDINANCES:
I°" READ
a.) Amending Ordinance 2010-56 / Animal Control....................... /Ordinance 2010-67

b.) Hwy 98 Median Engineering/Agreement with ALDOT ................ /Ordinance 2010-68

13
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MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2010-67.
Seconded by Councilman Scott.

ROLL CALL VOTE

Lake Aye Boulware Aye
Reese Aye Palumbo Aye
Scott Aye Barnette Aye
AYE ALL IN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to waive the reading of Ordinance 2010-67. Seconded by
Councilman Scott.

AYE ALL IN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Ordinance 2010-67. Seconded by Councilman Scott.

AYE ALL IN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED

ORDINANCE 2010-68 WAS MADE A FIRST READ.

8. COUNCIL COMMENTS

Councilman Palumbo thanked council for the re-affirmation of the non-support resolution for the I-10
Service Road. He said that city government has spoken twice. He also thanked the citizens for coming
out. He appreciates the councils support. He congratulated the Daphne High School Trojans. There
are three (3) Baldwin County schools at different divisions Daphne, Spanish Fort and Bayside
Academy which are all still in the playoffs. He wished the best of luck to the local teams.

Councilman Boulware recognized all veterans as last week they recognized all veterans on Veterans
Day. Everyone appreciates their service, and those who are on active duty.

Councilman Scott stated that he was able to join the Mayor and others at City Hall for the Veterans
Day Ceremony. He heard Senator Jeff Sessions speak, and it was a great event. He encouraged
everyone to come out for the ceremony next year. He appreciated the folks from TimberCreek coming
out, and he appreciates the professionalism. He said that honest people can have honest
disagreements, and he has no clue whether the road should be built or not, but he did feel like they
should study it, and representing Lake Forest Lake he did not want to miss an opportunity. Council

has spoken so he will move on about life. Sometimes when they have controversial issues it brings out
the best in the community, because the worst thing they fight, not only in Daphne but in the state, is
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apathy, and it is good to see people that want to get involved, and have an opinion about their
community. He thanked them for that.

Councilman Lake encouraged anyone who lives in TimberCreek or Lake Forest that wants to help
get the roads paved to not patronize two gas stations that are not in the city, but receive fire and police
protection. One is at Lawson and Hwy 13, and the other one is the Chevron station by Sam’s.

Councilwoman Barnette thanked the TimberCreek folks for coming out, and said that it is important
to hear from residents. She thinks that they have a resounding support for their concerns, but also as a
council they do have to make sure that the message to the Baldwin County Commission is that they
want to work with them over the next four (4) years as much as possible. Although, this is not
something that they support from the City of Daphne, but the door is open, so to speak, and they need
to maintain a good working relationship with the county. The county did not quite succeed with this
one, but said for them to keep coming, and they will keep looking at projects and decide what is best
for Daphne specific first and foremost, and then what is good for Baldwin County residents. For those
that read the newspaper there have been two sound-offs this week about her direct line to President
Obama, and although she would love to have that because she would be able to bring in more
appropriations for the city, just for the record, she will say that she does not have a direct line to the
President. As for the Baldwin County Watershed Coalition goes she does support the effort, and she
will continue to support the effort whether it is a public corporation or the loose coalition of residents,
cities, environmental groups, businesses, realtors and homebuilders that are trying to address storm
water management throughout the county. Environmental issues continue to be a strong issue, and
they have heard it tonight resonated through the issue of TimberCreek. One reason that she does not
support the I-10 Service Road is because of the environmental impacts and the watershed impacts that
3.21 acres of fill will have, and what potentially opening up that corridor without a concentrated
management plan would do to the City of Daphne. Although she will work on getting the line open to
President Obama, as yet she does not have it. She wished everyone a happy Thanksgiving.

9. ADJOURN

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn. Seconded by Councilman Scott.

AYE ALL IN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED
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There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m.

Respectfully submitted by,

David L. Cohen,
City Clerk, MMC
Certification by Presiding Officer:

Cathy Barnette,
Council President
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Submitted for the record at the November 15, 2010 Council meeting by Councilman Palumbo
Comments made by Mr. John Steadman

Paving and Extension of Woodrow Lane
Comments for Daphne City Council
November 15, 2010

I am Dr. John Steadman, Dean of the College of Engineering at the University of South Alabama
and I appreciate the opportunity to make some comments regarding the proposal by Baldwin
County to build an extension of Woodrow Lane so that the road would connect to a proposed
interchange with I-10 at Highway 13. At the outset, I want to state that I am a resident of Timber
Creek so that you are aware of this fact. The comments that I am making would be the same if |
were a resident of Daphne anywhere, but you should know that I have some additional interest in
this matter because I live in Timber Creek.

The overall project is, in my opinion, ill conceived and should not be funded or completed. I am
certainly not an “environmental activist” by any means, but any responsible citizen and
especially any responsible engineer should look at infrastructure projects with some sensitivity to
environmental impact. Only if the project is actually needed and has substantial benefit should it
be built, and then with serious attention to mitigation of the impact. The proposed road fails this
test. There are already three very good routes connecting the general areas of Eastern Shore,
Jubilee Square, and Bass Pro centers: Highway 181 to U.S. 90 or I-10 or Highway 31. There is
absolutely no need for a fourth parallel route in a span of just a couple of miles. Furthermore,
the proposed road is in a very environmentally sensitive area, specifically impacting Lake Forest
and D’Olive Creek. There is no way that this can be constructed without significant negative
environmental impact, including silting and damage to these wetlands and water resources. With
no need for the road, the conclusion is that this should not be constructed.

I will address three specific aspects of the proposed road: the I-10 interchange, the use of
dredged materials for the roadbed, and the impact on storm water runoff. At the outset, let me
state that [ am an electrical engineer, not civil, environmental, or geotechnical. Thus I have more
than a general lay knowledge of the issues, but am not an expert in these design considerations.
Accordingly, I have consulted with others, such as Dr. Jim Laier and Dr. Kevin White, who are
experts in geotechnical and environmental engineering and my comments are based on those
discussions.

It has been alleged that this road is integral to the plan for an interchange on I-10 at Highway 13,
but this is absolutely false. Mr. Vince Calametti is the Division Engineer for ALDOT
(Mobile/Baldwin/Conecuh/Escambia Counties) and has stated unequivocally that the ALDOT
design does not depend on any connection to a road on the North side of [-10. In fact, he
described building a road as proposed by Baldwin County a “disaster”. The reason for the
“diamond” design was because this is a very sensitive environmental problem and that design
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involves less impact than the “trumpet” design that was considered to provide for a connection to
[-10 from Highway 13. This road should not be approved.

The proposal to use dredge spoil from the lake at Lake Forest as roadbed material is ill
conceived. Dr. Laier has years of experience with these materials, including soil test results. He
notes that one of the main reasons that the lake holds water can be attributed to the low
permeability and clay-like nature of the bottom soils...which are mixed with rubble, trash and
organic debris. Dredging to retrieve Lake Forest soils would be a troublesome and expensive
way to secure base material for roadway construction. Once Mr. Markert was challenged with
this information, he suggested that it could be “mixed with other materials” to make it suitable.
While this could be done, it simply points out that it would be far more expensive than simply
acquiring fill material that is suitable in the first place. Furthermore, it does not address the
environmental issue. The soils at the bottom of the lake have residue from golf course
chemicals, trash, organic chemicals, metals, pesticides, etc. where they are currently trapped in
the clay. When dredged and put on a roadway adjacent to the lake and stream, they will then be
leached and/or eroded by rain water and drain into D’Olive Creek, Mobile Bay, the lake, and the
ground water. This road should not be approved.

Finally, it is inherent that building the road will increase storm water problems (and
infrastructure needs) in this area. The roadway is a large impervious surface that will NOT allow
rainfall infiltration into the ground (infiltration is natural). It will be a long strip of asphalt (or
concrete) approximately 30 feet wide and four miles long. Visualize that area with about five
feet of water, which is the annual rainfall in our area. All that water, much of which can now
percolate into the soil, will run off into sensitive wetlands. During heavy rain, it will be rushing
into the creeks, the bay, and lake, causing erosion along the way and carrying a variety of
hazardous materials with it. And costly infrastructure (storm sewers, etc.) will need to be
constructed and maintained to transport this water. This road should not be approved.

To summarize, this particular project does not fill any pressing need and has significant, severe
environmental consequences. Trying to justify it on the basis of the I-10 interchange or the use
of dredged materials is at least misguided and borders on being intentionally misleading on the
part of the County Commissioners and County Engineer. Based just on these considerations, the
road should not be approved, let alone the many other priorities for the limited funds that are
available.
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NOVEMBER 29, 2010 1
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION

1705 MAIN STREET

DAPHNE, AL

6:30 P.M.

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; Ron Scott; Derek
Boulware; August Palumbo.

ABSENT: Bailey Yelding;

Also present: Mayor Small David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Erick
Bussey, Attorney; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director;
Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Margaret Thigpen; Tonja Young, Library Director; David
McKelroy, Recreation Director; David Carpenter, Police Department; Vickie Hinman, Human
Resource Director; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Captain Scott Taylor, Police Department;
Ed Kirby, Planning Commission.

Absent: James White, Fire Chief; Richard Merchant, Building Official.
Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

1. FY 2011 BUDGET
Council discussed:

Getting a list of contractual positions required by law to fill

Getting projected savings with attrition / Have ordinance in place

Getting potential difference in interest by moving funds to Eagle Management

Discussed freeing up signage difference from failed ordinance for Civic Center

Discussed adding an amount for community contributions into the budget / Put in as an option

N

Councilwoman Barnette said that they would discuss exercising the police jurisdiction at the work
session after it has been to the Public Safety Committee. She also asked the City Clerk to gather the
information for annexing through a Legislative Act. Council President Barnette requested that an
ordinance for adopting the budget be placed on the agenda for the December 6" council meeting.

2. ADJOURN

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8: p.m.

Respectfully submitted by,

David L. Cohen,
City Clerk, MMC
Certification of Presiding Officer:

Cathy S. Barnette,
Council President
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CITY COUNCIL MEETING
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS:

FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE REPORT
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PUBLIC HEARING LIST
FOR COUNCIL MEETING
DECEMBER 6, 2010

TO CONSIDER:

1. Amending the Land Use Ordinance / Table of Permitted Uses / Add a
Bowling Alley and Entertainment Center as a use allowed upon

Planning Commission approval in a B-1, Local Business District /
Ordinance 2010-69

2. Amending the Land Use Ordinance / Table of Permitted Uses / For the
designation of a convenience store by right in a B-1, Local Business

District, as a use allowed upon Planning Commission approval /
Ordinance 2010-70
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To:

From:

Subject:

Date:

Office of the City Clerk

P

MEMORANDUM

Adrienne D. Jones, »
Director of Community Devel

An Amendment to Article XXXV, .k
of Permitted Uses of the Daphne Land Use
Ordinance

September 28, 2010

At the Thursday, September 23, 2010 regular meeting of the
City of Daphne Planning Commission, six members were present
and the motion failed to set forth a favorable recommendation
to amend Article XXXV, the Table of Permitted Uses to add a
bowling alley as a use allowed upon Planning Commission
approval in a B-1, Local Business, zoning district. Four
members voted in the affirmative, one dissented, and one
abstained. Although the majority of those present voted in
favor of the motion, a super majority would have been
necessary for a favorable recommendation.

Upon receipt of said documentation, please prepare an
ordinance and place on the appropriate agenda to set the

public hearing for action by the City Council on Monday,
November 1, 2010.

Thank vyou,
ADJ/Ad
Attachment

1. Copy of Table of Permitted Uses

cc: file
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RESTER AND COLEMAN ENGINEERS, INC.
CONSULTING ENGINEERS - LAND SURVEYORS
66 MIDTOWN PARK WEST- (251)479-4518

MOBILE, AL 36606

City of Daphne

Department of Community Development
P.O. Drawer 400

Daphne, Alabama 36526

Attn: Mrs. Adrienne Jones, Director

Re: Zoning Usage

Dear Sirs & Ladies:

Matt White of MPWS, L.L.C. would like to request an administrative presentation opportunity at
the September 23" Planning Commission meeting. MPWS, L.L.C. would like to ask the planning

commission to consider allowing a bowling alley use under B-1 zoning. This presentation would
accompany the Preliminary/Final plat of Lake Forest Plaza that has been submitted for the same

meeting.

Thank you for your consideration on this matter. If you have any questions or comments, please
feel free to call.

Yours truly,

RESTER & COLEMAN ENGINEERS, INC.

D. JGel Coleman

ic
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ARTICLE XXXV

USE DISTRICT

TABLE OF PERMITTED USES AND
CONDITIONS

R-1

R-2

R-3

R-4

R-5

B-1

B-2

Cn

Accessory buildings and uses, when
located on the same lot or paveel as the
principal structure or use and
customarily incidental therets,
provided the requirements in all
pertinent sections of this Ordinance are
met

Agriculture and related farming
operations, including horticulture, plant
nurseries market gardening, field
crops, orchards, and home gardens

Air Conditioning sales and service

Ambulance/EMS service

Amusement and recreation services:
must be so arranged that noise,
vibration, lights, and all other possible
disturbing aspects are enclosed,
screened or otherwise controlled so that
operation of the establishment will net
unduly interfere with the use and
enjoyment of properties in the
surrounding area:

Amusement Park

Amusement arcade, kiddie land

Archery range

Baseball batting range

Billiard or pool hall

Bowling alley
B w

el

Fairgrounds, circus or carnival

®om R | R R |=

Family Entertainment Center

Golf Course

Golf Course, miniature

Golf, driving range

Racquetball or tennis courts, indoor

Skating rink

Tennis Courts, outdoor; need not be
enclosed within a structure

A - A -

Theater, indoor

=
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To:

From:

Subject:

Date:

Office of the City Clerk
Adrienne D. Jones, ’ ,
Director of Community Developfent
An Amendment to Article XXXV, the Table
of Permitted Uses of the Daphne Land Use
Ordinance

September 28, 2010

MEMORANDUM

At the Thursday, September 23, 2010 regular meeting of the
City of Daphne Planning Commission, six members were present
and the motion carried unanimously to set forth a favorable
recommendation to amend Article XXXV, the Table of Permitted
Uses to include a Family Entertainment Center as a use
allowed upon Planning Commission approval in a B-1,Local
Business, zoning district.

Upon receipt of said documentation, please prepare an
ordinance and place on the appropriate agenda to set the

public hearing for action by the City Council on Monday,
November 1, 2010.

Thank you,
ADJ/Ad
Attachment

1. Copy of Table of Permitted Uses

cc: file
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ARTICLE XXXV

USE DISTRICT

TABLE OF PERMITTED USES AND
CONDITIONS

R-4

R-5

B-1

1

Aceessory buildings and uses, when
located on the same lot or parcel as the
principal structure or use and
customarily incidental thereto,
provided the requivements in all
pertinent sections of this Ordinance are
met

Agriculture and related farming
operations, including horticulture, plant
nurseries market gardening, field
crops, orchards, and home gardens

Air Conditioning sales and service

Ambulance/EMS service

Amusement and recreation services:
must be so arranged that noise,
vibration, lights, and all ether possible
disturbing aspects are enclosed,
screened or otherwise controlled so that
operation of the establishment will not
unduly interfere with the use and
enjoyment of properties in the
surrounding area:

Amusement Park

Amusement arcade, kiddie land

Arvrchery range

Baseball batting range

Billiard or pool hall

Bowling alley

Fairgrounds, circus or carnival

HiRIR R B R

Family Entertainment Center

Golf Course

Golf Course, miniature

Golf, driving range

Racquethall or tennis courts, indoor

Skating rink

Tennis Courts, outdoor; need not be
enclosed within a structure

- - I - T - T - O - I

W IR W IR R

Theater, indoor

=
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Page 1 of 1

Jan Dickson

From: "Adrienne Jones" <ajonesdpin@beilsouth.net>
To: "Jan Dickson™ <jandplcr@bellsouth.net>
Sent: Thursday, September 23, 2010 1:33 PM

Subject: FW: Eastern Shore Family Entertainment Center

From: Gulf Bowl [mailto:gulfbowl@gulftel.com]
Sent: Thursday, September 23, 2010 1:22 PM

To: ajonesdpin@belisouth.net

Subject: Eastern Shore Family Entertainment Center

Adrienne,

| have forwarded several letters to you from residences and coaches who have sent them to me in
support of our Family Entertainment Center for the Eastern Shore.

Just a few concerns going into this meeting that we wanted you and the planning commission to know.
We have already been approved for this loan by USDA and Vision's Bank for this center in Daphne, Al.
One of our major concerns is that our funding with USDA will expire December 31, 2010 and we will
have to start all over again. Not sure we want to go down that road again. The paperwork and the
funding process was very long and detailed.

We also were under the impression that when we signed the contract with White-Spunner it was
already zoned B2. That played a big factor in the selection of this property, so you can imagine the deep
sinking feeling we have knowing that our time is running out on this USDA loan guarantee and the
property being zoned B1 with no bowling centers allowed.

The other concern is the stigma of a "bowling alley” which is not what we are building. That term was
used in the 70's. We are building a Family Entertainment Center that will be "no smoking"” and family
oriented . It will have 24 Brunswick lanes, arcade, laser tag, family restaurant, snack bar, adult pool table
room and party rooms.

it was brought up several times at the site preview meeting about the other property and why we did
not go there. | am sure most of the commission knows that USDA & Vision's Bank would not aliow us to
go thru with that purchase of the property at the Renaissance Center due to the bonds. We are ready to
break ground as soon as we can.

It is really crucial that we get this project off the ground as the funding was a nightmare and will of
course expire soon.

Respectiuily
The Cole Family
251/747-0298 cell
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CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA
ORDINANCE NO. 2010-

Ordinance to Amend the City of Daphne
Land Use and Development Ordinance’s
Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama at its
regular meeting held on September 23, 2010, considered certain proposed
amendments to Article XXXV titled “Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions”, of the City
of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance No. 2002-22, and any amendments
to the same; and,

WHEREAS, after consideration the Planning Commission sent a favorable
recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne for the approval of
amendment to the Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions contained within said Article
XXXV of the City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance to amend the Use
District for a Family Entertainment Center; and,

WHEREAS, after consideration of amendment to said Table of Permitted Uses
and Conditions contained in Article XXXV of said Ordinance the Planning Commission
sent an unfavorable recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne for
amendment to the Use District for Bowling Alley; and

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed amendments has been provided to the
public as required by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public
Library and City Hall, a public hearing was held before the City Council on December 6,
2010; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and
review and consideration of the recommendations, both favorable and unfavorable, of
the Planning Commission, deemed that said amendments to the City of Daphne Land
Use Ordinance, Article XXXV titled “Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions”, is proper
and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City of
Daphne, Alabama; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows:

SECTION I. AMENDMENT

The Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions contained in Article XXXV of the
City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance shall be amended
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( a) to permit “Family Entertainment Center” as a defined Use allowed by
Planning Commission approval in Use District B-1, the below shall be and is hereby
added to the Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions contained in Article XXXV of the
City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance, Ordinance 2002-22 and its
amendments;

(b) to permit a “Bowling Alley” as a defined Use allowed upon Planning
Commission approval in Use District B-1 and by right in Use District B-2, the below
shall be and is hereby added to the Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions contained
in Article XXXV of the City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance,
Ordinance 2002-22 and its amendments;

ARTICLE XXXV USE DISTRICT

TABLE OF PERMITTED USES AND

CONDITIONS R1 | R2|R3 R4 | R5|B1| B2 | B3| Cll
Bowling alley P R

Family Entertainment Center P

All other sections, uses, conditions and/or contents of the Table of Permitted Uses
and Conditions shall remain the same and shall be unchanged by this Ordinance; this
Ordinance is only to amend the “Family Entertainment Center” and “Bowling Alley”
designations.

SECTION IiI: REPEALER.

All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this
Ordinance, in so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed.

SECTION Ili: SEVERABILITY.

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph,
sentence, or part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not
affect or impair the remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain
and enact each provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately
and independently of each other. '

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its
approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and after publication as required by
law.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS day of , 2010.
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ATTEST:

THE CITY OF DAPHNE,

AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION

CATHY S. BARNETTE,
COUNCIL PRESIDENT

FRED SMALL,
MAYOR

DAVID L. COHEN,
CITY CLERK, MMC
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To:
From:

Subject:

Date:

Office of the City Clerk -
Adrienne D. Jones, e “”i?%fA PﬁE;DQCDE{Z%EJ[}IJDﬂ
Director of Community De;e opmeﬁﬁ

An Amendment to Article XKXV the f@ble
of Permitted Uses of the Daphne Land Use
Ordinance o

September 29, 2010

At the Thursday, August 26, 2010 regular meeting of the City
of Daphne Planning Commission, seven members were present and
the motion carried unanimously to set forth a favorable
recommendation to amend Article XXXV, the Table of Permitted
Uses for the designation of a convenience store by right in
a B-1, Local Business, zoning district as a use allowed upon
Planning Commission approval.

Upon receipt of saild documentation, please prepare an
ordinance and place on the appropriate agenda to set the

public hearing for action by the City Council on Monday,
November 1, 2010.

Thank you,
ADJ/Ad
Attachment

1. Copy of Table of Permitted Uses

cc: file
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THE CITY OF DAPHHNE

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2010
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL - 6:00 P.M,

Mr. Diehl: To address Mr. Chason’s questions and/or comments at the work
session regarding the additional runoff directed into the lake from the
development of this site, we have provided a letter from the developer
of the subdivision which is the responsible party for the detention
pond. A copy of this letter has been provided to you. T will be happy
to answer any other guestions you may have.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any questions or
comments? If there is no objection, the Chair will entertain a motion.

A Motion was made by Ms. Barnette and Seconded by Mayor Small to approve
the site plan for the 2" Office Building on Lot A-2, Bellaton
Subdivision, Phase Two. The Motion carried unanimously.

The next order of business under petitions is annexation review for
Richard $. Higbee.

PETITIONS:

ANNEXATION REVIEW:

An introductory presentation was given by Mr. David Diehl, representing
Engineering Development Services. Mr. Chairman, this is a petition for
annexation for twenty acres and later on the agenda there is a
subdivision application that goes along with it. The owner is presenting
a requesting annexation of a nineteen- point eight-eight acre parcel into
the City of Daphne located northwest of the intersection of Whispering
Pines Road and County Road 13 with B-1, Local Business, and B-3,
Professional Business, zoning. The subject property is currently zoned
RSF-2, Residential Single Family District, Baldwin County District 15.
This property is bordered by a Mercy Medical facility to the east,
residential to the west, a school to the south, and the proposed
location of a church to the north. We reviewed the Comprehensive Plan
for the City of Daphne, and the future use map shows this property as
commercial development. Based on the comments made by the Planning
Commission members at the work session, we have made some minor changes
to the zonlng plan by eliminating the request for a B-Z, General
Business, zoning districts. The annexation request will consist of the
request for B-1, Local Business. The residential development and the
proposed location of the church to the north will be buffered by the B-
3, Professional Business, zone.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any dquestions or
comments?

Ms. Rarnette: What are the proposed uses for this property?
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THE CITY CF DAPHNE

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2010
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL - 6:00 P.M,

Mr. Diehl: The area in which we have asked for a B-1, Local Business,
zone will be businesses which provide services to the surrounding
neighborhood and to the school such as a dry cleaner or a sandwich shop.
The B-3, Professional Business, zoning district use speaks for itself.

Ms. Barnette: In the revision to the Daphne Land Use and Development
Ordinance, the method in which an annexation is achieved will be
different. The petition for annexation will be filed initially
requesting R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential. The applicant
would have to apply for rezoning of the property to business which will
give the Planning Commission more time to review the plan and requested
use for the property.

Ms. Phelps: On the corner lot, lot 7, the City of Daphne has plans for
this corner. There should be an inset there.

Mayor Small: That is already done. The City is ready to build it. What
will be the size of the buffer left between the residential and the B-3
zoning?

Mr. Diehl: It will be ten feet which is referenced in your Ordinance.
When we get into the discussion of the B-3 portion of this development,
we can revisit that.

Vice Chairman: Do we allow public participation on an annexation
regquest?

Ms. Dickson: It does not require public participation, but the Chairman
may allow it.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any questions or
comments? The Vice Chairman opened the floor to public participation.

Several adjacent property owners addressed the Commission to express
their concerns regarding the proposed development and how it would
impact their property. The main concerns were whether or not the
owner/developer proposes to construct a convenience and/or filling
station on the property; consideration of a connection with sidewalks
from the middle school to the high school or County Road 13/Whispering
Pines Road to County Road 13/Lawson Road, for children to travel on to
and from the residential areas; to consider the development of the
property as a whole when designing access to the property, landscaping
and maintenance in order to enhance the neighborhood and to control
light and noise pollution; the development of a central location for
detention in order to control the storm water drainage directed onto the
residential subdivisions to the west; the development of a convenience
store near a school zone 1is an attractive nuisance which 1is not
conducive to the character of the neighborhood and creates problems for
the students.

Vice Chairman: If there are no further comments, the Chalr will close

public participation. Do any of the Commissioners have any questions or
comments?
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THE CITY OF DAPHNE

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2010
COURCIL, CHAMBRERS, CITY HALL - 6:00 P.M.

Ms. Barnette: Ms. Jones, I guess I need a clarification of the
difference or definition of convenience store verses a service/filling
station.

Ms. Jones: In the Daphne Land Use Ordinance under Article VIIT,
Definition of Terms, Section 8-2, Words and Terms Defined, the
definitions are as follows: ™ Convenience Store -~ any retail store of
the 7~11, Circle K, or Jr. Food Store variety providing self-service
food, drink, tobacco, automobile fuel and other products for carry-out
consumption, but not including bays, other than drive-through car
washes, for automobile service or repair. Service Station, Automobile -
any building or land used for retail sale and dispensing of automobile
fuels or oils; may furnish supplies, equipment and minor services to
private passenger vehicles incidental to sale and dispensing of
automobile fuels and oils”.

Ms. Phelps: Why aren’t you bringing in this property as R-17?

Ms. Barnette: Because now the Ordinance allows you to specify the zoning
you are requesting.

Mayor Small: Do you have another zoning plan which shows a sketch for
a service road?

Mr. Diehl: No gir.

Ms. Jones: The application for the annexation 1is following past
procedures that have been established.

Mr. Gibson: The proposed zoning plan shows only two lots. Is this meant
for one business to be located on each lot or for the development of
multiple lots?

Mr. Diehl: The property could be developed as either one lot or multiple
lots, but a service road is not proposed on the property.

Ms. Jones: The exhibit shown on display is provided for the purpose of
a representation of the zoning designations being requested by the owner
of the property and not a representation of a lot layout.

Mr. Gibson: Will you keep the location of the pond or will it be
redesigned to accept storm water?

Mr. Diehl: This is a grady pond located on the property. At the time of
the development of the property, a drainage plan for the storm water
design will be provided.

Ms. Phelps: At the time of the development of the property will a six-
foot wide sidewalk is constructed?

Mr. Diehl: The construction of the sidewalk will be the responsible of
the developer.
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THE CITY OF DAPHNE

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2010
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL - 6:00 P.M.

Ms. Barnette: I misunderstood the uses for B-1, Local Business, provided
for in the Table of Permitted Uses. I did not fully understand the
distinction between a convenience store and a gas/filling station. If
a parcel were annexed into the City of Daphne with an R-1 designation
and the property rezoned, it would allow us time to review the Table of
Permitted Uses for the zoning being requested.

Mayor Small: Do you think your client would consider changing his
application?

Mr. Diehl: The owner is not here for me to ask, but I do not think so.
Mayor Small: Can you put a note on the plat restricting that use?
Ms. Barnette: That would be considered contract zoning.

Mr. Richard S. Higbee, the owner and the petitioner for the annexation
into the City of Daphne, arrived at 6:54 p.m.

Mr. Diehl: The owner of the property is here now and has offered to
restrict the use to address your concerns. We will be requesting
preliminary/final plat review later on in the meeting so you can ask
that we add a note to the plat also.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any further questions
or comments? If there 1s no objection, the Chair will entertain a
motion.

A Motion was made by Ms. Barnette and Seconded by Mayor Small for the
affirmative recommendation by the Planning Commission to the City
Council of Daphne to amend Article XXXV, the Table of Permitted Uses in
the Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance, under convenience store
to modify the designation listed for B-1, Local Business, to a P,
requiring Planning Commission approval, rather than an R, by right. The
Motion carried unanimously.

A Motion was made by Ms. Barnette and Seconded by Mr. Lemoine for the
affirmative recommendation by the Planning Commission to the City
Council of Daphne for the annexation review for Richard S. Higbee
located northwest of the intersection of Whispering Pines Road and
County Road 13 with B-1, Local Business, and B-3, Professional Business,
zoning.

An Amended Motion was made by Ms. Barnette and Seconded by Mr. Lemoine
for the affirmative recommendation by the Planning Commission to the
City Council of Daphne for the annexation review for Richard S. Higbee
located northwest of the intersection of Whispering Pines Road and
County Road 13 with B-1, Local Business, and B-3, Professional Business,
zoning. The petitioner/owner of the property has agreed to restrict the
uses on the proposed B-1, Local Business, zoning designation to not
allow the construction of a convenience store. The Motion carried. Mr.
Chason abstained.



ARTICLE XXXV USE BISTRICT
TABLE OF PERMITTED USES AND
CONDITIONS R-1 B2 | R3 | R4 | RS | B1 | B2 | B3 [ CAX
Contractor's storage yard for vehicles,
equipment, materials and supplies;
need not be enclosed within a structure,
but must be enclosed within a selid
fence to screen view; chain link or
similar open fence may be permitted if R R
a screen planting adequate to obstruct
the view is provided
Convenience Store P R
Correctional, detention or penal S S
institution
Dairy equipment sales R R
Dairy products sales R R
Delicatessen R R
Department store R
Dog pound; need not be enclosed within P R
a structure
Drive-in restaurant P
Drug Store
Dry cleaning shop, including self-
service
Dry goods or fabric store R R
Dwelling, one-family R R R R
Dwelling, twe-family
Dwelling, multi-family R
Electric power generating plant S S
Electric power substation; need not be
enclosed within a structure, but must be
secured by a chain link or similar fence,
or raised above ground so as te be
inaccessible to unauthorized persons; P P P P P P P P P
requires visual screen in most districts
Electric repair shop R
Electric Supply Store
Elevator maintenance service R
207
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CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA
ORDINANCE NO. 2010-

Ordinance to Amend the City of Daphne
Land Use and Development Ordinance’s
Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama at its regular
meeting held on August 26, 2010, considered certain proposed amendments to Article XXXV
titled “Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions”, of the City of Daphne Land Use and
Development Ordinance No. 2002-22, and any amendments to the same; and,

WHEREAS, after such consideration the Planning Commission sent a favorable
recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne for the approval of said amendment
to the Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions contained within said Article XXXV of the City
of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed amendment has been provided to the public as
required by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City
Hall, a public hearing was held before the City Council on December 6, 2010; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon
recommendation of the Planning Commission, deemed that said amendment to the City of
Daphne Land Use Ordinance, Article XXXV titled “Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions”, is
proper and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City of
Daphne, Alabama; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows:

SECTION I. AMENDMENT

The Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions contained in Article XXXV of the City of
Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance shall be amended to permit “Convenience
Store” as a defined Use allowed by right in Use District B-2 and by Planning Commission
approval in Use District B-1, the below shall be and is hereby added to the Table of Permitted
Uses and Conditions contained in Article XXXV of the City of Daphne Land Use and
Development Ordinance, Ordinance 2002-22 and its amendments:

ARTICLE XXXV USE DISTRICT

TABLE OF PERMITTED USES AND

CONDITIONS R-1 R2 | R3 | R4 | R5 | B-1 B-2 | B-3 | C/I
Convenience Store P R
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All other sections, uses, conditions and/or contents of the Table of Permitted Uses and
Conditions shall remain the same and shall be unchanged by this Ordinance; this Ordinance is
only to amend the “Convenience Store” designation.

SECTION II: REPEALER.

All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance,
in so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed.

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY.

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph,
sentence, or part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or
impair the remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each
provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately and independently of each
other.

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the
- City Council of the City of Daphne and after publication as required by law.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS day of , 2010.

THE CITY OF DAPHNE,

AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION

CATHY S. BARNETTE, COUNCIL PRESIDENT

FRED SMALL, MAYOR

ATTEST:

DAVID L. COHEN,
CITY CLERK, MMC
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Buildings & Property Committee Meeting
Tuesday, November 1, 2010 5:00 PM
Daphne City Hall

Committee
Councilman John Lake
Councilman August A. Palumbo
Mayor Fred Small
Richard Merchant, Building Inspector
Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor
Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director

Committee Minutes (Summary)

Present: Councilman John Lake, Mayor Fred Small, David McKelroy, Recreation & Parks
Director, Richard Johnson, Public Works Director, Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor,
Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director, Jane Robbins, Richard Merchant, Building Inspection,

Meeting began around 5:00 pm.

Minutes from October Meeting: Motion made to approve minutes from October Meeting.
Approved.

Civic Center Report — Margaret Thigpen reported on the following items:
Civic Center & Bayfront:
Margaret explained the issue at hand with off duty policeman insurance and liquor
liability for events held at the Civic Center and Bayfront. We are faced with guidelines
and requirements by the League of Municipalities that should have been in force all
along.

Liquor Liability Issue: If the event is not a city sponsored event then the event has to
carry host liquor liability insurance. If a caterer is serving the alcohol they have to have
a liquor license and liability insurance. Two events coming up didn’t have this. One
event has cancelled with others calling. The other event scheduled was able to get the
required insurance prior to the weekend.

Off Duty Police Officer Insurance Coverage: Event shall be required to comply with the

Alabama State Code and take out General Liability Insurance to include $100,000 per off
duty officer.
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John Lake asked if the group can hire their own security? Our city ordinance states that
they have to hire Daphne Police Officers. The ordinance would need to be changed to
allow that if the Council so desired.

Other report: Ballroom Dance is this weekend; HVAC upgrade in progress, decking has
been weatherized at Bayfront — would like to paint railing white for a more
polished/finished look.

Barry Booth’s Property:

Kit Smith had brought to the committee a couple of months ago the proposal from Barry
Booth to swap a piece of property he currently owns for a piece that the city currently
owns which is at McMillan and Van Avenue. It backs up to a piece of property that he
owns and wants to build on. He is willing to donate to the city the property across from
the Daphne United Methodist Church that has the sculptures on it. This would be in
exchange for this tract that back up to the other property he owns. He does ask that he
be in control of the artwork until the time of his death.

After some discussion and some questions raised Kit agreed to follow up at the next
meeting. Would the city have the responsibility of mowing the sculpture park and the
upkeep? What is the size? Richard asked about the drainage on track with easement —
Kit agreed to meet him on site to look at this.

Building Department Report — Richard Merchant distributed monthly reports and impact fees
were discussed. 9 new residential starts — 1 new commercial — Dick’s Sporting Goods at Jubilee
Square.

Meeting adjourned.

40



CITY OF DAPHNE CHAIRMAN - Councilman Bailey Yelding, District 1
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING Councilwoman Cathy Barnette, District 2
Time: 5:00 PM on October 18, 2010 Councilman John Lake, District 3
Location: City Hall Council Chambers

I.

II.

I11.

CALL TO ORDER

The August meeting of the Public Works Committee was called to order at 5:00 PM

Present: Councilman Bailey Yelding, Councilwoman Cathy Barnette, Councilman John

Lake, Richard Johnson-Public Works Director, Sandra Cushway-Public Works
Assistant, Jaye Robertson-HMR, Tim Lawley-HMR, Dorothy Morrison-DBC,
Ray Miller, Chris Wilson, Randal Crowell-KFC

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE

A.
B.

Work Request Report — September & YTD

Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Report — October 2010 & YTD reports reviewed. It
was noted that YTD numbers were included. Councilwoman Barnette questioned why the
Mowing department’s repairs were so high. Richard stated that there were repairs done on
the Hydra Mower.

Correspondence — Public Works employee Denise Penry — Time Capsule Article Article
in Gulf Coast Paper, September 29, 2010. Reviewed.

Public Participation — Randal Crowell — Jack Marshall Foods (KFC). Mr. Crowell stated
that Jack Marshall Foods, Inc. owns and operates KFC’s in four states and that the one
located at Hwy 98/Main Street was the poorest performing location. The restaurant is
difficult to locate due to the trees, shrubbery and overgrowth. They lost $80K in revenue
last year at that location. Jack Marshall Foods loves the City of Daphne and would prefer
to continue to operate in our City. They are making capital improvements at the store and
he requested that the City assist him with clearing the ROW on Hwy 98. He stated that
there was 96’ of ROW in Highway 98 that is not being maintained. Small trees and
underbrush need to be cut back. Councilman Yelding commented that we would need to
check on the ordinance before any decision could be made. Richard stated that the trees
on Highway 98 that are causing the blockage are on the State’s ROW. He said that we
could get a one-time variance from ALDOT to clean up that area. We have an agreement
to go in and maintain the state’s ROW. Councilman Yelding said that we could possibly
cut out some of the underbrush without having to cut down trees. He told Mr. Crowell
that the committee would investigate and that the Public Works Department and the
Beautification Committee would get back with him with their findings.

OLD BUSINESS

A.

o

Minutes — September 20, 2010 Councilwoman Barnette made a motion to accept the
minutes from the September 20, 2010 meeting. Motion seconded by Councilman
Lake.

Mosquito Reports — September 2010. Reports reviewed.

Street Sweeper Reports — September 2010 reports reviewed.

Task Agreement No. 12 for Final Construction Plans for Highway 98 Median
Improvements (Volkert). Steven Commander stated that fees were expected to total
around $155K. Engineering fees were reduced. He reported to the committee that the
Eastern Shore Trail (sidewalks) was not being designed for this segment. He stated that
he has confirmed with ALDOT that they will pay the construction costs and the City of
Daphne will pay the engineering feest Mayor Small asked if this included sidewalks. Mr.




E.

Commander responded that it does include the sidewalks. It includes all design with the
exception of the bridge. Councilman Yelding asked Mayor Small if that money could
come from the 7 cent gas tax. Mayor Small responded that he would have to check with
Kim Briley about that.  Councilwoman Barnette made a motion to send
recommendation for funding to the Finance Committee. Motion was seconded by
Councilman Lake.

PALS (People against A Littered State) Adopt a Mile Signage Reviewed. No action
taken.

IV. NEW BUSINESS

A.

Old Field Subdivision, Phase one — Final Acceptance of Roads and ROW -
Christopher Wilson stated that 3 months ago the lights were cut off in the subdivision.
The have been several robberies and breaking and entering’s and there is a concern for the
safety of the residents that live there. Councilman Yelding stated that he has read the
information in the packet. Richard commented that the final plat for Phase I was
approved. Lots were sold, houses were built, etc. Now the contractor has liens against him
and is in bankruptcy. The foreclosure process has already been started by the bank. Not
being the owner any longer, the contractor stopped paying the electric bill for the street
lights so the lights were eventually cut off. Other City services are still being provided. It
is Richard’s recommendation that it is time to take action. Adrienne still has issues that
need to be resolved. It is now a Public Works consideration. Eventually, the
subdivision’s streets and ROW will be accepted. Richard would like for the committee to
make a resolution to get the lights cut back on. Councilwoman Barnette made a motion
to_approve the Public Works Director’s recommendation to move forward with
having the lights cut back on. Motion was seconded by Councilman Lake.

HADCO Solar LED Lighting — Per Councilman Lake’s recommendation, Richard
researched the feasibility of using solar powered lighting at the roundabout. At this time,
the cost is prohibitive. It currently costs approximately $60 per year to run the existing
lights. As prices come down on solar lighting, we can look into this further.

V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT

A.

Highway 98 / Whispering Pines Accident Data — Mayor Small stated that, for the
record, he has never personally seen an accident at the intersection of Highway 98 and
Whispering Pines. He added that if we still have ALDOT’s support on the traffic signals,
we need to move forward with this. Councilwoman Barnette made a motion to
forward traffic data to the City Council for action. Motion seconded by Councilman
Lake.

Daphne Solid Waste Disposal Authority — Councilman Lake and Councilwoman
Barnette previously requested information on Daphne’s Solid Waste Authority. Richard
provided all the resolutions, ordinances, State Code, legal documents pertaining to the
Daphne Solid Waste Disposal Authority. It was incorporated in August 1993 and a
resolution was passed. A resolution was passed in September 1993 granting permission
for the purpose of acquiring, owning, operating, leasing and disposing of one or more
solid waste disposal facilities under Alabama State Code. Directors were appointed. No
The Authority existed and operated on a limited basis. No records were found that
indicate any acts to dissolve, vacate, modify, abolish or restrict the “Authority” So, it
remains an existing duly registered Domestic Non-Profit Corporation in the State of
Alabama. Councilwoman Barnette asked whether the City was responsible for the
Authority’s debts. Councilman Lake responded that it would be operated as a separate
entity and would be run more like a business and more efficiently. Richard stated that the




VI

VIIL.

VIII.

IX.

XI.

board was originally made up of Public Works Committee members. It would allow them
to make decisions. Councilman Yelding stated that he didn’t like the concept. Richard
said that one example was the fact that we need two new recycling trucks. Under the
current setup, we may or may not get permission. If we did, the process would take up to
six months. Under the Authority, we wouldn’t have to go through the bid process. It
would take about 60 days to acquire the trucks. Councilman Yelding questioned how do
we make this “Authority” work? Councilwoman Barnette stated that we need to appoint
member on the board regardless of whether we plan to keep or dissolve the Authority.
Councilman Yelding stated that separate finances would complicate things. Councilman
Lake stated that Solid Waste was $80K in the black this year. That money went back into
the general fund. If we run the Authority like a business, we would be able to make
decisions independently to buy equipment. Councilman Lake said that we need to
determine how we can make this work. Councilman Lake, Mayor Small and Richard
need to look further into and form a committee. Councilwoman Barnette made a
motion to research viability. Motion was seconded by Councilman Lake.

SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY

A.

See Director’s Report

MUSEUM COMMITTEE

A.

Minutes — September 13, 2010 — Minutes reviewed

BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE

A.
B.
C.

Minutes — None Submitted

Top 10 list — unchanged since September’s list

DBC Update — Councilwoman Barnette asked about the proposed gazebo. Richard
responded that we are waiting on the total costs including upgrading the electricity at the
park. Councilman Yelding stated that he feels that bathrooms at Joe Patrick Lewis Park
and Park City Park are a higher priority than a gazebo. Councilwoman Barnette made a
motion to forward to Finance committee a favorable recommendation to construct
the gazebo at Centennial Park. Motion seconded by Councilman Lake. Councilman
Lake asked where the money was going to come from. Councilwoman Barnette stated
that it would come from the Finance Committee by the end of the year. Councilwoman
Barnette made a motion that the Finance Department, Public Works Director and
HMR put together a plan for bathrooms with input from the Beautification
Committee and Parks & Recreation for a restroom at Park City. The Public Works
Director is to get with David McKelroy. Motion was seconded by Councilman Lake.

ENGINEER REPORT

A.

B.

HMR Update — Soil samples results expected back next week. Will have samples from
Timber Creek tomorrow. Working on drainage in Sehoy and doing survey in Lake Forest.
Volkert Update — None

FUTURE BUSINESS

A.

Next Meeting — November 15, 2010

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 6:15 PM. Councilwoman Barnette made a motion to adjourn.
Motion seconded by Councilman Lake.
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CITY COUNCIL MEETING
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES

NOTES:

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:

DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT:

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD:

LIBRARY BOARD:

PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT:

RECREATION BOARD REPORT:

UTILITY BOARD REPORT:
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BZA

To: Cathy Barnette, Council President

From: Adrienne Jones, Director ‘V ‘ IiMO
Community Development
Subject: BZA Board Member Appointment 9
Date: November 10, 2010 ‘\IXND
v
UM

Mr. Willie Robison’s term on the BZA expired November 2010. The Council needs to
reappoint this member.

Mr. Robison serves very well on the BZA, and attends all meetings.

[, respectfully request that he be reappointed to his position as a Board member on the
BZA.

Thank you,

/ph

cc:  Becky, City Clerks Office
File
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BZA

To: Cathy Barnette, Council President

From: Adrienne Jones, Director ‘V‘ I..:v‘ s 0
Community Development
Subject: BZA Board Member Appointment 9
Date: November 10, 2010 I\IXND
v
UM

Mr. Glen Swaney’s term on the BZA expired May 2010. The Council needs to
reappoint this member.

Mr. Swaney has served well on the BZA, and attends all meetings.

I, respectfully request that he be reappointed to his position as a Board member on the
BZA.

Thank you,

/ph

cc: Becky, City Clerks Office
File
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DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
DAPHNE, AL

1705 MAIN STREET pﬁ#ﬁ-

NOVEMBER 22, 2010
5:15 P.M.

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLLCALL
Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 5:15 p.m.

Members Present: Casey Zito; Ronald Nero; Laurie Gorowsky; Ken Balme.
ABSENT: Doug Bailey; Kelly Hughes; Mary Beth Mantiply

Also present: Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee, Councilwoman Barnette;
Rebecca Hayes.

2. Adopt Minutes / October 25, 2010

MOTION BY Ken Balme to adopt the October 25, 2010 meeting minutes. Seconded
by Ronald Nero.

AYE ALL IN FAVOR NAY NONE OPPOSED MOTION CARRIED

Casey said that Darrelyn Bender, ES Chamber of Commerce, will be at the January
meeting.

3. UPDATE /JUBILEE FESTIVAL / FIRE MARSHAL / CHIP MARTIN

Mr. Martin discussed with the members why the booths at the festival could not be in the
middle of the street. He said it does not give enough room for emergency vehicles to come
through. He suggested moving the booths south and put an eating plaza in front of the
restaurants. It was also suggested having booths on Trione Avenue and Guarisco Avenue.

4. UPDATE / FACEBOOK PAGE
Ken handed out a list of names to consider for the Facebook and website pages. The
members liked the name DaphneOldeTowne.com.

5. UPDATE / MASTER PLAN / NEXT STEP

The grant writer will be at the January meeting. They would like to find grants to help fund
projects. The foremost project to be done is putting the utilities underground before any
other project can go forward. Cathy is researching the BP money and grants from the state.

6. HOLIDAY EVENT
Holiday event is on hold until January.
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DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 2
DAPHNE, AL

1705 MAIN STREET ”ﬁ#ﬁ-

NOVEMBER 22, 2010
5:00 P.M.

7. NEW BUSINESS
Dorothy Morrison will be attending the meetings as liaison for the Beautification
Committee. She presented plans for a gazebo at Centennial Park.

4. NEXT MEETING
The next meeting will be January 24, 2011 at 5:15 p.m.

5. ADJOURN

The meeting adjourned at 6:08 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Downtown Redevelopment Authority
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Daphne Public Library Board
October 7, 2010
Meeting Minutes

In Atftendance:

Library Director Tonja Young; Board Chair Jan Blankenhorn; Library Board
Members Chantal Booth, Windrila Longmire and Jim Bodman; Friends President
Carol Simmons; Book Shop Manager Karen Kyzar; City Councilman Gus Palumbo.

1) Call to Order:

After a quorum was established, Library Board Chairman Jan Blankenhorn called
the meeting to order at 4:02 pm.

2) Reading and Approval of the Minutes:

The minutes of the September meeting were approved; a motion was made by Jim
to approve the minutes as written and seconded by Windrila. The motion passed.

3) Library Board Chairman's Report:

Ms. Blankenhorn stated that she would like to thank the Teen Board for a lovely
function at the Fall into Reading Festival.

4) Library Director's Report:
Tonja stated that the September statistical reports were in the Board packefts.

For September 2010, total patronage was down 10.03% to 17,798 compared with
19,782 for September, 2009. September 2010 circulation was down 1.54% at
26,217 compared to 26,627 in September 2009. Overall circulation year-to-date
was 314,218 for September 2010, compared to 292,754 for this time in 2009, for
an overall increase in circulation of 7.33%. A total of 163 patrons were given
library cards or renewals, and volunteers gave a total of 438.5 hours (Book Shop
Manager = 140; Book Shop Staff = 136; Friends Board = 49; Shelvers = 113.5) to the
library in September. Meeting room attendance was 640. Computer users
numbered 2,685 as compared with 1,340 in September 2009, for an increase of
100.37%.
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Tonja announced the upcoming computer classes and events. Copies of press
releases for the month were included in the packet. Tonja also announced that she
was approved for the 2011 LSTA grant she wrote for $60,000 for technology in the
library. The grant will replace outdated equipment and allow software to be
upgraded, as well as adding new equipment.

Tonja requested Board signatures for the new library policies that were updated to
cover issues and/or changes concerning computer use and the use of the new
computer lab. The policies were signed by all present.

Tonja requested a vote on the 2011 library holiday schedule based on dates issued
from City Hall for city holidays, as well as the procedures in the library policy for
selecting holidays/closings. Windrila made a motion to approve the requested
schedule of holidays and closings; Chantal seconded the motion. The motion passed.

5) Vote for Officers

Jim made a motion to vote on officers for 2011 as slated: Chair, Jan Blankenhorn;
Vice Chair, Andre LaPalme; Treasurer, Windrila Longmire; Secretary, Library
Director. Chantal seconded the motion. The motion passed.

5) Public Participation

Carol asked Karen about the Book Sale profits. Karen replied that the Book Sale
made approximately $500 and the Silent Auction brought in another $70-80.
Karen expressed thanks to all who helped with the sale and stated there would be
another book Sale in March.

Carol announced that the Friends would not meet this month. She also announced
that the Teen event went well; that the Silent Auction was not as successful as in
previous years, but that there had been a lot of activities for children.

Gus asked that the Friends support Operation Paperback. Karen stated that the
Friends were no longer receiving many paperback donations and wondered if the
paperbacks were being sent overseas by individuals. Karen researched the website
and offered to select the requested books and donate them to the project, but
stated that the Friends could not pay to ship the books. Carol agreed, stating that
the Friends Board had discussed the matter and decided that they could not pay
the shipping since their mission was to support library activities. After further
discussion, Karen reiterated her offer to select and donate the books for the
project.
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6) Other Business
None.
7) Adjourned

The meeting was adjourned by Jan at 4:35 pm.

Respectfully submitted by T. Young, November 1, 2010
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THE CITY OF DAPHNE

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 28, 2010
COUNCILI CHAMBERS, CITY HALL —~ 6:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER:

The number of members present constitutes a quorum and the regular
meeting of the City of Daphne Planning Commission was called to order
at 6:00 p.m.

CALI. OF ROLL:

Members Present:

Fred Small, Mayor

Joe Lemolne, Vice Chairman
Dan Gibson

Larry Chason

Cathy Barnette, Councilwoman
Chief James “Bo” White

Members Absent:

Ed Kirby, Chairman
Victoria Phelps

Staff Present:

Adrienne Jones, Director of Community Development
Jan Dickson, Planning Coordinator

Nancy Anderson, GIS Manager

Jay Ross, Attorney

Staff Absent:

Missty Gray, Attorney
Erick Bussey, Associate Attorney ,
Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager

Others Absent:

Rob McElroy, General Manager/Utilities Board of the City of Daphne
Danny Lyndall, Operations Manager/Utilities Board of the City of Daphne

The first order of business i1s the call to order.

Vice Chairman: Please let the record reflect Mr. Kirby and Ms. Phelps
are not present.

- The next order of business is approval of the minutes.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

The minutes of the September 23, 2010 regular meeting were considered
for approval.



THE CITY OF DAPHNE

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 28, 2010
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL -~ 6:00 P.M.

Vice Chairman: A copy of the minutes was furnished to us previously. Do
any of the Commissioners have any guestions or comments? If there are
no additions, deletions, or corrections at this time, the Chair will

entertain a motion.

A Motion was made by Mayor Small and Seconded by Ms. Barnette to approve
the minutes of the September 23, 2010 regular meeting as submitted. The
Motion carried. Mr. Chason abstained due to his absence at that meeting.

The next order of business is the election of officers.

NEW RBUSINESS:

ELECTION OF OFFICERS:

Vice Chairman: This item was discussed at the site preview meeting and
the Commissioners have decided to table this item until the next regular
meeting of November. Do any of the Commissioners have any dquestions or
comments? If not, the Chair will entertain a motion.

A Motion was made by Ms. Barnette and Seconded by Mayor Small to table
the elections of officers until the next regular meeting of Novembex.
The Motion carried unanimously.

The next order of business is final plat review for Dunmore Subdivision,
Phase Two, Part A.

DUNMORE SUBDIVISION, PHASE TWO, PART A:

FINAL PLAT REVIEW:

File SDF10-02:

Subdivision: Dunmore, Phase Two, Part A

Zoning: R-4, High Density Single Family Residential

Location: Oon the FEast side of Alabama Highway 181, South of
) Austin Road, North of Dick Higbee Road

Area: 6.62 Acres +, {(26) lots

owner: Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity

Engineer: Rester & Coleman Engineers - Joel Coleman

An introductory presentation was given by Mr. Joel Coleman, representing
Rester & Coleman Engineers, requesting final plat review of a six-point
six—two acre subdivision consisting of twenty-six lots located on the
East side of Alabama Highway 181, South of Austin Road and North of Dick

Higbee Road.



THE CITY OF DAPHNE

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 28, 2010
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL - 6:00 P.M.

Mr. Coleman: We have installed the improvements to the subdivision with
the exception of sidewalks, grassing and landscaping for which we have
posted a performance surety bond for each. I will be happy to answer any

questions you may have.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any questions or
comments? :

Ms. Barnette: Have the items outlined in the review been resolved?

Ms. Jones: Yes.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any further questions
or comments? TIf there is no objection, the Chair will entertain a

motion.

A Motion was made by Ms. Chason and Seconded by Mayor Small to approve
the final plat for Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part A.

The next order of business is an administrative presentation regarding
the installation of sidewalks in Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part

A.

ADMINISTRATIVE PRESENTATION:

An introductory presentation was given by Mr. Joel Coleman, representing
Rester & Coleman Engineers, requesting to waive the requirement for
sidewalks and to defer the required installation, with the presentation
of a performance bond to cover such expense, and to allow sidewalks to
be installed as individual lots are developed.

Ms. Jones: In your motion for the approval of the final plat, it is also
necessary for you to waive the requirement or to defer the installation
of the sidewalks with the presentation of the performance surety bond

guarantee.

Mr. Chason commented he would like to see sidewalks installed now in the
subdivision in locatiohs where they would not be damaged during the
construction of homes, but especially in the common areas.

Mr. Coleman: The owners would have done if we had known, but this was
something new that was presented to us at the site preview meeting so
we only had time to present the bond. We will be happy to take care of

it.
Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any questions or

comments? If there is no objection, the Chair will entertain an amended
motion.



THE CITY OF DAPHNE

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 28, 2010
COUNMCII, CHAMBERS, CITY HALL - 6:00 P.M.

An Amended Motion was made by Ms. Chason and Seconded by Mayor Small fo
approve the final plat for Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part A,
contingent upon the installation of the sidewalks in the common azeas.

The Motion carried unanimously.

The next order of business is an administrative presentation for street
acceptance in Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part A.

ADMINISTRATIVE PRESENTATION:

An introductory presentation was given by Mr. Joel Coleman, representing
Rester & Coleman Engineers, requesting acceptance of the street(s)
contained within Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part A.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any duestions or
comments? If there is no objection, the Chair will entertain a motion.
A Motion was made by Mr. Chason and Seconded by Mr. Gibson for the
affirmative recommendation by the Planning Commission to the City
Council of Daphne for the acceptance of the streets in Dunmore
Subdivision, Phase Two, Part A. The Motion carried unanimously.

The next order of business is an administrative presentation for the
master plan for the Springs @ Eastern Shore.

SPRINGS @ EASTERN SHORE:

MASTER PLAN:

An introductory presentation was given by Mr. Jaye Robertson,
representing Hutchinson, Moore & Rauch, requesting master plan approval
for the Springs @ Eastern Shore. This is the same master plan which was
presented to you previously with the exception of obtaining the easement
and/or access to Johnson Road.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any gquestions or
comments?

Ms. Jones: An informal letter was provided this afternoon by Mr. John
White-Spunner, representing White-Spunner, Inc. T would like to see,
prior to the approval of the master plan and the site plan, a more
formal document granting the easement from all of the owners.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any further questions
or comments? If there is no objection, the Chair will entertain a

motion.

A Motion was made by Ms. Barnette and Seconded by Mayor Small fo approve
the master plan for the Springs @ Eastern Shore, contingent upon a
Fformal document being provided to the Director of Community Development
by the owner or developer of the Springs @ Eastern Shore from White-
Spunner, Inc. granting an access and/or ingress/egress easement to
Johnson Road. The Motion carried unanimously.
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The next order of business is zoning amendment review for Big Sandy,
L.L.C.

PETITIONS:

ZONING AMENDMENT :

File Z210~-05: Big Sandy, L.L.C. (associated with the Springs @ Eastern
Shore}

Present Zoning: B-2, General Business

Proposed Zoning: R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential

Location: Southeast of the intersection of U. S. Highway 98 and
Johnson Road

Area: 0.72 Acres #+

Owner: Big Sandy, L.L.C. - Jacob Cunningham, Managing Member

Engineer: Hutchinson, Moore & Rauch - Jaye Robertson

An introductory presentation was given by Mr. Jaye Robertson,

representing Hutchinson, Moore & Rauch, regquesting the rezoning of a
zero point seven-two acre parcel located southeast of the intersection
of U. S. Highway 98 and Johnson Road from a B-Z, General Business, to
an R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential, zone. An application for
the rezoning of this parcel had been submitted previously, but the
application was not accepted by the City because the rezoning of the
same parcel had taken place less than one year prior to that. It is
necessary to rezone the zero point seven—two acre parcel to replat it
with Lot 1 of the Springs @ Eastern Shore. I will be happy to answer any
questions you may have.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any questions or
comments? The Chairman opened the floor to public participation. With
no adjacent property owners present, he closed public participation. IE
there is no objection, the Chair will entertain a motion.

A Motion was made by Mr. Chason and Seconded by Mayor Small for the
affirmative recommendation by the Planning Commission to the City
Council of Daphne for the rezoning of a zero point seven-two acre parcel
Jocated southeast of the intersection of U. 8. Highway 98 and Johnson
Road from a B-2, General Business, to an R-4, High Density Multi-Family
Residential, zone for Big Sandy, L.L.C. The Motion carried unanimously.

The next order of business is an administrative presentation for a
replat of Lot 1 of the Springs @ Eastern Shore.

ADMINISTRATIVE PRESENTATION:
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An introductory presentation was given by Mr. Jaye Robertson, presenting
Hutchinson, Moore, & Rauch, requesting a replat review to remove a
common line of the out parcel on U.S. Highway 98 and Lot 1, the Springs
at Eastern Shore. I will be happy to answer any questions you may have.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any guestions or
comments?

Ms. Jones: The staff recommendation is for denial until such time the
rezoning of the parcel is presenting and approved by the City Council.

Ms. Barnette: I agree with that recommendation. I do not think we should
have two different zoning designations on one plat.

Mr. Chason: Normally, I would agree, but in this case I would say that
since it is such a small parcel we should consider it because of the
time frame. There are other parcels in the City with two designations.

Ms. Jones: Jaye, explain to them why it is necessary for this to be one
parcel.

Mr. Robertson: The small out parcel has to be combined with the larger
parcel in order for the owners to present the application for financing
for the project to the Housing Urban Development Board.

Mr. Carney: My name is Jay Carney, representing Heritage Homes. There
is a staged application to HUD for financing. The process takes
approximately nine months. All of the zoning and the subdividing have
to be in place in order to show the improvements to the site and to ask
for the Ffinancing. If that is not done prior to the submission of the
application, then any other improvements such as the access on the B-2
parcel and the easement accessing Johnson Road would have to be an out-
of-pocket expense. The initial application window may be within the next
forty-five days, and in order to make that application it must be

presented together.

Ms. Barnette: I do not see the urgency in combing the parcels if the
zoning amendment will not be approved until some time in January.
Obviously, an application for financing could not be submitted until the
zoning and the replat are in place.

Mr. Hutchinson: My name is Scott Hutchinson, representing Hutchinson,
Moore & Rauch. Mr. Carney does not understand the application process
for the zoning amendment and the replat. We would like to have the
approval of the replat so that it will be in place at the time of the
approval of the zoning amendment.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any questions or
comments? If there is no objection, the Chair will entertain a motion.
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A Motion was made by Ms. Barnette and Seconded by Mayor Small ¢to approve
the replat of the Springs at Eastern Shore and the out parcel on U.S.
Highway 98 to remove a common lot line, contingent upon the approval of
the zoning amendment fFfor Big Sandy, L.L.C. by the City Council. The
Motion carried unanimously.

The next order of business is site plan review for Springs € Eastern
Shore.

SITE PLAN REVIEW:

File S10-13:

Site: Springs @ Eastern Shore

Zoning(s): B-2, General Business, and R-4, High Density Multi-
Family Residential

Location: Southeast of the intersection of U. 8. Highway 98 and
Johnson Road

Area: 20.31 Acres £

Owner: Big Sandy, L.L.C. - Jacob Cunningham, Managing Member

Developer: Heritage Construction Company

Engineer: Hutchinson, Moore & Rauch - Scott Hutchinson or Jaye
Robertson

An introductory presentation was given by Mr. Jaye Robertson,

representing Hutchinson, presenting Hutchinson, Moore, & Rauch,

requesting site plan review of an apartment complex located southeast
of the intersection of U. S. Highway 98 and Johnson Road. The only
change to the site plan is the access to Johnson Road will not be fifty
feet. The access will be a thirty—foot easement with twenty-four feet
of pavement constructed to the City's specifications.

Mr. Robertson: The owners of the property to the north did not want a
fifty-foot right-of-way on the front of their property. I will be happy
to answer any questions you may have.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any questions ox
comments?

Mr. Chason: Because you cannot go south on Johnson Road, the exit to
this property is very important so let’s talk about it first.

Mr. Hutchinson: I do not know why the owner would not allow the fifty~-
feet other than it would affect the setback of a building on his parcel.
We would like to discuss other issues which are relative to the approval
of this site plan. One is the improvement of Johnson Road and U.S.

Highway 98.
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Mr. Hutchinson: Prior to this meeting tonight, we received a revised
handwritten traffic study from Mr. Metzger, but we have not had time to
review it in preparation of discussing it with you tonight. However, he
did say in the revised traffic study that a left turn lane is not
warranted.

Ms. Barnette: This development is hinged upon the access to Johnson Road
so that is important. That may be why the previous developer walked away
from the project.

Ms. Jones: In Ms. Campbell’s notes, she says the NPDES ADEM permit has
expired and needs proof of the re-registration or registration. I would
also like the motion to approve the site plan to contain a contingency
also as you did with the master plan which states a formal document
granting the easement must be provided prior to the issuance of a site
disturbance permit.

Mr. Hutchinson: We, on behalf of the owners, would like to request that
you table the site plan review in order to allow us to work out the
issues with the site plan, the improvement to the intersection at
Johnson Road and the documents for the easement. We need time to work
on the access and traffic issues with the Division of Public Works and
the Alabama Department of Transportation.

Mr. Chason: T would like to say this parcel has been both R-4 and B-Z,
and an R-4 apartment development is much more viable than a dirt pit.
At the site plan review next month, I will be interested in hearing
about the improvements, a dry stream bed being used as detention, and
the storm water detention being piped into Montrose. My two biggest
concerns are the drainage and that intersection.

Mr. Hutchinson: With our design, the dry stream will not be used for
detention. There will be not treatment of the storm water, but it will
be controlled. We did this in order to preserve the natural beauty and

design of this site.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any further gquestions
or comments? If there is no objection, the Chair will entertain a

motion.

A Motion was made by Ms. Barnette and Seconded by Mayor Small to table
the site plan for the Springs @ Eastern Shore. The Motion caxrried

unanimously.
Ms. Barnette: Do you agree to waive the thirty-day rule?
Mr. Hutchinson: We agree to waive that rule.

The next order of business is =zoning amendment review for TDG LAKE
FOREST, L.L.C.
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PETITIONS:

ZONING AMENDMENT :

File Z10-04: TDG LAKE FOREST, L.L.C. (A.K.A. LAKE FOREST APARTMENTS)

Present Zoning: B-1, Local Business, and R-3, High Density Single
Family Residential

Proposed Zoning: R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential

Location: Southeast of Van Buren Street and North Main Street

Area: 2.92 Acres + and 3.39 Acres +, respectively

Owner: " TDG TLake Forest, L.L.C. — William Dobbins, Managing
Member

Engineer: : Engineering Development Services - David Diehl

An introductory presentation was given by Mr. David Diehl, representing

Engineering Development Services, requesting the rezoning of a two-point

nine two and a three-point three nine-acre parcels, respectively, .
located southeast of the intersection of Van Buren Street and North Main
Street known as the Lake Forest Apartments from a B~1, Local Business,

and R-3, High Density Single Family Residential to an R-4, High Density
Multi-Family Residential, zone. This parcel has split zoning which was

accepted at the time of its annexation into the city of Daphne. The

current owner is in the process of upgrading the development, and he

would like to have the zoning comply with the current use of the

property. I will be happy to answer any questions you may have.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any questions or
comments?

Ms. Barnette: If the owner is in the process of cleaning up the zoning,
then why would he have to go to the Board of Zoning Adjustments.

Ms. Jones: Because the present development’s density is twenty units per
acre. Our ordinance only allows fourteen units per acre. I have another
comment I would like to make during public participation.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any further questions
or comments? The Chairman opened the floor to public participation.

Ms. Jones: I received a letter this afternoon from Dr. Booth, an
adjacent property owner. His letter talks about the density of the units
which is twenty per acre, and the parking which is located on the right-
of~-way of Van Buren Street. He is not opposed to the rezoning of the
property, but he asks can the parking be moved off of the right-of-way.

The Chairman closed public participation.
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Ms. Barnette: If the property 1is to be rezoned, then those types of
issues would have to be addressed. The parking requirements and the
density. The zoning will have to come into compliance in order for the

units to be rebuilt.

Mr. Dobbins: My name is William (Bill) Dobbins. T am the managing member
of the company. This development was in very bad condition when we
purchased it from the FDIC last month. Eight of the units which were
destroyed by a fire are missing. The units missing hinder our clean up,
and the current rules prohibit us from rebuilding.

Mr. Diehl: The required parking for this site is one hundred and ninety-
two spaces. We meet and/or exceed compliance to the parking regulations.
As to the parking on the right-of-way the present tenants could park
else where, but this area is readily accessible to the entrance of their

apartment.

Mr. Dobbins: We do not necessarily need the rezoning of the property.
We could go to the Board of Zoning Adjustments and ask to rebuild the
units. We have spent millions of dollars on this facility on the
upgrade, and we would like to rebuild those eight units are part of the

clean up.

Ms. Barnette: I am opposed to the rezoning until the issues which are
not in compliance are addressed.

Mr. Chason: What issues are not in compliance? If we recommend the
rezoning of the property, then we will see the site plan again in order
to address those issues.

Ms. Barnette: The Planning Commission will not see the site plan because
the units are existing. We will not have an opportunity to address the
parking requirements, density of the property and the parking area which
is located on the City right-of-way of Van Buren Street.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any further guestions
or comments? If there is no objection, the Chair will entertain a

motion.

A Motion was made by Mr. Chason and Seconded by Mayor Small Ffoxr the
affirmative recommendation by the Planning Commission to the City
Council of Daphne for the rezoning of a two-point nine two and a three-
point three nine-acre parcel located southeast of the intersection of
Van Buren Street and North Main Street known as the Lake Forest
Apartments from a B-1, Local Business, and R-3, High Density Single
Family Residential to an R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential,
zone. The Motion carried. Ms. Barnette dissented.
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Clarification Note: Although a majority of those present voted in favor
of the motion, a super majority would have been necessary for a
favorable recommendation.

The next order of business is an administrative presentation of a
revised master plan for St. Augustine Subdivision.

ADMINISTRATIVE PRESENTATION:

An introductory presentation was given by Mr. David Diehl, representing
Engineering Development Services, requesting a master plan revision for
St. Augustine Subdivision. The subject property is located northeast
of County Road 64 on Rigsby Road of the City of Daphne extraterritorial
jurisdiction in Baldwin County District 15. You may remember the master
plan for this subdivision being recommended by the Baldwin County
Planning Department and approved by you previously. When we went to the
County Commission, the application for a planned unit development was
denied. We have redesigned it to provide a transition from larger lots
on Rigsby Road. The design will still include the walking trails,
sidewalks and the open space. We are asking for the approval of the
revised master plan for submission to Baldwin County. 1 will be happy

to answer any questions you may have.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any questions or
comments?

Mr. Chason: Thank you for taking the time to explain the concept to us.
I liked the other plan, but I think the transition of the larger to
smaller lots makes the plan far superior.

Ms. Barnette: I really like the design of the master plan.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any further questions
or comments? If there is no objection, the Chair will entertain a

motion.

A Motion was made by Ms. Barnette and Seconded by Mayor Small £o approve
the revised master plan for St. Augustine Subdivision. The Motion

carried unanimously.

The next order of business is to set the November and December meeting
dates.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any questions or
comments? If there is no objection, the Chair will entertain a motion.

A Motion was made by Ms. Barnette and Seconded by Mr. Gibson to set the
meeting dates for November 18 and December 16, 2010. The Motion carried

unanimously.
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The next order of business is to review the by laws of the Planning
Commission.

Ms. Jones: The last revision to the by laws was in 2003. I have given
you a working copy of the Baldwin County Planning Commission by laws.
T would like for you to review them, as well as, the copy of our by laws
in order provide your recommendations for changing and/updating them.

The next order of business is an administrative presentation for a
proposed amendment to the Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance
regarding the revision of the C-2, Outdoor Amusement, zoning district.
The subsequent Council President, Mr. Palumbo, had written a letter from
the City Council to Mr. Kirby, the Chairman of the Planning Commission,
requesting the separation of the outdoor amusement district uses in
order to create a golf course district. I have presented you with two
drafts. One is the revision to the outdoor amusement district and the
other is the creation of the golf course district. I would like your
comments and a recommendation for each to the City Council.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any gquestions or
comments?

The Commission expressed concerns with the revision to the Table of
Permitted Uses and Conditions relating to the uses outlined in the
outdoor amusement district as they relate to uses in the golf course
district and ask for them to be omitted.

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any guestions or
comments? If there is no objection, the Chair will entertain a motion.

A Motion was made by Ms. Barnette and Seconded by Mr. Gibson fFfoxr the
affirmative recommendation by the Planning Commission to the City
Council of Daphne of Daphne of the proposed amendment to the Daphne Land
Use and Development Oxrdinance for the revision to the C-2, Outdoor
Amusement, and the creation of the G-C, Golf Course, zoning district.

Mr. Chason: Do you want a recommendation to the City Council ala carte
or both contained in one motion? I believe the ordinance has to be

presented as one in order for them to work.
Ms. Barnette and Mr. Gibson withdrew the motion

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any further questions
or comments? If there is no objection, the Chair will entertain a

motion.
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A Motion was made by Ms. Barnette and Seconded by Mr. Gibson for the
affirmative recommendation by the Planning Commission to the City
Council of Daphne of Daphne of the proposed amendment to the Daphne Land
Use and Development Ordinance for the revision to the C~2, Outdoor
Amusement, contingent upon the revisions to the Table of Permitted Uses
and Conditions as discussed. The Motion carried unanimously.

A Motion was made by Ms. Barnette and Seconded by Mr. Gibson for the
affirmative recommendation by the Planning Commission to the City
Council of Daphne of Daphne of the proposed amendment to the Daphne Land
Use and Development Ordinance for the creation of a G~C, Golf Course,
zoning district, contingent upon acceptance of the ordinances as one.
The Motion carried unanimously.

The next order of business is public participation.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

Vice Chairman: Is there anyone who would like to address the Planning
Commission?

Mr. Ouellette, President of the Madison Place Property Owner’s
Association: Why do you allow engineers to present site plans with time
frames and constraints?

The next order of business is the attorney’s report.

ATTORNEY’S REPORT:

Mr. Ross: No report.

Ms. Barnette: I was asked by the subsequent City Council present to read
the following into the Planning Commission minutes. ™ At the October 18,
2010 the City Council considered setting a public hearing to change the
Land Use Ordinance with regard to zoning in a B-1 zone. The vote for
setting the hearing resulted in a three to three—tie vote which meant
it failed. I am attaching an excerpt of the minutes which reflects the
result of the City Council's vote. A motion was made by Councilwoman
Barnette to set a Public Hearing date for November 15, 2010 to consider:
amending the Land Use Ordinance/Table of Permitted Uses/for the
designation of a convenience store by right in a B-1, Local Business,
district as a use allowed upon Planning Commission approval and to add
a bowling alley and family entertainment center as a use allowed upon
Planning Commission approval in a B-1, Local Business, district. The
Motion was seconded by Councilman Scott. The ayes were Barnette, Reese
and Scott. The nays were Lake, Boulware and Palumbo. The motion failed”.

pre



THE CITY OF DAPHNE

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 28, 2010
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL - 6:00 P.M.

The next order of business is the director’s comments.

DIRECTOR' 8 COMMENTS-2011 GOALS OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND THE PLANNING
COMMISSION:

Ms. Jones: The goals of Community Development and the Planning
Commission are things we need to work on. Other things which are not on
the list are sign regulations, green regulations, and the update of the
Comprehensive Plan.

The next order of business is commissioner’s comments.

COMMISSIONER’S COMMENTS:

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any guestions or
comments?

Mr. Chason: One item we need to address in the land use regulations
deals with the issue of an application not being able to be acted upon
because of the lack of six members present, which is required for
preliminary plat, zoning amendments, etc. The clarification would
address current language that currently states "any application not
acted on within thirty days of submittal shall be deemed approved”.
Chason suggested that the regulation as currently written does not
contemplate a lack of the six members necessary to vote up or down the
application. Therefore, something needs to be added to state that an
application will not be automatically approved if not acted upon in
thirty days due to less than six members being present. If an
application requiring six members for approval is submitted, and less
than six members are present, then the application shall be
automatically tabled for thirty days and is not deemed either approved

or denied.

ADJOURNMENT :

Vice Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any questions or
comments? If there is no objection, the Chair will entertain a motion

to adjourn.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:50
p.m.

Respectfully submitted by:
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Jan Dickson, Planning Coordinator
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APPROVED: November 18, 2010
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S.

CALL TO ORDER DATE: NOVEMBER 23, 2010
CALL OF ROLL ADJ/JD
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Review of minutes for the regular meeting of October 28, 2010. (APPROVED W/REVISIONS)

OLD BUSINESS:

A. ELECTION OF OFFICERS - ED KIRBY, CHAIRMAN, LARRY CHASON, VICE
CHAIRMAN AND JOE LEMOINE, SECRETARY

B. SPRINGS AT EASTERN SHORE:

1. SITE PLAN REVIEW:

File S10-13: (APPROVED, REQUESTED A REVISION TO THE SITE
PLAN TO INCLUDE THE CONSTRUCTION OF A RIGHT TURN LANE AT
INTERSECTION OF JOHNSON ROAD AND U.S. HIGHWAY 98, SUBJECT
TO THE APPROVAL OF THE ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF

TRANSPORTATION)

Site: Springs @ Eastern Shore

Zoning (s): B-2, General Business, and R-4, High Density Multi-Family
Residential

Location: Southeast of the intersection of U. S. Highway 98 and Johnson
Road

Area: © 2031 Acres +

Owner: Big Sandy, L.L.C. - Jacob Cunningham, Managing Member

Developer: Heritage Construction Company

Engineer: Hutchinson, Moore & Rauch - Scott Hutchinson or Jaye Robertson

NEW BUSINESS:

A, ADMINISTRATIVE PRESENTATION: (APPROVED)

1. Presentation to be given by Mr. Mitchell Davenport, representing Jubilee
Ridge, L.L.C., requesting master plan review of Laurel Springs Apartments
(fka Jubilee Ridge Condominiums). The subject property is located Southeast
of the intersection of County Road 64 and Pollard Read.

Created: October 19, 2010 Revised: Novembher 10, 2010 . Repert: November 23,2010
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B. DAPHNE UTILITIES CENTRAL SERVICES FACILITY:

1. SITE PLAN REVIEW: (APPROVED, WITH AN AGREEMENT TO THE
STREET IMPROVEMENT OF WELL ROAD, BEGINNING AT THE EAST
SIDE OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF POLLARD ROAD EXTENDING TO
EAST TO PUBLIC WORKS ROAD, TO THE MINIMUM STANDARDS
REQUIRED IN ARTICLE XI, MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS AND
REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS, OF THE DAPHNE LAND USE AND

DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE)
File S10-14:
Site: Daphne Central Services Facility

Zoning(s): B-2, General Business

Location: Northeast of the intersection of Pollard Road and Well Road

Area: 95 Acres T

Owner: Utilities Board of the City of Daphne - Rob McElroy, General
Manager, or Danny Lyndall, Operations Manager

Engineer: Volkert & Associates, Inc. - Melinda Immel

C. FINAL PLAT REVIEW:

1. File SDF10-03: (APPROVED)
Subdivision: Dunmere, Phase Two, Part B

Zoning(s): R-4, High Density Single Family Residential

Location: On the East side of Alabama Highway 181, South of Austin Road,
North of Dick Higbee Road

Area: 10.47 Acres +, (28) lots

Owner: Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity

Engineer: Rester & Coleman Engineers - Joel Coleman

2. ADMINISTRATIVE PRESENTATION:

Presentation to be given by Mr. Joel Coleman, representing Rester & Coleman
Engineers, requesting to waive the requirement for sidewalks and to defer the
required installation, with the presentation of a performance bond to cover
such expense, and to allow sidewalks to be installed as individual lots are

developed. (APPROVED)

Presentation to be given by Mr. Joel Coleman, representing Rester & Coleman
Engineers, requesting street acceptance of all streets contained within Dunmore
Subdivision, Phase Two, Part B. (FAVORABLE RECOMMENDATION)

Created: October 19, 2010 Revised: Nowggeber 10,2010 Report: November 23, 2010
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D. CARQLINE WOODS SUBDIVISION, PHASES TWQ & THREE:

1.

Created: October 19, 2010

MASTER PLAN: (APPROVED

Presentation to be given by Mr. David Diehl, representing Engineering
Development Services, requesting revised master plan review for Caroline
Woods Subdivision, Phases Two and Three.

FINAL PLAT REWEW:
File SDF10-04: (APPROVED)
Subdivision: Caroline Woods, Phase Two “A”

Zoning(s): R-4, High Density Single Farily Residential, and R-3, High
Density Single Family Residenticl

Location: Northeast of the intersection of Parker Lane and Whispering
Pines Road, North of Madison Place Subdivision, West of Daphne
Commercial Park, Phase Two

Area: 4.0 Acres +, (13) lots
Owner: Plan B Investments, L.L.C. - Jacob Cunningham
Engineer: Engineering Development Services - David Diehl or Jason Estes

ADMINISTRATIVE PRESENTATION:

Presentation to be given by Mr. David Diehl or Jason Estes, representing
Engineering Development Services, Engineering Development Services,
requesting to waive the requirement for sidewalks and to defer the required
installation, with the presentation of a performance bond to cover such
expense, and to allow sidewalks to be installed as individual lots are developed.
(APPROVED, MOTION TO WAIVE THE REQUIREMENT AND TO DEFER
THE REQUIRED INSTALLATION UNTIL INDIVIDUAL LOTS ARE
DEVELOPED, WITHOUT THE SUBMISSION OF A PERFORMANCE
BOND. ACCEPTANCE OF THE FOUR FOOT SIDEWALK INSTALLED IN
LIEU OF THE REQUIRED FIVE FOOT SIDEWALK, CONTINGENT UPON
THE CONTINUATION OF FIVE FQOT SIDEWALKS IN FUTURE
PHASES, AND THE CONSTRUCTION OF A SIDEWALK CONNECTION
FROM CAROLINE WOODS SUBDIVISION TO MADISON PLACE

SUBDIVISION)

Presentation to be given by Mr. David Diehl or Jason Estes, representing
Engineering Development Services, requesting street acceptance of all streets
contained within Caroline Woods Subdivision, Phase Two A. (FAVORABLE
RECOMMENDATION)

Revised: November 10, 2010 Report: Nevember 23, 2010
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CITY OF DAPHNE
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF NOVEMBER 18,2010 REPORT
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL - 6:00 P.M.

4. PETITIONS:

ZONING AMENDMENT: (FAVORABLE RECOMMENDATION)

File Z10-06: Plan B Investments, L.L.C. {(a portion of Carcline Woods
Subdivision, Phase Two, Part A and D)

Present Zoning: R-3, High Density Single Family Residential

 Proposed Zoning: R-4, High Density Single F amily Residential

Location: Northeast of the intersection of Parker Lane and Whispering
Pines Road, Northwest of Madison Place Subdivision

Area: 3.47 Acres +

Owner: Plan B Investments, L.L.C. - Jacob Cunningham

Engineer: Engineering Development Services - David Diehl or Jason Estes

5. PRELIMINARY PLAT REVIEW:

File SDP10-04: (APPROVED)
Subdivision: Caroline Woods, Phase Three

Zoning(s): R-4, High Density Single Family Residential

Location: Northeast of the intersection of Parker Lane and Whispering
Pines Road, North of Madison Place Subdivision

Area: 12.46 Acres +, (41) lots

Owner: A & B-10, L.L.C. - John Avent & Joe Bullock

Enginger: Engineering Development Services - David Diehl or Jason Estes

E. PETITIONS:

ZONING AMENDMENT: (UNFAVORABLE RECOMMENDATION, SEVEN
MEMBERS VOTED IN THE AFFIRMATIVE, ONE DISSENTED)

Present Zoning: B-1, Local Business
Proposed Zoning: B-2, General Business

File Z10-02: MPWS, L.L.C.

Location: Southwest corner of Lawson Road and County Road 13, Lot 2, Lake
Forest Plaza Subdivision
Area: 4.44 Acres +
Owner: MPWS, L.L.C. - John White-Spunner or Matt White
Engineer: Rester & Coleman Engineers - Joel Coleman
Created: October 19, 2010 Revised: November 10, 2010 Report: November 23,2010
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CITY OF DAPHNE
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF NOVEMBER 18,2010 REPORT
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL - 6:00 P.M.

S. OTHER BUSINESS:

Reconsideration of a previous metion to amend Article XXXV, the Table of Permitted Uses and

Conditions to add a bowling alley as a use allowed upon Planning Commission approval in a
B-1, Local Business, zoning district. (FAVORABLE RECOMMENDATION, SEVEN

MEMBERS VOTED IN THE AFFIRMATIVE, ONE DISSENTED).

Presentation given by Ms. Cathy Barnette, Council President, of a request the City Council to
take action on streets amd storm water drainage for Oldfield Subdivision, Phase One.

(FAVORABLE RECOMMENDATION)

A motion was made to change the time of the meeting of the Planning Commission from 6:00
p.m. to 5:00 p.m. (APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY)

6. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

7. ATTORNEY’S REPORT

8. COMMISSIONER’S COMMENTS

9, DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS

10 ADJOURNMENT

Created: October 19, 2010 Revised: November 10, 2010 Report: Neovember 23, 2010
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To:
From:

Subject:

Date:

.
£
o

A
Office of the City Clerk f~7[K;,
/

Adrienne D. Jones, ;y<:;{bﬁEE4CHR}%DJEﬂJD4

Director of Community Developmentfﬁ

Planning Commission Reconsiderati&n of
an Amendment to Article XXXV, the Tabte-
of Permitted Uses and Conditions of the
Daphne Land Use Ordinance for a Bowling
Alley in a B-1, Local Business, Zoning
District

November 22, 2010

At the Thursday, November 18, 2010 regular meeting of the
City of Daphne Planning Commission reconsidered the vote and
recommendation set forth a the September 23, 2010 meeting.
Eight members were present and the motion set forth a
favorable recommendation to amend Article XXXV, the Table of
Permitted Uses and Conditions to add a bowling allev as a use
allowed upon Planning Commission approval in a B-1, Local
Business, zoning district carried. Seven members voted in the
affirmative and one dissented.

Please place in the City Council packet for consideration at
the Monday, December 6, 2010 public hearing.

Thank you,
ADJ/Ad

co: file




CITY OF DAPHNE
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING OF NOVEMBER 18,2010 REPORT

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL - 6:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER DATE: NOVEMBER 23, 2010
CALL OF ROL1, ADJ/ID
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Review of minutes for the regular meeting of October 28, 2010. (APPROVED W/REVISIONS)

OLD BUSINESS:

A, ELECTION OF OFFICERS - ED KIRBY, CHAIRMAN, LARRY CHASON, VICE

CHAIRMAN AND JOE LEMOINE, SECRETARY

B. SPRINGS AT EASTERN SHORE:

1.

SITE PLAN REVIEW:

File S10-13: (APPROVED, REQUESTED A REVISION TO THE SITE
PLAN TO INCLUDE THE CONSTRUCTION OF A REGHT TURN LANE AT
INTERSECTION OF JOHNSONROAD AND U.S. HIGHWAY 98, SUBJECT
TO _THE APPROVAL OF THE ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF

TRANSPORTATION)

Site; Springs @ Eastern Shore

Zoning (s): B-2, General Business, and R-4, High Density Mulfi-Family
Residential

Location: Southeast of the intersection of U. S. Highway 98 and Johnson
Road

Area: 20.31 Acres +

Owner: Big Sandy, L.L.C. - Jacob Cunningham, Managing Member

Developer: Heritage Construction Company

Engineer: Hutchinson, Moore & Rauch - Scott Hutchinson or Jaye Robertson

NEW BUSINESS:

A. ADMINISTRATIVE PRESENTATION: (APPROVED)

1.

Presentation to be given by Mr. Mitchell Davenport, representing Jubilee
Ridge, L.L.C. requesting master plan review of Laurel Springs Apartments
(fka Jubilee Ridge Condominiums). The subject property is located Southeast
of the intersection of County Read 64 and Pollard Road.

Created: October 19, 2010 Revised: November 10, 2010 Report: November 23, 2010
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CITY OF DAPHNE
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF NOVEMBER 18, 2010 REPORT
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL - 6:00 P.M.

B. DAPHNE UTILITIES CENTRAL SERVICES FACILITY:

1. SITE PLAN REVIEW: (APPROVED, WITH AN AGREEMENT TO THE
STREET IMPROVEMENT OF WELL ROAD, BEGINNING AT THE EAST
SIDE OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF POLLARD ROAD EXTENDING TO
EAST TO PUBLIC WORKS ROAD, TO THE MINIMUM STANDARDS
REQUIRED IN ARTICLE XI, MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS AND
REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS, OF THE DAPHNE LAND USE AND

DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE)
File S10-14:

Site: Daphne Central Services Facility

Zoning(s): B-2, General Business

Location: Northeast of the intersection of Pollard Road and Well Road

Arca: 9.5 Acres +

Owner: Utilities Board of the City of Daphne - Rob McElroy, General
Manager, or Danny Lyndall, Operations Manager

Engineer: Volkert & Associates, Inc. - Melinda Immel

C. FINAL PLAT REVIEW:

1. File SDF10-03: (APPROVED)
Subdivision: Dunmore, Phase Two, Part B

Zoning(s): R-4, High Density Single Family Residential

Location: On the East side of Alabama Highway 181, South of Austin Road,
North of Dick Higbee Road

Area; 10.47 Acres +, (28) lots

Owner; Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity

Engincer; Rester & Coleman Engincers - Joel Coleman

2. ADMINISTRATIVE PRESENTATION:

Presentation to be given by Mr. Joel Coleman, representing Rester & Coleman
Engincers, requesting to waive the requirement for sidewalks and to defer the
required installation, with the presentation of a performance bond to cover
such expense, and to allow sidewalks to be installed as individual lots are

developed. (APPROVED)

Presentation to be given by Mr. Joel Coleman, representing Rester & Coleman
Engineers, requesting street acceptance of all streets contained within Dunmore
Subdivision, Phase Two, Part B. (FAVORABLE RECOMMENDATION)

Created; October 19,2010 Revised: Nm'ﬁ;lnbcr 10,2010 Report; November 23, 2010
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CITY OF DAPHNE
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING OF NOVEMBER 18,2010 REPORT

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL - 6:00 P.M.

D, CAROLINE WOODS SUBDIVISION, PHASES TWO & THREE:

1.

Created: October 19, 2010

MASTER PLAN: APPROVED

Presentation to be given by Mr. David Diehl, representing Engineering
Development Services, requesting revised master plan review for Caroline
Woods Subdivision, Phases Two and Three,

FINAL PLAT REVIEW:
File SDF10-04: APPROVED
Subdivision:  Caroline Woods, Phase Two “A”

Zoning(s): R-4, High Density Single Family Residential, and R-3, High
Density Single Family Residential

Location: Northeast of the intersection of Parker Lane and Whispering
Pines Road, North of Madison Place Subdivision, West of Daphne
Cominercial Park, Phase Two

Area: 4.0 Acres +, (13) lots
Owner: Plan B Investments, L.L.C. - Jacob Cunningham
Engineer: Engineering Development Services - David Diehl or Jason Estes

ADMINISTRATIVE PRESENTATION:

Presentation to be given by Mr. David Diehl or Jason Estes, representing
Engineering Development Services, Engineering Development Services,
requesting to waive the requirement for sidewalks and to defer the required
installation, with the presentation of a performance bond to cover such
expense, and to allow sidewalks to be installted as individual lots are developed.
(APPROVED, MOTION TO WAIVE THE REQUIREMENT AND TO DEFER
THE REQUIRED INSTALLATION UNTIL INDIVIDUAL LOTS ARE
DEVELOPED, WITHOUT THE SUBMISSION OF A PERFORMANCE
BOND, ACCEPTANCE OF THE FOUR FOOT SIDEWALK INSTALLED IN
LIEU OF THE REQUIRED FIVE FOOT SIDEWALK, CONTINGENT UPON
THE CONTINUATION OF FIVE FOOT SIDEWALKS IN FUTURE
PHASES, AND THE CONSTRUCTION OF A SIDEWALK CONNECTION
FROM CAROLINE WOODS SUBDIVISION TO MADISON PLACE
SUBDIVISION)

Presentation to be given by Mr. David Diehl or Jason Estes, representing
Engineering Development Services, requesting street acceptance of all streets
contained within Caroline Woods Subdivision, Phase Two A. (FAVORABLE

RECOMMENDATION)

Revised: November 10, 2010 Report: November 23, 2010



CITY OF DAPHNE
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF NOVEMBER 18, 2010 REPORT
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL - 6:00 P.M.

4, PETITIONS:

ZONING AMENDMENT: (FAVORABLE RECOMMENDATION)

File Z10-06: Plan B Investments, L.L.C. (a portion of Caroline Woods
Subdivision, Phase Two, Part A and D)

Present Zoning: R-3, High Density Single Family Residential

Proposed Zoning: R-4, High Density Single Family Residential

Location: Northeast of the intersection of Parker Lanc and Whispering
Pines Road, Northwest of Madison Place Subdivision
Area: 3.47 Acres +
Owner: Plan B Investments, L.L.C. - Jacob Cunningham
Engineer: Engineering Development Services - David Dichl or Jason Estes
5. PRELIMINARY PLAT REVIEW:

File SDP10-04; (APPROVED)
Subdivision: Caroline Woods, Phase Three

Zoning(s): R-4, High Density Single Family Residential

Location: Northeast of the intersection of Parker Lane and Whispering
Pines Road, North of Madison Place Subdivision

Area: 12.46 Acres +, (41) lots

Ovwner:; A & B-10, LL.C. - John Avent & Joe Bullock

Engineer: Engineering Development Services - David Diehl or Jason Estes

E. PETITIONS:

ZONING AMENDMENT: (UNFAVORABLE RECOMMENDATION, SEVEN
MEMBERS VOTED IN THE AFFIRMATIVE, ONE DISSENTED)

Present Zoning: B-1, Local Business
Proposed Zoning: B-2, General Business

File 210-02: MPWS, L.L.C.

Location: Southwest corner of Lawson Road and County Road 13, Lot 2, Lake
Forest Plaza Subdivision
Area: 4.44 Acres +
Owner: MPWS, L.1.C. - John White-Spunner or Matt White
Engineer: Rester & Coleman Engineers - Joel Coleman
Created: October 19, 2010 Revised: November 10,2010 Report; November 23, 2010
4
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CITY OF DAPHNE
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF NOVEMBER 18,2010 REPORT
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL - 6:00 P.M.

5. OTHER BUSINESS:

Reconsideration of a previous motion to amend Article XXXV, the Table of Permitted Uses and
Conditions to add a bowling alley as a use allowed upon Planning Commission approval in a
B-1, Local Business, zoning district. (FAVORABLE RECOMMENDATION, SEVEN

MEMBERS VOTED IN THE AFFIRMATIVE, ONE DISSENTED).

Presentation given by Ms. Cathy Barnette, Council President, of a request the City Council to
take action on streets and storm water drainage for Oldfield Subdivision, Phase One.
(FAVORABLE RECOMMENDATION)

A motion was made to change the time of the meeting of the Planning Commission from 6:00

p.m. to 5:00 p.m. (APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY)

6. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

7. ATTORNEY’S REPORT

8. COMMISSIONER’S COMMENTS

9. DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS
10 ADJOURNMENT

Created: October 19, 2010 Revised: November 10, 2010 Report: November 23, 2010



SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE

JANUARY 3. 2011

TO CONSIDER:

1.) Set Public Hearing date for January 3, 2011 to consider:
a.) Rezome: Plan B Investments
Located: Northeast of the intersection of Parker
Lane and Whispering Pines Road
Northwest of Madison Place Subdivision
Present Zoning: R-3, High Density single Family
Residential District
Requested Zoning: R-4, High Density Single Family
Residential District
Recommendation: Recommend Approval / Unanimous

b.) Rezone: MPWS, LLC
Located: Southwest corner of Lawson Road and County
Road 13

Present Zoning: B-1, Local Business District

Requested Zoning: B-2, General Business District

Recommendation: Unfavorable / Eight members present /
Seven members voted in the affirmative
and one dissented
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To:
From:

Subject:

Date:

Office of the City Clerk 7

Adrienne D. Jones,
Director of Community Develepment

Plan B Investments, L.L.C.
Zoning Amendment Review

November 18, 2010

MEMORANDUM

PRESENT ZONING: R-3, High Density Single Family
Residential, City of Daphne

PROPOSED ZONING: R-4, High Density Single Family
Residential, City of Daphne

LOCATION: Northeast of the intersection of
Parker Lane and Whispering Pines Road,
Northwest of Madison Place Subdivision

RECOMMENDATION: At the Thursday, November 18, 2010,
regular meeting of the Daphne Planning
Commission, eight members were present
and the motion to recommend approval
carried unanimously.

The appropriate documentation and action has been provided
to the City Attorney for preparation of the ordinance.

Upon receipt of documentation, please place on the
appropriate City Council agenda to set the public hearing for
action by the City Council on Monday, January 3, 2011.

Thank you,
ADJ/jd

cc: file

attachment (s)

Community Development Report
Petition

Legal description

Map of property

Adjacent property owners’ list

G W o=
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PLAN B INVESTMENTS, LL.C
R-3 TO R-4

Plan B Investments, LLC proposes to rezone 3.47 acres of property in Caroline
Woods Phase 2 and Phase 3 from R-3 to R-4. A revision to the master plan for
Caroline Woods is on this same agenda for the Planning Commission’s review and
approval. The subject property is noted as lots 27, 74, 70, 69 and 68 (see attached
master plan). The only property in the entire subdivision which remains R-3 has
already been developed in Phase 1. On November 1% the City Council approved
the R-3 to R-4 rezoning request for the 12.42 acres noted as Phase 3 on the

rezoning sketch.

The Future Land Use Map designates the subject property as residential, thus the
proposal is consistent with the Comprehensive plan.

Zoning Recommendation: Approval contingent upon approval of the revised
master plan submitted by EDS.
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THE CITY OF DAPHNE
PLANNING DEPARTMENT
APPLICATION FOR ZONING AMENDMENT

!0’{!8 /izg

Application Number: Z IO'O(F’ Date Plat Submitted: :
Date Presented: ! /” g //D

Name of Owner: FLAN B INVESTMENTS LLC

Address: (05 [AKE DR FAIRHOPE, AL 36632 Telephone#  988-1230

(Street or P.O. Box) (City)  (State) (Zip Code)
Name of Authorized Agent, if other than owner: EDS L.L.C.

Address: 9499 BELLATON AVE ~ DAPHNE, AL 36526 Telephone#  626-2122

(Street or P.O. Box) (City) (State)  (Zip Code)

Subdivision: A PART OF CAROLINE WOODS, PHASE TH0  FPar it A = D

Lot(s): Unit
v Two (2) copies of legal description of the subject property.
v Two (2) copies of subdivision plat or site plan drawn to scale,
(28" x 36").
v List of the names and mailing addresses for the adjacent property

owners (Date Submitted: © Q. VR | QAO\O).

Meeting Dates:

Planning Commission: WNON L, VR v 201\V0

City Council:

Reason(s) for requesting the Zoning Amendment:
TO DEVELOP PATIO GARDEN HOMES SIMILAR TO REST OF CAROLINE WOODS PHASE TWO AND

THREE WHILE PROTECTING SOME SIGNIFICANT OAKS IN COMMON AREAS.

SIGYATURE OF OWNER ORAUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

(Application for a Zoning Amendment information shall be that of the owner of the subject property).

Revised: March 18, 2004




APPLICATION FOR ZONING AMENDMENT

STATE OF ALABAMA)
COUNTY OF BALDWIN)
CITY OF DAPHNE)

This is to certify that I (we) the undersigned am the owner(s) of said property and do hereby request
the City of Daphne to grant a Zoning Amendment for said property for the reasons outlined herein:

1 Description of property for which amendment is requested:
a) Address
RO

b) Name of Subdivision _T0 BE KNOWN AS P CAROLINE WOODS PHl\SE W = ARTAYD
) Lot numbers involved in change N/A
d) Total acreage of change ___ 2 .\ \ _ ocveS
e) Recorded in Map Book __N/A Page
1) Owned in whole by the undersigned? YES
g) If owned in part, name(s) of co-owner(s) :
2) Zoning change requested:

a) Present classification of property __ R-3

b) Reclassification desired ___R-4 SF.

c) Character of neighborhood _ MOSTLY R-4 SF WITH SOME R-3 SF
3) Certifications:

a) Owner's Name _ PLAN B INVESTMENTS LLC
b) Address 105 LAKE DR FAIRHOPE, AL 36532

¢) - Telephone Number 9881230

d) Date _10/18/2010 1//(2/
%of Property wa\l\s;)

Signature of Property Owner
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AGREEMENT

L ALLOWING THE CITY OF DAPHNE TO POST PUBLIC NOTICE SIGNS ON THE
PROPERTY FOR WHICH AN APPLICATION FOR A ZONING AMENDMENT HAS
BEEN SUBMITTED TO THE CITY COUNCIL.

I hereby agree to allow the City of Daphne to post on my property, for which an application for a
zoning amendment has been submitted to the City Council, a sign or sign(s) notifying the general
public of said request. I understand the City of Daphne shall erect and maintain said sign(s) for the
prescribed period of time and remove the same.

jfj ,}/ g/)i D . -
Sigﬂ@ig of Property Ownek__/

Date

%



PLAN B INVESTMENTS LLC

ZONING AMENDMENT REVIEW
NORTHEAST OF THE INTERSECTION OF PARKER
LANE AND WHISPERING PINES ROAD, NORTHWEST OF MADISON
PLACE SUBDIVISION
EXHIBIT "A"

(A PORTION OF CAROLINE WOODS SUBDIVISION, PHASES A & D)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT NUMBER 7 OF
CAROLINE WOODS SUBDIVISION, PHASE ONE, AS SHOWN BY MAP OR
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED AT SLIDE 2423-C, PROBATE RECORDS,
BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING: THENCE
RUN SOUTH 89 DEGREES 54 MINUTES 03 SECONDS WEST, FOR A
DISTANCE OF 110.23 FEET, THENCE RUN NORTHWESTWARDLY, ALONG
A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 30 FEET, AN ARC
DISTANCE OF 47.12 FEET (CHORD BEARS NORTH 45 DEGREES 05
MINUTES 57 SECONDS WEST, 42.43 FEET), THENCE RUN NORTH 00
DEGREES 05 MINUTES 57 SECONDS WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 79.05
FEET: THENCE RUN NORTH 79 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 03 SECONDS
WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 50.79 FEET, THENCE RUN NORTH 00
DEGREES 05 MINUTES 57 SECONDS WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 236.96
FEET: THENCE RUN NORTHWESTWARDLY, ALONG A CURVE TO THE
LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1071.71 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 281.22
FEET (CHORD BEARS NORTH 07 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 00 SECONDS
WEST, 280.42 FEET); THENCE RUN NORTH 15 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 03
SECONDS WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 67.34 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH
89 DEGREES 54 MINUTES 03 SECONDS EAST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 36.94
FEET: THENCE RUN NORTH 76 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 49 SECONDS
EAST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 84.84 FEET, THENCE RUN SOUTH 89
DEGREES 57 MINUTES 25 SECONDS EAST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 174.3
FEET: THENCE RUN SOUTH 00 DEGREES 04 MINUTES 34 SECONDS
WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 139.01 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 24
DEGREES 01 MINUTES 42 SECONDS WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 54.45
FEET: THENCE RUN SOUTH 03 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 20 SECONDS
WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 262.06 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 01
DEGREE 50 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 266.69
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. TRACT CONTAINS 3.47 ACRES,
MORE OR LESS, AND LIES IN FRACTIONAL SECTION 8 AND GRANT
SECTION 19 AND 38, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN
COUNTY, ALABAMA.
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A&B10LLC
P OBOX 1395
DAPHNE AL 36526

ASHLEY, JONATHAN A ETAL
ASHLEY, ASHLEY L
27269 ELISE CT
DAPHNE AL 36526

CLARK, GREG ETUX JACQUELINE M
27284 ELISE COURT
DAPHNE AL 36526

EDSLLC
9949 BELLATON AVE
DAPHNE AL 36526

JACKSON, BRENDA F
27323 ELISE COURT
DAPHNE AL 36526

MABIRE, JONATHAN B
27311 ELISECT
DAPHNE AL 36526

MESTRE, ROBERT J
7722 AVERY LANE
DAPHNE AL 36526

PINYAN, PAULINE
7701 AVERY LANE
DAPHNE AL 36528

SCRIMPSHIRE, CELIAR
7709 AVERY LANE
DAPHNE AL 36526

E3F ARI B3 IRILS
PLAN B INVESTMENTS

ZONING AMENDMENT
Adjacent Property Owners List

s

ADAMS, SUSAN WALKER
7730 AVERY LANE
DAPHNE AL 36526

BALBACH, DEBORAH A
27326 ELISE COURT
DAPHNE AL 36526

COLONY HOMES LLC
200 ROCK CREEK PKWY
FAIRHOPE AL 36532

HEPPNER, MYRON R ETAL
HEPPNER, LORETTA M
7698 AVERY LANE
DAPHNE AL 36526

KERN, MELANIE L
27224 LASHAY DRIVE
DAPHNE Al 36526

MADISON PLACE PROPERTY
OWNERS ASSOCIATIO
P O DRAWER 2308
DAPHNE AL 36520

OVERSTREET, DOROTHY ANN
27236 LASHAY DR
DAPHNE AL 36526

PLAN B INVESTMENTSLLC
105 WILLOW LAKE DR
FAIRHOPE AL 36532

SELLERS, ROBERT ETAL SELLERS,
TERESA A
7745 ELIZABETH DR
DAPHNE AL 38526
86

ANDERSON, HENRY
27267 PERDIDO BEACH BLVD#111
ORANGE BEACH AL 36561

BENCHMARK HOMES INC
2936 MCVAY DR N
MOBILE AL 36606

DYER, LISA M ETAL BAKKEN, VICKI
27243 ELISE COURT
DAPHNE AL 36526

HOLLINGSHEAD, TONYAE
7723 AVERY LN
DAPHNE AL 36526

LEMOINE, JOSEPH A JR ETAL
LEMOINE, NANCY
7742 AVERY LANE
DAPHNE AL 36526

MAVERICK CAPITALLLC
416 TRAVIS ST SUITE#715
SHREVEPORT LA 71101

PERRY, HAYNE A
7684 AVERY LANE
DAPHNE AL 36526

SCOTT, SUSANE
7687 AVERY LN
DAPHNE AL 36526

STANLEY, LYDIAM
7743 AVERY LANE
DAPHNE AL 36526




T hdr™
THOMAS, LEONARDO C ETAL

THOMPSON-THOMAS,
27273 ELISECT
DAPHNE AL 36526

WEBB, CHARLES B ETAL WEBB,
EUNICE L
7731 AVERY LANE
DAPHNE AL 36526

TOFIQUL, ISLAM ETAL REHMAN,
SABAHET
27231 ELISECT

DAPHNE AL 36526

WILLIAMS, EDRICK ETAL WILLIAMS,
TAMEKA L
27248 ELISE COURT
DAPHNE AL 36526
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WATKINS, THOMAS E ETUX
SHARRON A
11606 CO RD 54
DAPHNE AL 36526

WILLIS, GREGORY C ETAL WILLIS,
ANDREAL
27236 ELISE COURT
DAPHNE AL 36526




CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA
ORDINANCE NO. 2010-

Ordinance to Rezone Property Located
Northeast of the intersection of Parker Lane and Whispering Pines Road,
Northwest of Madison Place Subdivision

WHEREAS, Plan B Investments, L.L.C., as the owner of certain real property

located within the City of Daphne, Alabama, has requested that said property be rezoned
from R-3, High Density Single Family Residential to R-4, High Density Single Family

Residential; and,

WHEREAS, said real property is located Northeast of the intersection of Parker

Lane and Whispering Pines Road, Northwest of Madison Place Subdivision, and more

particularly described as follows:

COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT NUMBER 7 OF CAROLINE WOODS
SUBDIVISION, PHASE ONE, AS SHOWN BY MAP OR PLAT THEREOF RECORDED AT SLIDE
2423-C, PROBATE RECORDS, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, FOR A POINT OF
BEGINNING: THENCE RUN SOUTH 89 DEGREES 54 MINUTES 03 SECONDS WEST, FOR A
DISTANCE OF 110.23 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTHWESTWARDLY, ALONG A CURVE TO THE
RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 30 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 47.12 FEET (CHORD BEARS
NORTH 45 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 57 SECONDS WEST, 42.43 FEET); THENCE RUN NORTH 00
DEGREES 05 MINUTES 57 SECONDS WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 79.05 FEET; THENCE RUN
NORTH 79 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 03 SECONDS WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 50.79 FEET;
THENCE RUN NORTH 00 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 57 SECONDS WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF
236,96 FEET, THENCE RUN NORTHWESTWARDLY, ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT,
HAVING A RADIUS OF 1071.71 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 281.22 FEET (CHORD BEARS
NORTH 07 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST, 280.42 FEET); THENCE RUN NORTH
15 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 03 SECONDS WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 67.34 FEET; THENCE
RUN NORTH 89 DEGREES 54 MINUTES 03 SECONDS EAST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 36.94 FEET;
THENCE RUN NORTH 76 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 49 SECONDS EAST, FOR A DISTANCE OF
84.84 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 25 SECONDS EAST, FOR A
DISTANCE OF 174.3 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00 DEGREES 04 MINUTES 34 SECONDS
WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 139.01 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 24 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 42
SECONDS WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 54.45 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 03 DEGREES 47
MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 262.06 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 01
DEGREE 50 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 266.69 FEET TO THE POINT
OF BEGINNING. TRACT CONTAINS 347 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND LIES IN
FRACTIONAL SECTION 8 AND GRANT SECTION 19 AND 38, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2
EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA.

WHEREAS, at the City of Daphne Planning Commission meeting on November 18,

2010, the Commission considered said request and set forth a favorable recommendation

to the City Council of the City of Daphne that said property be rezoned; and,

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed rezoning has been provided to the public

as required by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and

City Hall, a public hearing was held before the City Council on January 3, 2010; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and

upon consideration of the recommendation of the Planning Commission, deemed that said
application for rezoning of the above described real property is proper and in the best
interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama;
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ORDINANCE 2010- REZONE PLAN B INVESTMENTS PAGE 2

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows

SECTION |: ZONING

That above described real property is hereby rezoned from R-3, High Density
Single Family Residential to R-4, High Density Single Family Residential, and that the
zoning ordinance and zoning map be amended to reflect the said zoning change.

SECTION Ii: REPEALER.

All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this
Ordinance, in so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed.

SECTION Ili: SEVERABILITY.

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph,
sentence, or part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not
affect or impair the remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and
enact each provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately and
independently of each other.

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its
approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and after publication as required by law.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS day of , 2010.

Cathy S. Barnette,
Council President

Fred Small,
Mayor

ATTEST:

David L. Cohen
City Clerk, MMC
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To:
From:

Subject:

Date:

Office of the City Gperk N+
Adrienne D. Jones, |\

Director of Communlt De lopment
MPWS,L.L.C. i

Zoning Amendment Rev1e

November 22, 2010

PRESENT ZONING: B-1, Local Business, City of Daphne
PROPOSED ZONING: B-2, General Business, City of Daphne
ILOCATION: Southwest corner of Lawson Road and

County Road 13

RECOMMENDATION: At the Thursday, November 18, 2010,
regular meeting of the Daphne Planning
Commission, eight members were present
and the motion to set forth a
unfavorable recommendation carried.
Seven members voted in the affirmative
and one dissented.

Upon receipt of said documentation, please place on the
appropriate City Council agenda to set the public hearing for
action by the City Council on Monday, January 3, 2011.

Thank you,
ADJ/3d

cce file
attachment (s)

Community Development Report
Petition

Legal description

Map of property

Adjacent property owners’ list
Correspondence of Citizen Concerns
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COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ZONING AMENDMENT REVIEW,

In 2007, applicant petitioned the city to annex the site and the surrounding parcels into the city
with a B-2 zoning designation. The representative amended the request to B-1 upon the Planning
Commission’s comments. In 2007, a conceptual plan was given showing development along
Lawson Road and County Road 13 intersection. No development was shown on the subject
property as no plans were envisioned for this particular site.

On September 23, 2010 the applicant submitted a proposal to rezone the subject property from
B-1 to B-2 and also submitted a request to amend the Table of Permitted Uses to allow a
Bowling alley (family entertainment center) in a B-1 zone district pending site plan approval
by the Planning Commission. The applicant withdrew the petition at the September hearing
prior to the Planning Commission public hearing. (See attached Planning Commission minutes.)

Uses requiring Planning Approval allows the Planning Commission flexibility in ensuring the
maximum level of harmony between different type uses where a use allowed “by right” is only
required to meet the minimum standards established in the Land Use & Development Ordinance.
Zoning runs with the land and does not change unless the owner petitions the municipality to
amend the zoning. The owner has the right to construct any allowable use listed in the Table of
Permitted Use “by right”. There is no essentially no flexibility with a “by right” use, at the site
plan approval level, i.e. Planning Commission options are extremely limited.

Excerpt from Article 13-2 Table of Permitted Uses (Defined)
Uses in the Table identified by (P) are permitted upon approval by the Planning Commission of
the location and the site plan appropriate with regard to fransportation, access, water supply,
waste disposal, fire, police protection, and other public facilities, as not causing undue traffic
congestion or creating a traffic hazard, and in harmony with the orderly and appropriate
development of the district in which the development is to occur.

Excerpt from Article 13-3 Compliance with District Requirements

“Any use requiring planning approval is subject to review and approval of the Planning
Commission. Each application to the Planning Commission for approval must be accompanied
by a site plan prepared by the applicant or his agent. The Planning Commission shall review the
application at its next meeting and take into consideration all existing regulations and ordinances
of the City of Daphne, as well as, recommendations from the Zoning Administrator, the Director
of Community Development, the Code Enforcement Officer, the Baldwin County Health
Department, and any other such local officials. The Planning Commission may approve the
use request as is, it may approve it with conditions, or it may deny it.”

The comprehensive plan is out of date. It still shows the future use as residential although the B-

1 zoning was established in 2007. Upon revising the Future Land Use Map, this location will be

amended to reflect a “Commercial use”.
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THE CITY OF DAPHNE iy
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES —— [
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REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2010 QRAFT”” " .
COUNCII. CHAMBERS, CITY HALL - 6:00 B.M. L z(/ @’
b V\/ﬂ& o

File Z10-02: MPWS, L.L.C. (Associated with ILake Forest Plaza
Subdivision)}

Location: Southwest of the intersection of Lawson Road and County
Road 13, Lot 2, Lake Forest Plaza Subdivision ,

Area: 4,44 Acres +

Owner: MPWS, L.L.C. — Matt White

Engineer: Rester & Coleman Enginsers — Joel Coleman

Present Zoning: B~1, lLocal Business

Proposed Zoning: B-2, General Business

An introductory presentation was given by Mr. Joel Coleman, representing
Rester & Coleman Engineers, requesting the rezoning of a four point
four-four acre parcel located southwest of the intersection of Lawson
Road and County Road 13 known as Lot 2 of Lake Forest Plaza Subdivision
from a B-1, Local Business, to a B~2, General Business, zone. With the
presentation of this project, we are still talking about the property
at the intersection of Lawson Road and County Road 13. At the time of
the planning for the projected development for this site, the owner
thought the property was zoned B-2, General Business, but it is not.
This property is zoned B-1. The owner has contracted for the development
of a family entertainment center for the city. We felt it may be a
better proposal for us and the residents to ask for an addition and/or
amendment to the City of Daphne Land Use Ordinance, Article XXXV, the
Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions rather than asking for a rezoning
from B-1 to B-2. I will be happy to answer any questions you may have.

Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any questions or comments?

Ms. Phelps: Just a comment. The property was rezoned as B-1 because of
the uses near the subdivision. I would be more inclined to hear your
argqument for a revision to the Table of Uses because B-~2 is not a

suitable use for this site.

Mr. Coleman: The owner would like to withdraw the petition fox the
zoning amendment.

The next order of business is an administrative presentation reguesting
consideration of an amendment to the Daphne Land Use and Development,
Article XXXV, the Table of Pevmitted Uses and Conditions.

ADMINISTRATIVE PRESENTATION: }W ow Ye! Table, Ameordent €e f‘/‘é g

An 1ntroductory~presentatlon.was given by Mr. Joel Coleman, representin
Rester & Coleman Engineers, requesting the congideration of an amendment
to the Daphne Land Use and Development Oxdinance, Article XXXV, the
Table of Permitted Uses to allow the operatlon of a bowling alley as a
use permitted in a B-1, Local Business, zoning district upon gite plan
review and approval by the Planning Commission.
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THE CITY OF DAPHNE

PLAMNING COMMISSION MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2010 DRAET
COTRCTL. CHAMBERS, CITY HALL -~ 6:00 P.M.

Mr. Coleman: I would like defer to the owner and developer, Mr. Matt
White representing White-Spunner & Associates, to discuss the change to
the Table of Permitted Uses and the conceptual plan.

Mr. Matt White presented to the Commission the request to amend the
Table of Permitted Uses based on the fact we did not know this site was
zoned B~1 and have a client which proposes the development of a family
entertainment center on Lot 2, Lake Forest Plaza Subdivision which will
include bowling lanes, arcade, laser tag, snack bar, adult pool table,
family restaurant, bar and party rooms.

Mr., Butch Cole, the owner of the Gulf Bowl in Foley, Alabama and the
proposed owner of the Eastern Shore Family BEntertainment Center,
‘addressed the Commission to convey the development will not be a bowling
alley. The facility will be a “family oriented” family entertainment
center for activities for all members of the family. The first location
selected was on U.S. Highway 90 in the Renaissance Center Subdivision
which did not go forward due to funding. We began searching for
alternative sites and this location was chosen mainly due to the fact
it was zoned B-2. Now there is a process to achieve permission or
rezoning to go on this site and still obtain approval of our plan with
a loan approval deadline of December 31, 2010.

Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any questions oxr comments?

Ms. Barpnette: I do not think the conceptual plan should be presented or
considered for a request for a change in permitted uses based on the
proposed use of the site. The plan would be more sultable fox
presentation and considerable of the zoning amendment.

Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any further guestions or
comments? If there is no objection, the Chair will entertain a motion.

A Motion was made by Ms. Barnette and Seconded by Ms. Phelps fox the
affirmative recommendation by the Planning Commission to the City
Council of Daphne to amend Article XXXV, the Table of Permitted Uses and
Conditions in the Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance, to add a
powling alley as a use allowed ypon Planning Commission approval in a
B-1, Local Business, zoning district. Ms. Barnette, Ms. Phelps, Chief
White and Mr. Lemoine voted in the affirmative. Chairman dissented. Mz.

Gibson abstained.

A
Clarification Note: Although a majority of those present voted in favor
of the motion, a super majority would have been necessary for a
favorable recommendation.

Ms. Barnette: I would like to make a motion to add a bowling
alley/family entertainment center to the Table of Permitted Uses and.

Conditions.
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THE CITY OF DAPHNE

DPLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2010 DRAFE
COUNGTT. CHAMBERS, CITY HALL — 6:00 P.M.

Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any guestions or comments?’
1f there is no objection, the Chair will entertain a motion.

A Motion was made by Ms. Barnette and Seconded by Ms. Phelps for the ‘4}“
affirmative recommendation by the Planning Commission to the City Q(y\
Council of Daphne to amend Article XXXV, the Table of Permitted Uses and 6\
Conditions in the Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance, to add a

Ffamily entertainment center as a use allowed upon Planning Commission

approval in a B~1, Local Business, zoning district. The Motion carried

unanimously.

The next order of business is public participation.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

Chairman: Is there anyone who would like to address the Planning
Commission? :

No public participation.

The next order of business is the attorney’s report.

ATTORNEY'S REPORT:

Mr. Ross: No report Mr. Chairman. However, I would like to ask the
Planning Commission to make a motion to enter into executive session
to discuss pending litigation, act on that motion, and then make a
motion to adjourn so staff does not have to wait until the meeting

reconvenes.

The next order of business is the directorfs comments.

DIRECTOR/ 8 COMMENTS:

No comments. The director had asked earlier to be excused for a family
emergency.

The next order of business is commissionerfs comments.

COMMISSIONER! 8 COMMENTS:

Chairman: Do any of the Commissioners have any questions or comments?

Ms. Phelps: Just a comment for the family entertainment center.

Buffering of . the commercial development abutting a residential

subdivision and the screening of the trash receptacle will be a concern.
at the time of the submittal of the site plan.

Ms. Barnette: We, the Planning Commission, are looking at whether or not
the City’s developments are sultable, and those with issues should not
be presented to us without a staff recommendation ox the Commission

allowing public participation.
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RESUBMISSION

N OCTOBER 26, 2010
Application Number: Z\ O -1 2 Date Plat Submitted: August 27, 2010

Date Presented: =0 \evrmioov 23 2010

Name of Owner; MPWS, LLC ATTN: John White-Spunner NOVEMBER 18, 2010

Address: 3201 Dauphin Street  Mobile AL 36606 Telephone #251)471-1000
(Street or P.O. Box) (City) (State)  (Zip Code)

Name of Authorized Agent, if other than owner:_Rester and Coleman Engineers, Inc.

Address: 66 Midtown Park West ~ Mobile AL 36606 Telephone #(251)479-4518
(Street or P.O. Box) (City) (State) (Zip Code) ‘

Subdivision: Lake Forest Plaza
Lot(s): _lot2 Unit _N/A

X Two (2) copies of legal description of the subject property.

X Two (2) copies of subdivision plat or site plan drawn to scale,

(28" x 36").
X List of the names and mailing addresses for the adjacent property

owners (Date Subrmtted August 27,2010
OCTOBER 26, 2010

Meeting Dates: | NOVEMBER. 18, 2010
Planning Commission: Selovrn e 22, 20\0
City Council: Oexo\Oar V2 D3OI

Reason(s) for requesting the Zoning Amendment:

To accomodate a bowling alley

SIGNATURE QF OWNER OR AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

(Application for a Zoning Amendment information shall be that of the owner of the subject property).

Revised: March 18, 2004




PPLICATION FOR ZONING AMENDMENT

STATE OF ALABAMA)
COUNTY OF BALDWIN)
CITY OF DAPHNE)

This is to certify that I (we) the undersigned am the owner(s) of said property and do hereby request
the City of Daphne to grant a Zoning Amendment for said property for the reasons outlined herein:

1) Description of property for which amendment is requested:

a) Address 577" +/- South of the Southwest corner of Lawson Road and Baldwin County

Road No. 13

b) Name of Subdivision _Lake Forest Plaza

c) Lot numbers involved in change _Lot 2

d) Total acreage of change _4.4408 Ac.

€) Recorded in Map Book _N/A Page _N/A
f) Owned in whole by the undersigned? _ Yes

g) If owned in part, name(s) of co-owner(s) :

2) Zoning change requested:

a) Present classification of property _B-1
b) Reclassification desired __ B-2
c) Character of neighborhood __Business/School/Residential

3) Certifications:

ATTN: John White-Spunner

a) Owner's Name _ MPWS, LLC
b) Address 3201 Dauphin Street  Mobile, AL 36606

©) Telephone Number _(251)471-1000
d) Date August 27, 2010

Signature of Property Owner

Signature of Property Owner
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Adrienne Jones

From: Gulf Bowl [gulfbowl@gulftel.com]

Sent: Wednesday, November 10, 2010 2:27 PM
To: ajonesdpln@bellsouth.net

Subject: Eastern Shore Entertainment Center, Inc.
Adrienne:

| do not have email addresses for the planning commission. Can you forward this email to them or send me their email
address so | may forward this to them. | have already sent this to the City Council.

Dear City Council Members and Planning Commission Members:

The Cole Family wanted each of you to know why we have moved forward with the Family Entertainment Center, Inc. on
County Road 13 & Lawson. We wanted each of you to know how we have gotten to this point and time.

Back in April 2010 we applied for a USDA Government Guaranteed Loan and it was approved in July 2010. After
searching Daphne we decided that the piece of property at the Renaissance Center would be great. We spent close to
$50,000 getting this property engineered, surveyed, appraised and we were almost ready to close on this property. The
bank was doing the title work and found out about the bonds & covenants that were placed on this property for
improvements which were never disclosed to us until that point.

The banks attorney at that time felt uneasy with this and told us we would be responsible for about $25,000 a year for
the next 28 years above and beyond sales tax and property tax. At that time we had a offer on the table for $400,000
for 3.5 acres. Mr. Terry Olgletree had gone up on us one time already from $375,000 because we could not close the
loan within a certain amount of time. So when the bonds were not disclosed to us up front, | think everyone got
nervous including the bank.

Then we had a phone call from Sharon Wright and Matt White about County Road 13 & Lawson property. The first thing
[ ask them both, are there any restrictions, bonds and is it zoned properly. They both said yes it was zoned correctly. So
we preceded with the survey, appraisals, engineering etc. and spent another $15,000 and come to find out it is zone
incorrectly. Now we are $75,000 in the down and stunned. So Matt White and Sharon told us that we might could get
this piece of property rezoned. Itis in a great location and everyone really thought it would be the perfect spot. So the
hearings begin! Wow, we had no idea that we would have funding in place for a beautiful center and no home for it.

After the last council meeting we attended, we decided to try the Renaissance Center one more time. The bank felt like
if we could offer less money and put the difference in a CD with the bank, to pay on the bonds, that they would consider
us going back to Renaissance. So we made a lower offer on the property at Renaissance Center about two weeks ago
and Mr. Ogletree turned down the offer and came back with the amount of $950,000 for the same lot and a $25,000
non refundable retainer fee. So of course we could not afford that property.

Now we are still stuck with an approved loan and no home for this FEC. We really have gone off information given to us
by the real estate people, listening to the planning commission & city council. The other problem that we face are the
land prices and comps. Our loan is set and cannot be changed. So finding a piece of property that will appraise high and
sell at a lower rate has been a challenge. There are also stipulations on this loan that it has to be withina 3 to 5 mile
radius of the Renaissance Center due to the business plan that was approved by USDA.

So the above has been a challenge for us and a challenge for the City of Daphne as well. We do not want anyone in Lake
Forrest upset with us about this project and we do not know where to go from here. We have asked for an extension
due to the loan expiring 12/31/2010, but have not heard back from the bank as of today.
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Thank you so much for your time.

rank & Sonya Cole
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«ALLOWING THE CITY OF DAPHNE TO POST PUBLIC NOTICE SIGNS ON THE
PROPERTY FOR WHICH AN APPLICATION FOR A ZONING AMENDMENT HAS

BEEN SUBMITTED TO THE CITY COUNCIL.

I hereby agree to allow the City of Daphne to post on my property, for which an application for a
zoning amendment has been submitted to the City Council, a sign or sign(s) notifying the general
public of said request. I understand the City of Daphne shall erect and maintain said sign(s) for the

prescribed period of time and remove the same.

August 27, 2010 fé Ay (s e
Date Signatdre of Property Owner
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MPWS, LLC
REZONING APPLICATION
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LAWSON ROAD AND BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13
EXHIBIT "A"

(LAKE FOREST PLAZA)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

(TO BE KNOWN AS LOT 2, LAKE FOREST PLAZA)

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 198, LAKE FOREST, UNIT 22, AS
PER PLAT RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 8, PAGE 73 OF THE PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF
BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE ALONG THE EAST BOUNDARY OF SAID LAKE
FOREST, UNIT 22, RUN N 00° 18' 45" E 439.46 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF
THE PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE CONTINUING N 00° 18' 45" E ALONG
SAID EAST BOUNDARY OF SAID LAKE FOREST, UNIT 22, RUN A DISTANCE OF 668.84
FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN S 42° 00' 20" E 718.50 FEET TO A POINT ON THE
WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY ROAD NO. 13; THENCE ALONG SAID
WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY ROAD NO. 13, RUN S 14° 34' 56" W
143.46 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN N 89° 45' 17" W 448.37 FEET TO THE POINT
OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 4.4408 ACRES.
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MPWS,LLC
LAKE FOREST PLAZA
ZONING APPLICATION
ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNERS LIST

MPWS, LLC
3201 DAUPHIN ST
MOBILE, AL 36606

ETHINGTON JAMES A & TOMALEE A
114 FERNWOOD CIR
DAPHNE, AL 36526

RIOS ALVIN RAY & SUE ANN
116 FERNWOOD CIR
DAPHNE, AL 36526

SHORE CAROL A
117 FERNWOOD CIR
DAPHNE, AL 36526

PALMER JOANNA E
472 RIDGEWOOD DR
DAPHNE, AL 36526

WOODWARD BEN ET AL
474 RIDGEWOOD DR
DAPHNE, AL 36526

CAIN SHIRLEY M
476 RIDGEWOOD DR
DAPHNE, AL 36526

MICSAN JAMES R & DANIELA P
PO BOX 1465
DAPHNE, AL 36526

APPLETON STEVEN D & ANGELA B
480 RIDGEWOOD DR
DAPHNE, AL 36526

YODER ZANE B & JANICE E

482 RIDGEWOOD DR
DAPHNE, AL 36526
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BALDWIN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION
2600 NORTH HAND AVE
BAY MINETTE, AL 36507

EASTERN SHORE CHRISTIAN CENTER
9078 LAWSON RD
DAPHNE, AL 36526

LAKE FOREST OWNERS ASSOCIATION

PO BOX 1087
DAPHNE, AL 36526
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/A WHITESPUNNER & ASSOCIATES, INC

Past Bffice Bax 7475, Mebile, Alahama 38670-08475
TEL: ZRLATLIONG | rax: 2514714784

September 23, 2010

Daphne Planning Commission Members
Daphne City Council

Re: Eastern Shore Family Entertainment Center — Lawson Road and County Road 13

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen:

We write to you regarding a multi-million dollar Family Entertainment Center we have the good
fortune to locate in the Daphne Community. The Cole Family has been operating family oriented
bowling facilities since 1959 and most recently has built a family entertainment center in Foley that
includes a well known restaurant and arcade. The Cole Family projects that the facility will generate
$75,000 in sales tax revenue for the City of Daphne and create 43 new jobs paying an average of $10.90
per hour. These wages would be spent in the local community.

White-Spunner & Associates, Inc. has worked closely with the City Staff, Planning Commission members
and local residents to listen to any suggestions for the development and will make what changes that
are feasible resulting from these conversations. As with any worthwhile project, there are things to be
addressed and we stand ready to address additional concerns.

Enclosed is a conceptual site plan depicting the development. We look forward to assisting the City of
Daphne in locating a new community business member. Please call me with any questions ar
suggestions.

Sincerely,

E. Matthew White
President

EMW/ihl
Encl.
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YA WHITESPUNNER & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Post Office Box 7475, Mahile, Alahama 36670-0475
TEL: 2514711000 | Fax: 2514711785

September 17, 2010

Mrs. Adrienne Jones

Director of Community Development
City of Daphne

PO Box 400

Daphne, AL 36526

Re: Lake Forest Plaza

Dear Adrienne:

I am enclosing a conceptual drawing that shows what the ownership of the entire
14 acres envisions for the property. As each parcel is developed, the usage will
dictate how the buildings, landscaping, parking, etc. will deviate from the conceptual.

Sincerely,

E. Matthew White
President

EMW/jhp
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August 26, 2010

Eastern Shore Entertainment Center, Inc.
Daphne, Al. 36535

RE: Daphne Bowling Center

Please find attached a history of our current business, products and services that we will bring to the
Daphne area, market needs and employment opportunities that are strictly guided by USDA.

We also want the City of Daphne to know that we anticipate bringing in close to $75,000 a year in city
sales tax (if | understand the rate to be currently 3%) and we know that we will bring in a beautiful

entertainment center that the City of Daphne will be proud of.

We also rely on part of our income from alcohol sales and want to be sure that the City of Daphne
knows that we take pride in our center and follow all the strict rules and regulations when it comes to
serving alcohol. Keep in mind that we are a family oriented entertainment center and all aspects of our
income depend on arcade, bowling food and beverage, birthday parties and alcohol sales. If there is any
doubt that this will be a issue with the City of Daphne, please let us know. We understand that we are
close to schools and a church on County Road 13/Lawson as we are here in Foley. We take pride in our
business and we want you to know that. Our staff is well trained and our customer service skills are top

notch.
Respectfully,

@ OVUNC C@\/Qj\w

Sonya Cole
251/943-4595 office
251/747-0298 cell
www.gulfbowl.com
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Jan Dickson

From: "Adrienne Jones" <ajonesdpin@belisouth.net>
To: wJan Dickson™ <jandplcr@belisouth.net>

Sent: Thursday, September 23, 2010 1:33 PM
Subject: FW: Eastern Shore Family Entertainment Center

From: Gulf Bowl [mailto:gulfbowl@gulftel.com]
Sent: Thursday, September 23, 2010 1:22 PM

To: ajonesdpln@bellsouth.net

Subject: Fastern Shore Family Entertainment Center

Adrienne,

| have forwarded several letters to you from residences and coaches who have sent them to me in
support of our Family Entertainment Center for the Eastern Shore.

Just a few concerns going into this meeting that we wanted you and the planning commission to know.
We have already been approved for this loan by USDA and Vision's Bank for this center in Daphne, Al
One of our major concerns is that our funding with USDA will expire December 31, 2010 and we will
have to start all over again. Not sure we want to go down that road again. The paperwork and the
funding process was very long and detailed.

We also were under the impression that when we signed the contract with White-Spunner it was
already zoned B2. That played a big factor in the selection of this property, so you can imagine the deep
sinking feeling we have knowing that our time is running out on this USDA loan guarantee and the
property being zoned B1 with no bowling centers allowed.

The other concern is the stigma of a "bowling alley" which is not what we are building. That term was
used in the 70's. We are building a Family Entertainment Center that will be "no smoking" and family
oriented . It will have 24 Brunswick lanes, arcade, laser tag, family restaurant, snack bar, adult pool table
room and party rooms,

It was brought up several times at the site preview meeting about the other property and why we did
not go there. | am sure most of the commission knows that USDA & Vision's Bank would not allow us to
go thru with that purchase of the property at the Renaissance Center due to the bonds. We are ready to
break ground as soon as we can.

It is really crucial that we get this project off the ground as the funding was a nightmare and will of
course expire soon.

Respectfully

The Cole Family
251/747-0298 cell
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SUPPORT
Citizen Comments
= NOTICE--

The following information is a compilation
of support for the proposed rezoning. Most
documents were submitted for the original
September 23" Planning Commission

public hearing.
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September 24, 2010

Sharon White

WHITE-SPUNNER & ASSOCIATES, INC.
3201 Dauphin Street

Mobile, Alabama 36606

Dear Sharon White,

Thank you for asking us about our knowledge of the Gulf Bowl and its potential Daphne
project.

The Alliance has worked with Gulf Bowl owners in the past and we have watched it grow
from a small, low tech, small employer in Foley to a major entertainment center featuring high
tech games and bowling and a very popular restaurant. Owners have presented us with
information on their proposed Daphne project and it appears that it would add something new
to the area and would be a nice generator of sales tax dollars.

We are not involved with their efforts to buy and/or rezone property and are not
offering any opinion on these matters, but our past experience with the organization has been

very positive.

Sincerely,

Robert Ingram
President/CEO
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From: Gulf Bowl [gulfbowl@gulftel.com]

Sent: Tuesday, September 07, 2010 1:08 PM
To: ‘Sharon Wright'

Subject: FW: Letter CSU

Sharon, here is a letter of support by Columbia Southern University. They have over 400 employees now and
expanding.

From: Brittany Berry [mailto:brittany.berry@columbiasouthern.edu]
Sent: Tuesday, September 07, 2010 1:03 PM

To: Guif Bowl

Subject: RE: Letter

Here you go. ©
To Whom this may concern:

Columbia Southern University has been working with the Gulf Bowl in Foley, Alabama for the last 3 years. Many of our
staff enjoy the facility with family and friends and when we have company events we continue to cafl on Guif Bowl. |
personally know the owners who continue to go out of their way to make our events a great time. The facility is top of
the line with great food and professional staff. Each year we have company events at their facility and it is always a
huge success for us. {think having Gulf Bowl in Foley, Alabama has made a huge impact on our community and our

company.

Sincerely,

Chantell M. Cooley

Columbia Southern University

Executive Vice President of Admissions/Partnership Development
251-224-0541

800-977-8449 ext 1121

www.columbiasouthern.edu

Brittany Berry

Executive Assistant to the Executive Vice President of Admissions/ Partnership Devefopment
800-977-8449 ext. 1154 | (251) 224-0591- Direct Line

Fax: 251-224-0580

PO Box 3110 | Orange Beach, AL 36561

brittany.berry@columbiasouthern.edu

S kokckok kiR sk ok okl R R R oR i R Rl R R ok ol ok ok ek ks R ek sk ok kol

Become a Partner. Build a Future.
Ask me how to recelve a 10 % tuition discount!
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Sharon Wright

From: Guif Bow! [guifbowl@guiftel.com]
Sent: Monday, September 06, 2010 9:22 AM
To: 'Sharon Wright'

Subject: FW: High Rollers Sign Ups

This group from CSU Columbian Southern University had a great time and this is their add to start up another league. If
you will fook at the bottom there are written quotes from some of their employees.

From: Michelle Miller [mailto:michelle.miller@columbiasouthern.edu]
Sent: Monday, August 09, 2010 1:32 PM

To: CSU-Broadcast

Cc: Guif Bowl

Subject: High Rollers Sign Ups
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some bowl with us this
2010/2011 Winter League
Short Season

Meet this Friday August
13th at 330 P

Start bowling Friday August
20th at 3:30 PM

treasurerfées and prize
flnd.J

1to bowl

3 He!p us guw
-thls eague

The best sound in the

The CSU bDle

world Is hearlng A0 pms some thhe gre peo-—
drop, come ,ndjom us atCSU lthor _ghty
for the fun and frient: I /ith

. g
e KEN St}mn

has grown my. respect
forthe people that )
workwith. It is & }»Dod

the end Ufthe week
~~Rndtew Hanes



Sharon Wﬁghf{

From: Gulf Bowl [gulfbowl@gulftel.com]
Sent: Tuesday, September 07, 2010 1:08 PM
To: ‘Sharon Wright'

Subject: FW: Letter CSU

Sharon, here is a letter of support by Columbia Southern University. They have over 400 employees now and
expanding.

From: Brittany Berry [mailto:brittany.berry@columbiasouthern.edu]
Sent: Tuesday, September 07, 2010 1:03 PM

To: Gulf Bowl

Subject: RE: Letter

Here you go. ©

To Whom this may concern:

Columbia Southern University has been working with the Gulf Bowl in Foley, Alabama for the last 3 years. Many of our
staff enjoy the facility with family and friends and when we have company events we continue to call on Gulf Bowl. |
personally know the owners who continue to go out of their way to make our events a great time. The facility is top of
the line with great food and professional staff. Each year we have company events at their facility and it is always a
huge success for us. | think having Gulf Bowl in Foley, Alabama has made a huge impact on our community and our

company.

Sincerely,

Chantell M. Cooley

Columbia Southern University

Executive Vice President of Admissions/Partnership Development
251-224-0541

800-977-8449 ext 1121

www.columbiasouthern.edu

Brittany Berry

- Executive Assistant to the Executive Vice President of Admrsszons/ Partnership Deveiopment
800-977-8449 ext. 1154 | (251) 224-0591- Direct Line

© Fax: 251-224-0580

PO Box 3110 | Orange Beach, AL 36561

brittany.berry@columbiasouthern.edu
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Become a Partner. Build a Future.
Ask me how to receive a 10 % tuition discount!
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CITY OF DAPHNE,

I AM WRITING ON BEHALF OF GULF BOWL IN FOLEY,
ALABAMA. AS A TEACHER IN THE BALDWIN COUNTY [ CAN
ATTEST TO THE QUALITY OF MANAGEMENT AND SERVICES
TO THE COMMUNITY OF FOLEY. GULF BOWL IS ALWAYS
WILLING TO HELP THE SCHOOLS IN ANY WAY POSSIBLE.

AS A PARENT OF TWO SMALL CHILDREN | HAVE NEVER HAD
ANY RESERVATIONS ABOUT TAKING THEM TO GULF BOWL.
IT IS A FAMILY ORIENTED SAFE ENVIRONMENT. THE CITY
OF DAPHNE WILL BE NOTHING BUT PLEASED WITH WHAT

GULF BowL WILL BRING TO YOUR COMMUNITY.

SINCERELY,

RuUsTY HINSON
FoLEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL.
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Foley Intermediate: Highlights > "Bowling Tournament Winners"
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Library
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Principal’s Corner
About The School
Handbook
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School 5@aff
Forms

Spotlight
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Fing Arts

beQ & Organvat(ona
Community Services
Guidance

Athlfetics

Sports
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Alumni

Alurmnt

| Bowling Tournament Winners

Wednesday, Oecemper 09, 2009

Print Emall

We have had fun bowling at the
Gulf Bowl! during P.E. on Fridays.
Coach Anderson had a Bowling
Tournament. The bowling
tournament winners for 51 grade
girls are: 15t P!ace Kaylee Vines, 2" Place Natalee
Grumbley, and 3™ Place Emily Ivey. The winners for
5! grade Boys are: 15 Place Miguel Lopez, 2" Place
Davtd Esparza, 53" place Kyle Melton. The winners for
the 6th grade girls are: 1%t Place Taylor Knighten, 2nd
Place Olivia Shoots, 3™ Place Jenny Pham. The
winners for 6 grade boys are: 1% Place Bailey

Thompson, 2" Place Osman Valladares, 3™ Place Wil
McWatters. Congratulations to all winnersli!

View ail Hightights Print . Email

| Mighlights

Welcnma Back, Students!
Supply Lists

CHISTIAN MURRAY 'NINS
SCHOLARSHIR!

Archery Cluts
Mationsls

[0Ls 1o

Fock Hop

! more articles. ..

n Contrel i the School l

Download Flyer aboit
Bullying

Homework Hoffine

)‘4 School{ Sites

Copyrighl € 20092010 Folay Imermediate
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To whom it may concem;

As & properiy owner in Lake Forest | would like fo express my support of the Family
Entertainment Center that is proposed for the groperity located on the corner of Lawson 8d and
Cnty Bd 13, behind the Lake Forest subdivision. My home is within 500 f of where this
proposed site is located and | feel this center will be a positive enhancement to our subdivision.
! believe this s 3 grest location for the center because it will be a family entertalnment center
right next door fwithin walking distance) to the largest family subdivision in our area. In
addition this center will be 3 great asset to the city of Daphne as it will provide jobs and
revenus in 3 ime when our city really needs them. 1t will also keep our money io our city and

not spent in Foley, Bay Minetie or Mobils.
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- o |
é S a@}»@mnga
L

104 Cherryhill Dr,

Daphnes, AL, 36526




Dear City of Daphne:

We are long time residents of Lake Forest and use the Lawson Road entrance/exit frequently. We
understand there is a proposed Family Entertainment Center off Co, Rd. 13 near Lawson Rd, ‘We are in
total support and favsr of the Family Entertainment Center and the proposed si jte. Children, adults and
especially Teenagers need a family friendly place to go for fun in Daphne. Thisis an excellent location for
stch a center and we feel it'will be a big asset fo the ares,

Thank vou for your tims,

Sincarely; .
Bt (P dnilpn
Ol (LD /9~
" Bob and Jane Anderton
107 Pagan Circle
Daphne, AL
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1 muoke Loke Forest subdivision my home and hove for o number of years. In regards to o new
bawfmg alley being built in Daphne adiocent to Lake Forest, § think jt's g great idea. The entire
Fastern Shore will benefit from it. Af the present time you have 1o go 1o Mobile or Foley to
enjoy bowling ond Fd rather not hove to trovel, Plus, Vd prefer to spend my money-in Daphne if
possible.

Piegse approve the bowling alley at Lawson and 13,

Thonk you,

5&7‘1} Trione
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To whom i may conoem;

As 3 property owner in Lake Forest | would fike to express my support of the Family
Enteriainment Center that is proposed for the property located on the corner of Lawson Bd and
Cnty Rd 13, behind the Lake Forest subdivision. | believe this is a great location for the center
as it will be 3 family entertainment center right next door to the largest family subdivision In
our area. In addition this center will be a grest asset 1o the city of Daghne as it will provide jobs
and revenue In a Hime when our city really needs . 1 will also keep our communities dollars

spent within our communily.
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To Whom it May Concern

{ live in Daphne in the Lake Forest community and 'm in favor of the proposed Family Entertainment
Center at County Road 13 and Lawson Road. Daphne is in need of a facility where people of ali ages can
go for entertainment. Please vate yes on allowing this center at the proposed location in Daphne.

Anne Trione
Lake Forest Resident
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To the City of Daphne:

I am writing this letter in support of the family enterfainment center going in on county
road 13, that backs up to Lake Forest. Ithink this would be a great asset to the city of
Daphne and the families of the eastern shore, This facility would generate income for the
city, which I think the city conld use and also would generate jobs. Tamalsc a
homeowner of Lake Forest and I do not see this hurting property values, I see it as a great
asset, especially with so many families living in Lake Forest and the ¢ity of Daphne,
these families would spend their money here in Daphne, instead of going to Mobile, Bay
Minetie or Foley. We need to put Daphne back on the map and 1 think putting a family
entertainment center would not only be great for the city of Daphne, but it would bring
familicgAfom ﬁih;:} ciﬁ'ﬁi {egxperience the eastern shore.

T
el A
vi L /
Téson Boylan

118 Chatam Loop
Daphnoe, Al 36526
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Ssptember 27, 2010
City of Daohne
RE: Eastern Shore Entertainment Center

s in reference to the family entertainment caenter that is 1o be incated on County Road 13 & Lawson
In Daphng, AL | have been g residence of Lake Forrest community for the past 15 yearsand fam also a
teague bowler currently bowling &t The Guif Bowl in Foley. | have known ﬁm Cole Family forover 20
years and they have done a great jﬁ%; with The Sulf Bowl in respect 1o 2 besutihyl center and customer

cz. | know that they will bring 3 beautiful Family Entertainment iz =r 1o the Daphne areg and | am
in full suppart of this center on Courty Road 12 & Lawson.

My wife an saj were at the meeting last week for the Lake Forrest residence snd we cannot attend the
meeting on Thursday, September 22, 2010, ¥ you have any questiong, please feel fres 1o contact me.
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September 2010

To Whom It May Concern:

Gulf Bowl has been a very positive addition to Foley. They have been in the area for a
very long time and the move to the new location in Foley has made things even better
than before. We started a Church Bowling Team 3 years ago and it has brought a lot of
people together. I have seen the new location cater to Schools, Youth Groups, Church
Groups, Seniors, Men and Woman groups that have a passion for bowling. The arcade is
a great place for young and old. The restaurant is a wonderful place for lunch and dinner.

I would support their opening another Bowling Center and think it would benefit any
community.

Sincerely,
Cindy Deemer
FUMC Church Financial Secretary

And
Bowler
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OPPOSITION
Citizen Comments
=N TTCK -

The following information is a compilation
of opposition to the proposed rezoning,.
Most documents were submitted for the
original September 23" Planning
Commission public hearing.
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Jan and Byron Yoder
482 Ridgewood Drive
Daphne, Al 36526
251/626-3743

Adrienne D. Jones

Director of Community Development
Planning & Zoning Department

P.O. Box 400

Daphne, Al 36526

September 8, 2010

Re: Lot 2, Lake Forest Subdivision
4.44 acres
SW of Lawson Rd and Co 13
Zoning Amendment from B to B2

Dear Adrienne ID, Jones and Committes:

We live on the corner of Ridgewood and Lawson Rosd, bordering the above property.
We have lived here for over 30 years and have the reasonable expectation that any
mmmediate neighbors would be residential or at the most, B1 local business.

With the ever-declining residential property values, we feel the change from B1 to B2
and the potential presence of a bowling alley behind ofrr home, would further decrease
and actually devastate our home value as well as affecting several other homes in this
area. As residents of Lake Forest, even though we are¢ on a comer and border the above
property, we would never be allowed to change our own zoning to B2 to compensate for
the nuisances we would suffer. Due to our proximity:to a school and church, we already
face traffic nightares at certain times during the day.

Although a bowling alley would be nice to have in Daphne, we most certainly do not
want one or other sitilar businesses behind our home or our neighbor’s homes. There is
no buffer. The increase in traffic, noise and possibly all types of characters wandering
behind our homes really goes against the safety theme of this neighborhood. We bave
children walking to and from school who could be exposed to all of the above. We have
neighborhood people walking along the sidewalk adjatent to the property all the time in
this area. Our current traffic situation is already pretty much at its safety limit for a
school neighborbood. If the property is subdivided avd changed to B2, there is no way to
keep any business from opening next to our residential neighborhood.

There are many other pieces of property for sale in Daphne, even onl}ﬁghway 13, that
would not present the noise/traffic/nuisance/safety issues of this particular property.
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Page two

We are hereby stating our dislike and disapproval of the proposed changes, both for
subdividing and rezoning.

Thank you for notifying us of this proposed change. We hope and beg that you will

consider the situation carefully before opening this cammunity up to further potentially
haphazard, noisy, high traffic, home devaluing, non-rgsidential development.

Sincerely,
Jan and Byron Yoder
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Subi: Ra:Guff Bowj Entertai
4 @ riainment Center
Date: 9/8/2010 10:35:07 A M. C ; j
:35; M. Gentral Daylight T,
From: MERSYODER ol.com vIn Time

To: mayorassisi@belisouth. net

Dear Mayor,
looked up the above facility in Foley, which is located behind the Tangler Center.

ttis a 7 day a weok facility, complete with restaurant, and bar, ppen all day until 12 or 1 pm. Why
would we want this facility in a residential areas, right across the Ftreef from a high school?

Please look at the website and ask your councll and your zoning \committes to do the same.
http:/Awww. gulfbowl.com/ -

Thank you,
Sincerely,

Jan Yoder

482 Ridgewood Drive
Daphne, Al 36526
251/626-3743

M r  ootin

i
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Welcome to The Gulf Bowl Website!

Home Leagues

Touraments

YODER a3

PAGE
CREE § UL 2

@.

Parties Youth Fun Photo Qallery Contact Us

SRS Junpe MRolew, ALKERIN

Click here to subscribe to our email Hist.

Welcome to The_ Gulf Bowl onlme!

Photo Gallery

Vidao Gallery

Event Listings

Contact Us

QONLINE RESERVATIONS
Open Play Prices

Coach it Up Progtam

Captain's Choice

FBA Regionals

CsU Bawling Day

Customn Video

50th Celebration

The Tanger Outlet
LETSGOBOWLINGUSA.COM
Terrific Tuesdays

Specials!

http:/fwww gulfbowl.com/

Bar The Gulf Bowl Entertalnmant Center ls open 7 days a week. We offer 24 high guality lanes
" Game Room with easy automatic scoring for Famity, friends.ard-tesguer-bowniing, Cosmic Bowling every
Pro S| Gatyrday right from 10 PM « L AM-2ii & league, have a party, or JUee-howl for fun. We
1o Shob have a full service restayras {'s Choice Sports Bar & Grlll, snack blw, party rooms,
Snack Bar upstalrs mezzaningwie

Eﬁmﬁm_mig%n%mr\?de/|'ed@m'on and
cllity., Have yourc arty, shower \naating

N

Hourg of Operation
Sunday 11 AM - 12 Midnight
Monday- Thursday 9 AM - 12 Midnight
Friday & Saturday 9 AM - 1:00 AM ~

teserve your lanes online!
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September 30, 2010

Daphne Council
Daphne Zoning/Planning

Re: proposed Gulf Bowl/zoning list change
Dear Council and Committee:

The residents of the Lawson/Fwy 13 area have signed petitions, written letters, and some have attended
meetings regarding the proposed bowling alley, “family entertainment” center, bar, restaurant, grill, pool
hall and gaming facility. We are not sure what else we can do to convince all of you that we do not want
this facility behind our homes.

As a whole, we feel this facility has no place butting up to a residential neighborhood. Itisnota
neighborhood improvement visibly. It is a huge facility. It will have approximately 250 to 300 parking
spaces, which probably isn’t enough for a Friday or Saturday night. It has outdoor dining. It serves
alcohol across the street from a high school. It is open until 1pm. Tt will be noisy as people come and
go. It goes against the Daphne guidelines for zoning and growth in this area. 1t will border several
homes in our neighborhood. Tt is a B2 zoned business that is trying to be put on the B1 list.

We also do not want this type of business to be removed from B2 and placed to Bl just so they can go
ahead with their plans for this facility. I believe it would set a very bad precedence for the entire city.

Yes, we have a neighborhood pizza pub/bar around the intersection corner, but it is not very big or
noisy. We have a women’s small fitness center around the corner that probably services no more than 5
to 10 women max at a time. We have a corner gas station/convenience store. These are all in the county
and out of our city’s comtrol zoning-wise, but it doesn’t mean we have to jump on the bandwagon. They
also are not very large facilities. The other primary businesses back here are offices, a day care and a
storage facility. They tend to only be noisy in the daytime hours and none of them butt up to residential
back yards. The fire station is about the noisiest thing in the back of Lake Forest with the exception of
seasonal football games and the constant flow of traffic. Quite simply, we do not need another high
traffic facility here butting up to this long-standing, previously quiet, residential neighborhood.

Highway 13 & Lawson has become a very busy, active route for the residents of Lake Forest. The
traffic situation is not good. I wouldn’t say it’s very safe for all the walkers who currently use this
intersection, both children and adults. If this bowling alley comes to fruition, it will make this
intersection even more high traffic and less safe for longer hours. Highway 13 will continue to become
busier and busier, and this high attendance facility will make it much worse, faster.

I am attaching pictures of the Gulf Bowl facility in Foley. It is on a side road behind the Tanger Center,
and has no immediate neighbors. About two or three large lots away to the south are other commercial
entities. Gulf Bowl does not butt up to a school, a church or a residential neighborhood. Would you
want this facility behind your house, and visible to you on a daily and nightly basis?
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We would love a bowling alley in the City of Daphne, but we do not want it in our back yard. We are
aware that there are several people campaigning for this facility to be put on Hway 13/Lawson, but they
do not live in the immediate area affected, and their primary goal is to have a place to bowl. They have
insinuated it is a “done deal”, and that ail but one on the council want the bowling alley here. While we
understand and sympathize with the need, we don’t understand the desire to put this facility in this
location where so many of us will be affected adversely.

Please earnestly consider the residents who do not want this facility behind our homes. We ask that you
think of our neighborhood’s benefit and not the dotllar signs of business.

Sincerely,
Jan & Byron Yoder
251/626-3743
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Page 1 of 1

Subi: Re: Comprehensive Plan and new bowling alley zoning/plan
Date: 9/18/2010 11:47:01 AM. Central Daylight Time

From:

To: i

Dear Mayor and Council: {can you please copy this to the zoning committee)

In reading Daphne's Comprehensive plan, | discovered back up for those of us who do not want this
strip facility/zoning change at the busy intersection of the Lawson/Highway 13 entrance to Lake Forest.

Page IV-3
Develop moderate to high end residential uses East of Daphne o encourage vehicutar circulation
through the downtown area and not further increase traffic congestion on Co Road 13 @

Page V-2
Future commercial development should be directed to clustered areas, not in strip fashion.

Future development policies shall not allow such problem intersections to be created.

Page 1X-18

The current Land Use and Development Ordinance has provisions for visual and noise buffering
between incompatible land uses. This resulied from complaints from residents primarily focated in East
Daphne are who are adjacent to heavy commercial development and the resulting trafiic.

Commercial development in Daphne is mainly strip type development without any clustering of similar
type businesses. The resuli is offices adjacent fo car repair next to retail. Not only has the lack of
commercial clustering resulted in an aesthetically displeasing landscape, but has also contributed
to traffic congestion.

Page IX-19

Daphne has several strong and cohesive neighborhoods which attract growth and promote stability.
Conservation of these neighborhoods should be a high priority as new industrial and
commercial and residential growth continues o oceur.

Please do consider all of this regarding the upcoming decision about this neighborhood, school district,
church, and already over-crowded intersection.

Thank you,

Jan Yoder

482 Ridgewood Drive
Daphne, Al 365286
251/626-3743
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CITY OF DAPHINE
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 23,2010 REPORT
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL - 6:00 P

. ADMINISTRATIVE PRESENTATION:

Presentation to be given by Mr. Joel Coleman, representing Rester & Coleman
Engincers and MPWS, L.L.C., to request the consideration of an amendment
to the Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance, Article XXXV, the Table
of Permitted Uses to allow a bowling alley as 2 use allowed upon Planning
Commission approval in a B-1, Local Businmess, zoming distriet. (SIX
MEMBERS WERE PRESENT AND THE MOTION FAILED TO SET
FORTH A FAVORABLE RECOMMENDATION T i [CLE
KXXV, THE TABLE OF PERMITTED USESTO AD
AS A USE ALLOWED UPON PLANNING COMMIS
B-1, LOCAL BUSINESS, ZONING DISTRICT. FOUR MEMBERS VOTED
IN THE AFFIRMATIVE, ONE DISSENTED, AND ONE ABSTAINED}.

(THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY TO SET FORTH A
FAVORABLE RECOMBMENDATION TO AMEND ARTICLE XXXV, THE
TABLE OF PERMITTED USES TO ADD
CENTER AS A USE ALLOWED UPON PLARNNING COMMISSION
APPROVAL IN A B-1, LOCAL BUSINESS, ZONING DISTRICT.)

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

o

7. ATTORNEY’S REPORT

8, COMMISSIONER’S COMMENTS

8. DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS

? 16 ADJOURNMENT

Created: Angust 26,2018 Revised: September 20, 2010 Report: September 28, 2018

3

38
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Jan Dickson

From: "Adrienne Jones" <ajonesdpln@belisouih.net> %y
To: " Jan Dickson™ <jandpler@belisouth.net>
Sent: Monday, September 20, 2010 9:49 AM

Subject: FW: Comprehensive Plan and new bowiing alley zoning/plan

From: Jane Robbins [mailto:mayorassist@bellsouth.net]

Sent: Monday, September 20, 2010 9:08 AM

To: Adrienne Jones

€Cc: mayorsmall@belisouth.net

Subject: FW: Comprehensive Plan and new bowling alley zoning/plan

FYI

Jane Robbins

Assistant to Mayor Fred Small
City of Daphne

1705 Main Street

Post Office Box 400

Daphne, AL 36526
251.621.9000
www.daphneal.com

From: MRSYODER@aol.com [mailto:MRSYODER@aol.com]

Sent: Saturday, September 18, 2010 11:47 AM

To: mayorassist@bellsouth.net; yeldingi@bellsouth.net; barnette? @belisouth.net;
johnlake3@bellsouth.nef; ronscott5@belisouth.net; Boulwares@belisouth.net; palumbo7@belisouth.net
Subject: Re: Comprehensive Plan and new bowling alley zoning/plan

Dear Mayor and Council: (can you please copy this o the zoning committes)

In reading Daphne's Comprehensive plan, | discovered back up for those of us who do not want this strip
facility/zoning change at the busy intersection of the Lawson/Highway 13 entrance to Lake Forest.

Page IV-3
Develop moderate to high end residential uses East of Daphne to encourage vehicular circulation through
the downtown area and not further increase traffic congestion on Co Road 13

Page V-2
Future commercial development should be directed fo clustered areas, not in strip fashion.

Future development policies shall not allow such problem intersections to be created.

Page IX-18

The current Land Use and Development Ordinance has provisions for visuaf and noise buffering between
incompatible land uses. This resulted from complaints from residents primarily located in East Daphne
are who are adjacent to heavy commercial development and the resulting traffic.

Commercial development in Daphne is mainly strip type development without any clustering of simifar
type businesses. The result is offices adjacent to car repair next to retail. Not only has the lack of
commercial clustering resulted in an aestheticaily displeasing landscape, but has also contributed to
traffic congestion.

Page IX-19
Daphne has several strong and cohesive neighborhoods which attract growth and promote stability.
Conservation of these neighborhoods should be a high priority as new industrial and commercial

and residential growth continues to occur.
143
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church, and already over-crowded intersection.

Thank you,

Jan Yoder

482 Ridgewood Drive
Daphne, Al 36526
251/626-3743
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TO: Ms. Adrienne Jones

RE: Objections to Zoning Change of Property at Lawson Rd & County 13 from B-1 to B-2

Ms. Jones,

Enclosed are letters of protests from residents who live close to the proposed site. Would you please
see that the members of the committee receive copies so that all are aware.

Sincerely,
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SECTION TOTREZONE PROPERTY LOCATED AT LAWSON BB &
| PROMADE T B S '

As 2 current resident of Lake Forest Community, it has come to my attention that a request has been
rnade to change the zoning on property located at Lawson Road and County Road 13 from Bl (locat
business) to B2 { general business).

It is my understanding that this change has been requested in order to build a family entertainment
center (bowling alley) on this property.

This property backs up to severai residences and is in a mainly residential area, Lake Forest, Tiawasee,
Sehoy, Crystal Ridge, and Canterbury. Beside the fact that this area is residential, the Daphne High
Schoo! is within 1000 feet of this proposed property.

All the other current businesses in the area are local and most are businesses that are only open 8am
until 5pm.

Rezoning this property to B2 and allowing the construction of a bowling alley will make the area
undesirable as a residence and degrade the values of all the homes in this area. '

Currently the traffic does not flow at certain times of the day at this intersection and this propo$a§ will
certainly increase traffic causing even more traffic problems.

A family entertainment center (bowling alley) sometimes have restaurants and lounges and usually
always sell alcoholic beverages. This is not needed across the street from a high school. This could
potentially become a hangout for teenagers.

The noise level will potentially be elevated and at undesirable hours.

If food is sold at the bowling alley, there will be a need for dumpsters and with only garbage pick up
_once a week, there is a chance of bad odors and attracting rodents, a real health threat.

Please accept this letter as an objection to the proposal to rezone the property located at Lawson Road
and County Road 13. '

s ~ September }L:%/ ,2010

ey @é Al
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SHIRLEY M. CAIN
476 Ridgewood Drive
Daphne, Al. 36526

September 17, 2010
Mr. Adrienne Jones

Director of Community Development
Planning and Zoning Department

P. 0. Box 400
Daphne, Alabama 36526
RE: Rezoning property at the corner
of Lawson Road and County Road 13
Dear Mr. Jones:

The purpose of this letter is to oppose the rezoning of the property at the Southwest
corner of Lawson Road and County Road 13 from Zone B-1, local business to B-2
general business.

T understand a bowling alley will be built on that property. That will be a high traffic
business, and the Lawson Road-County Road 13 intersection is a very congested corner
several times a day, particularly in the morning and afternoon. Further, Ridgewood has
become a shorteut from Highways 98 and 90, and it is not unusual to have six to eight
cars at the Ridgewood-Lawson Road intersection, presenting a traffic problem for

Iake Forest. Bowling alleys have leagues, which could be upwards to 100 people, and the
leagues would be coming at a time people are going home after work, parents trying to
get in and out of the day care on Lawson Road to pick up children, further adding to the
congestion.

Bowling alleys usually serve alcohol, and in all probability that will be the case for that
establishment. There are six subdivisions within about a mile radius, a high school
within a half block, and church across the street and another church a half block away that
would be impacted. Bowling alleys tend to be hangouts and their hours go into the late
night hours, and for the Lake Forest residents in the Lawson Road area, this will certainly
have a tremendously adverse impact on our quality of life.

I ask that the City of Daphne protect their residential areas and deny the zone change.
Thank you.

Very truly yours,

_ain
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VT OF DAPHNE
PLANNINGARND L0k
CONMMUNITY DEVELOPL 00

SUBIEETY 17 DBIECTIONTOREION S 210
FROM B1 TO B2

“As7a currentresident-of take-Forest Comiriarity, it has come tormy aitention that-a request has been
" made to change the zoning on property located at Lawsan Road and County Road 13 from B1 (local
business) to B2 ( general business).

It is my understanding that this change has been requested in order to build a family entertainment
center (bowling alley) on this property. '

This property backs up to several residences and is in @ mainly residential area, Lake Forest, Tiawasee,
Sehoy, Crystal Ridge, and Canterbury. Beside the fact that this area is residential, the Daphne High
School is within 1000 feet of this proposed property.

All the other current businesses in the area are local and most are businesses that are only open 8am
until 5pm.

Rezoning this property to B2 and allowing the construction of a bowling alley will make the area
undesirable as a residence and degrade the values of all the homes in this area.

Currently the traffic does not flow at certain times of the day at this intersection and this proposal will
certainly increase traffic causing even more traffic problems.

A family entertainment center (bowling alley) sometimes have restaurants and lounges and usually
always sell alcoholic beverages. This is not needed across the street from a high school. This could
potentially become a hangout for teenagers.

The noise level will potentially be elevated and at undesirable hours.

If food is sold at the bowling alley, there will be a need for dumpsters and with only garbage pick up
once a week, there is a chance of bad odors and attracting rodents, a real health threat.

Please accept this letter as an objection to the proposal to rezone the property located at Lawson Road
and County Road 13.

September ,2010
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CITY OF DAPHNE
PLANNING AND ZONING
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

TO:

SUBJECT: OBJECTION TO REZONE PROPERTY LOCATED AT LAWSON RD AND COUNTY RD 13

FROM B1TO B2
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TO: CITY OF DAPHNE
PLANNING AND ZONING
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

SUBJECT: OBIECTION TO REZONE PROPERTY LOCATED AT LAWSON RD AND COUNTY RD 13
FROM BLTOB2 & ﬁ%}mf o besdi 3y e/ 25 Iz
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CTITY OF DAPHNE
PLAMNING AND ZONING
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

CBIECTION TO REZONE PROPERTY LOCATED AT LAWSOR BD & COUNTY 8D i3
FROM B1TO B2

s et rewident of Lake Forest Community, it has come to my attention that a reguest has been
ke o Genge the zoning on property located at Lawson Road and County Road 13 from Bl (local
husiness) to B2 { general business).

it is my understanding that this change has been requested in order to build a family entertainment
center (bowling alley) on this property.

This property backs up to several residences and is in a mainly residential area, Lake Forest, Tiawasee,,
Sehoy, Crystal Ridge, and Canterbury. Beside the fact that this area is residential, the Daphne High
School is within 1000 feet of this proposed property.

All the other current businesses in the area are local and most are businesses that are only open 8am
untit 5pm.

Rezoning this property to B2 and allowing the construction of a bowling alley will make the area
undesirable as a residence and degrade the values of all the homes in this area.

Currently the traffic does not flow at certain times of the day at this intersection and this proposal will
certainly increase traffic causing even more traffic problems.

A family entertainment center (bowling alley) sometimes have restaurants and lounges and usually
always sell alcoholic beverages. This is not needed across the street from a high school. This could

potentially become a hangout for teenagers.
The noise level will potentially be elevated and at undesirable hours.

If food is sold at the bowling alley, there will be a need for dumpsters and with only garbage pick up
once a week, there is a chance of bad odors and attracting rodents, a real health threat.

Please accept this letter as an objection to the proposal to rezone the property located at Lawson Road
and Coynty Road 13.

September ,[' 8/ ,2010
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As g onrrent
made to change the zoning on property located at Lawson Road and County
business) to B2 { general business).

it is my understanding that this change has been requested in order to build a family entertainment
center (bowling alley) on this property.

This property backs up to several residences and is in a mainly residential area, Lake Forest, Tiawasee,,
Sehoy, Crystal Ridge, and Canterbury. Beside the fact that this area is residential, the Daphne High
School is within 1000 feet of this proposed property.

All the other current businesses in the area are local and most are businesses that are only open 8am
until Spm.

Rezoning this property to B2 and allowing the construction of a bowling alley will make the area
undesirable as a residence and degrade the values of all the homes in this area.

Currently the traffic does not flow at certain times of the day at this intersection and this proposal will
certainly increase traffic causing even more traffic problems.

A family entertainment center (bowling alley) sometimes have restaurants and lounges and usually
always sell alcoholic beverages. This is not needed across the street from a high school. This could
potentially become a hangout for teenagers.

The noise level will potentially be elevated and at undesirable hours.

If food is sold at the bowling alley, there will be a need for dumpsters and with only garbage pick up
once a week, there is a chance of bad odors and attracting rodents, a real health threat.

Please accept this letter as an objection to the pAroposal to rezone the property located at Lawson Road '
and County Road 13.
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TO: CITY OF DAPHNE
PLANNING AND ZONING
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

SUBJECT: OBIJECTION TO REZONE PROPERTY LOCATED AT LAWSON RD AND COUNTY RD 13
FROM B1TO B2
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To: City of Daphne
City Council Members

| .
Subject: Support to !Eallow amended use to B1 zoning of property at Lawson Road and County
Road 13 for Family Entertainment Center/Bowling Center.

As current residents of the City of Daphne/Lake Forest, we are in support of this amended use.

Name Address Date
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PAGE  91/01
/ To: City of Daphne
B / City Council Members
% Subject: Support to allow amended use to 81 zoning of property at Lawson Road and County
Road 13 for Family Entertainment Center/Bowling Center.
As current residents of the City of Daphne/Lake Forest, we are in support of this amended use.
I?Lg( Name Address Date
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CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA
ORDINANCE NO. 2011-

Ordinance to Rezone Property LLocated at the
Southwest Corner of Lawson Road and County Road 13

WHEREAS, MPWS, L.L.C., as the owner of certain real property located
within the City of Daphne, Alabama, has requested that said property be rezoned
from B-1, Local Business District to B-2 General Business District; and,

WHEREAS, said property is located at the Southwest corner of Lawson
Road and County Road 13, and being more particularly described as follows:

(TO BE KNOWN AS LOT 2, LAKE FOREST PLAZA)

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 198, LAKE FOREST, UNIT
22, AS PER PLAT RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 8, PAGE 73 OF THE PROBATE COURT
RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE ALONG THE EAST
BOUNDARY OF SAID LAKE FOREST, UNIT 22, RUN N 00° 18' 45" E 439.46 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE
CONTINUING N 00° 18 45" E ALONG SAID EAST BOUNDARY OF SAID LAKE
FOREST, UNIT 22, RUN A DISTANCE OF 668.84 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN S
42° 00" 20" E 718.50 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF
BALDWIN COUNTY ROAD NO. 13; THENCE ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT OF WAY
LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY ROAD NO. 13, RUN S 14° 34' 56" W 143.46 FEET TO A
POINT; THENCE RUN N 89° 45" 17" W 448.37 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.
CONTAINING 4.4408 ACRES.

WHEREAS, at the City of Daphne Planning Commission meeting on
November 18, 2010, the Commission considered said request and set forth an
unfavorable recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne that said
property be rezoned; and,

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed amendment has been provided to the
public as required by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public
Library and City Hall, a public hearing was held before the City Council on January 3,
2011; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and
upon consideration of the recommendation of the Planning Commission, deemed that said
application for rezoning of the above described real property is proper and in the best
interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama;
and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows:
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ORDINANCE 2011 REZONE MPWS, LLC PAGE 2

SECTION I: ZONING

That above described real property is hereby rezoned from B-1 Local
Business District to B-2 General Business District, and that the zoning ordinance
and zoning map be amended to reflect the said zoning change.

SECTION li: REPEALER.

All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this
Ordinance, in so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed.

SECTION lli: SEVERABILITY.

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph,
sentence, or part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not
affect or impair the remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and
enact each provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately and
independently of each other.

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its
approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and after publication as required by law.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS day of , 2010.

Cathy S. Barnette,
Council President

Fred Small,
Mayor

ATTEST:

David L. Cohen
City Clerk, MMC
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CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MAYOR'S REPORT

NOTES:
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CITY COUNCIL MEETING
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS

NOTES:

RECOMMENDATIONS

COUNCIL COMMENTS:
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CITY OF DAPHNE
RESOLUTION 2010-107

Acceptance of Streets and Drainage
for Oldfield Subdivision, Phase One

Whereas, the Planning Commission of Daphne granted Final Plat approval for Oldfield Subdivision, Phase
One on January 25, 2007; and,

Whereas, an inspection was conducted by the Public Works Director of the City of Daphne, and it was
determined that said streets and storm water drainage are in conformity with city standards; and,

Whereas, the Division of Public Works of the City of Daphne have accepted said streets and storm water
drainage of Oldfield Subdivision, Phase One for maintenance thereof; and,

Whereas, the City of Daphne believes it to be in the best interest of the City and to promote the health and
safety of the citizens thereof to accept and dedicate the same for maintenance as outlined in Article XVII, entitled
Subdivision Review of the City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE
AS FOLLOWS, that Oldfield Subdivision, Phase One according to the plat presented by Engineering
Development Services as recorded in office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin County, Alabama on slide
2328C&D, and said street(s) being named Devonfield Lane, Cumbria Drive, Weatherbee Park Drive, Cobham Park
Drive and Camberwell Drive hereby accepted by the City of Daphne, Alabama as a City street for maintenance.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE DAY OF , 2010.

THE CITY OF DAPHNE,
AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION

CATHY S. BARNETTE,
COUNCIL PRESIDENT

FRED SMALL,
MAYOR

ATTEST:

DAVID L. COHEN, CITY CLERK, MMC
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To:
From:

Subject:

Date:

Office of the City Clerk

Adrienne D. Jones, s /\ \ MEMORAI\TDUM

Director of Community Deveéiﬁiigi
Acceptance of Streets an rainage,
0ldfield Subdivision, Phase One
November 22, 2010

At the Thursday, November 18, 2010 regular meeting of the
City of Daphne Planning Commission, eight members were
present and the motion carried unanimously to set forth a
favorable recommendation for the City Council to take action
on the streets and drainage in 0Oldfield Subdivision, Phase
One.

Upon receipt of said documentation, please place the
resolution on the Monday, December 6, 2010 agenda for
discussion by the City Council.

Thank you,
ADJ/Jjd

Attachment (s)

1. Copy of resolution

2. Record plat

3. Correspondence from Public Works Director requesting
acceptance

4. Memorandum to Public Works Committee

cc:  file

Mr. Richard Johnson, Public Works Director
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Fred Small Richard D. }o}lnson, PE
Mayor Public Works Director
CALABAMA
The ]u]of/ee City %%,@
A
Memorandum

To: Adrienne Jones, Director; Community Development

From: Richard D.Johnson, P.E.; Public Works Director

CC:s File

Date: November 22, 2010
Re: Oldfield Subdivision, Phase One — Final Acceptance of Roads & ROW

As a follow up to my October 8, 2010 Memorandum the following has been addressed for the
above referenced development:

1. Complete set of “As Built” Drawings signed and sealed by the Project Engineer have
been submitted.

2. Complete set of material test reports signed and sealed by the Geotechnical Engineer
have been submitted.

3. Utility test reports have been submitted.

These documents have been reviewed, approved and couriered to Community Development for
archiving.

| have inspected said roads and found no material defects or deficiencies. There were some
signage issues, but Public Works Crews mistakenly replaced all deficient signage.

If you have further questions or need additional assistance, do not hesitate to contact me.

RDJ

Public Wozks Department
26435 Public Works Road  P.O.Box 400  Daphne, Alabama 36526
Phone: (251) 621-3182  Fax: (251) 621-3189
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Jan Dickson

Page 1 of 2

From: "Adrienne Jones" <ajonesdpin@belisouth.net>
To: "Jan Dickson™ <jandplcr@belisouth.net>
Sent: Wednesday, November 17, 2010 4:44 PM

Attach: Street Acceptance-Old Field.emi
Subject: FW: Oldfield Subdivision - Acceptance of Roads for Maintenance

Please orird for P

Bk

From: Adrienne Jones [mailto:ajonesdpln@bellsouth.net]

Sant: Wednesday, November 17, 2010 4:06 PM

To: 'DirectorPW'

Cc: 'Mayor Fred Small'; "Councilwoman Barnette'; ‘ed kirby'

Subject: RE: Oldfield Subdivision - Acceptance of Roads for Maintenance

Richard,

The mayor and Cathy are both Planning Commissioners, they know just as you do that |
don’t have any authority to get this before Council except through an action of the
Planning Commission. If they chose, they can discuss the matter during Commission
comments. Perhaps something can be agreed upon then.

Adrienne

From: DirectorPW [mailto:directorpw@belisouth.net]

Sent: Wednesday, November 17, 2010 3:12 PM

To: Adrienne Jones

Cc: Mayor Fred Small; Councilwoman Barnette
Subject: Oldfield Subdivision - Acceptance of Roads for Maintenance

Adrienne:

We are apparently stuck in an endlsss “Do Loop” in the process to resolve our citizen's problem
concerning public acceptance and mainienance of thelr neighborhood’s roadways.

Lat me restate the known facts of the cass:

e The Final Plat for Oldfield, Phase One was approved, signed and ceriified by the Chalnman of the
Planning Commission, Director of Community Development and interim Director of Public Works in
March of 2007. ’

¢ The Final Plat for Oldfield, Phase One was recorded in the Office of the Judge of Probate, Baldwin
County, Alabama as shown on Slids 22328 - C&D dated March 12, 2007,

e Lots have been conveyed; homes built and are now occupled by Citizens of Daphne.

& All streets, alfeys, walks, parks and other open spaces have been dedicated to the public and the
roads and HOW have been in place and in use for 42 months.

e The City of Daphne has provided limited Public Works Services (garbage, trash & recycling) to the
Chizens of the development,

e However, full acceptance of the roads and ROW has not been acted upon by the Clty,

e The failure of acceptance is due fo a multitude of factors. The primary one being the financial
failure of the developer and pending foreclosure by the lien holder.

e Also, contributing to the failure for acceptance was the change of leadership in Community
Development and Public YWorks,

e As & resuli Citizen's of Daphne are being denied basic Public Works services: Street Lighting (they
have been tumed off by the ufility), Maintenance, Sweeping, Mosquito Spraying, etc...

e The bank or developer has no practical means or ability to resolve the issue.

Furthermore:

s Public Works Staff has conducted cursory wali through inspection and inventory and found no
significant material or workmanship deficiencies.

11/22/2010
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Community Development has proposed that there remain the following issues:

1. The ceriification for the accentance of a subdivision states a right-of-way, road or property shall be free of liens or
encumbrances (r. Pickett, prior EDES emploves-enginesy would not ‘3;9?’? necessary forms) Response: Thisis e
moot point: The property is being foreciosed by the Royal Bank of Canada ~ any fiens or encumbrances will be
guisted by the act of foreclosure. However, the Putiic ROW was estfablished by the recordafion of the final plat
and are magg;e:é arrd hetd as PUBLIC ROW and cannot be sublect fo fen or adverse possession. They are free
and clear.

2. The owner was to install a fire hydrant af the entrance required by the fire marshal upon completion of Alabam

Highway 181 expansionfreconstruction. Response: This was the responsibility of the Original Owner and is m:r;f
gfaﬁsfsraé# to the new. The judgment of foreclosure will ebsolve any future owners of any prior labififies.
Fusthermore, the Improvements fo Siate éﬁ’;ﬁ*m}f 187 could be 5-7 years ouf. Are we fo wall undil then o 5‘5’;%9 fve
this issue? | hops not. The City does not have jurisdiction for the ROW (State) or the Involved ufility (Belforest
Water). If the new owner refuses to invest any more money in the project are we prepared fo hold the nine
homeowners hostage for the fire hydrant? | hopg not.

3. The owner could not oblain 3 maintenance bond in the ﬁmﬁmi of igs* parcent of the tofal cost of improvements,
Response: non-issue - the roads have been in service for 3 1 years withouf signs of material or workmanship
faiture. Why would we need a mairienance bond now?

i was exasperated to find that the action e recommended ?Ju%%z{: Works Commities had been pudled o i the
Councll Agenda by you/Mrs. Bametle. P would have apprect ’i 5 é’“ call before this happened s ?%di we could have
hammered out p@gaﬂigai problems and continued on with the accepta ﬁ{?éii

A8 a Clty, we are hers 1o serve our citizens and they come 1o rely on us for f?ééfg’} with obstacles. Somethmes our hands are
tied and we cannot do an fz?‘;éf‘eg ta slieviate thelr g;mi}ée?‘g; but sometimes we have a Bille room to maneuver. | think we
are in the latisr. We need to st down and come up with solutions for the Cilizens of Oldield.

Can we get together (you, Mrs. Bamette, maybe an Oldfield Resident and myselfy and get this before the Council? Your
help and support, as always, s appreciated,

Yours,

R

Richard . Johason, BE.
Public Works Director
26425 Public Works Road
Daphne, AL 36526
Phone: {251)1621-3182
Fax: {251} 621-3188
Cell: {261} 378-1348

directorpw@beliscuth.net
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Fred Small Bailey Yelding, Ir.

Mayor District 1
David Cohen Cathy Barnette
City Clerk District 2
Kimberly Briley John L. Lake
Finance Director/Treasurer District 3
Richard D. Johnson, P.E. Kelly D. Reese
Director of Public Works District 4
B \ Ronald Scott
74 1 . " o District 5
NG A gty
Derek Boulware
District 6
M d August Palumbo
emoranau Distriot 7
To: Councilman Bailey Yelding, Chairman; Public Works Committee
From: Richard D. Johnson, P.E.; Public Works Director
CC: Honorable Mayor Fred Small; Adrienne Jones, Community Development

Director; DMAP Inc. (Mike McLaughlin); File
Date: October 8, 2010
Re: Oldfield Subdivision, Phase One — Final Acceptance of Roads & ROW

Mr. Chairman:

These are the pertinent facts pertaining to the above reference development:

e The Final Plat for Oldfield, Phase One was approved, signed and certified by the
Chairman of the Planning Commission, Director of Community Development and Interim
Director of Public Works in March of 2007.

e The Final Plat for Oldfield, Phase One was recorded in the Office of the Judge of
Probate, Baldwin County, Alabama as shown on Slide 2328 — C&D dated March 12,
2007.

Lots have been conveyed; homes built and are now occupied by Citizens of Daphne.

e All strests, alleys, walks, parks and other open spaces have been dedicated to the
public and the roads and ROW have been in place and in use for 42 months.

o The City of Daphne has provided limited Public Works Services (garbage, trash &
recycling) to the Citizens of the development. ’

o However, full acceptance of the roads and ROW has not been acted upon by the City.
The failure of acceptance is due to a multitude of factors. The primary one being the
financial failure of the developer and pending foreclosure by the lien holder.

s Also, contributing to the failure for acceptance was the change of leadership in
Community Development and Public Works.

e As aresult Citizen’s of Daphne are being denied basic Public Works services: Street
Lighting (they have been turned off by the utility), Maintenance, Sweeping, Mosquito
Spraying, etc...

Page 1 of 2
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e The bank or developer has no practical means or ability to resolve the issue.

It is my recommendation that immediate action is taken to accept these roads and ROW and
authorize Public Works to provide all related services. This recommendation is conditioned on

the following:

1. Public Works Staff conduct a walk through inspection and inventory all deficiencies.
2. The original Developer provides all documentation pertaining to material and utilities
testing and other pertinent acceptance documentation.

3. Community Development and Planning Commission waive the two year maintenance
and surety requirements for road acceptance (The roads have been in service for 3 %2
years without signs of material or workmanship failure).

These are unique circumstances and require equally unique response by the City.

Yours,

RDJ

Attachments: Final Plat — Cldfield, Phase One

Page 2 of 2
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RESOLUTION 2010-108

Acceptance of Streets and Drainage
located in Caroline Woods Subdivision, Phase Two A

Whereas, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama has received notice that the Planning
Commission of Daphne has given Final Plat approval to Caroline Woods Subdivision, Phase Two A on November
18, 2010, and the City of Daphne hereby recommends acceptance of said street(s) located in Caroline Woods
Subdivision, Phase Two A; and,

Whereas, an inspection was made by the Director of Community Development. All reports, as well as, all
other related documents have been provided stating that said streets and storm water drainage have been installed
in conformity with city standards; and,

Whereas, an inspection was made by the Director of the Division of Public Works, and has accepted said
streets and storm water drainage of Caroline Woods Subdivision, Phase Two A; and,

Whereas, the Ultilities Board of the City of Daphne has accepted the utilities of Caroline Woods
Subdivision, Phase Two A; and,

Whereas, the developer has provided to the City a two-year construction warranty bond as required and
requests acceptance and dedication of the same for maintenance of said improvements as outlined in Article XVII,
entitled Subdivision Review of the City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE AS
FOLLOWS, that Caroline Woods Subdivision, Phase Two A according to the plat presented by Engineering
Development Services as recorded in the Judge of Probate, Baldwin County, Alabama, and said street(s) being
named Lashay Drive and Kari Lane are hereby accepted by the City of Daphne, Alabama as a city street for
maintenance.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE DAY OF , 2010.

THE CITY OF DAPHNE,
AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION

CATHY S. BARNETTE,
COUNCIL PRESIDENT

FRED SMALL,
MAYOR

ATTEST:

DAVID L. COHEN, CITY CLERK, MMC
169



To:
Fromz:

Subject:

Date:

Office of the City C eLk

. MEMORANDUM
Director of Communyz

/6§:§§;pment
Acceptance of Stre

ts and Drainage,
Caroline Woods Subdlijjfizliggse Two A"
November 19, 2010

At the Thursday, November 18, 2010 regular meeting of the
City of Daphne Planning Commission, eight members were
present and the motion carried unanimously to set forth a
favorable recommendation for the acceptance of the streets
and drainage in Caroline Woods Subdivision, Phase Two “A".

Adrienne D. Jonss,

Upon receipt of said documentation, please place the
resolution on the Monday, December 6, 2010 agenda for
acceptance by the City Council.

Thank you,
ADJ/Fd

Attachment (s)

1. Copy of resolution

2. Correspondence reqguesting acceptance

3. Petition of Acceptance of Road(s) and/or
Right (s} of Ways

4. Copy of two-year maintenance bond

cc: file

Mr. Richard Johnson, Public Works Director
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engineering development services

October 18, 2010

Ms. Adrienne Jones

Planning Director, City of Daphne
P.O. Box 400

Daphne, Alabama 36526

RE: Caroline Woods Phase ZA

Dear Ms. Jones:

I, Jason Estes, a professional engineer registered in the State of Alabama, Registration
Number 22714, do hereby certify that the streets and drainage system CAROLINE
WOODS, PHASE 2A have been constructed under my supervision in accordance with
the approved construction plans.

I further certify I have checked all test reports and that all construction materials have
been installed in accordance with the typical sections, profiles, and plan details and meet
minimum requirements as set out in the State of Alabama Highway Department’s
Standard Specifications for Highway Construction, latest edition and current revisions.
Additionally, the power has not been installed at this time. A cashier’s check for
$36,150.00 (150% of the cost of the Aid To Construction and street lights) has been
provided to the City of Daphne to be returned upon installation of power and street lights.

Therefore, 1 hereby request that the City of Daphne accept the streets for CAROLINE
WOODS, PHASE 2A.

Sincerely,

SON N. ESTES, P.E.
Project Engineer

9949 Bellaton Avenue DaphnezAlabama 36526 251-626-2122
eds@engdev.net



CITY OF DAPHNE
PETITION FOR ACCEPTANCE
OF ROAD(S) AND/OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY

SUBDIVISION NAME: CAROLINE WOODS PHASE TWO-A

LOCATION: NORTH OF MADISON PLACE PHASE TWO

THIS ACCEPTANCE OF ROADS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY is made this__15th  day of
October , 2010 by _PLANB INVESTMENTS LLC | hereinafter called the Subdivider,

owner of certain property located in Baldwin County, Alabama known as
CAROLINE WOODS PHASE TWO-A Subdivision to be recorded in the office of the

Judge of Probate of Baldwin County, Alabama; and,

WHEREAS, the Subdivider has agreed to the dedication of the roads and rights-of-way located in
said subdivision to the City of Daphne, and further warrants that said roads and rights-of-way are
complete and are in compliance with the minimum standards as outlined for construction in the City
of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance, Article XVII, entitled Subdivision Review, and
Article XI, Minimum Requirements and Required Improvements. The Subdivider further warrants
that the same are free from defects from any cause and are free and clear of any liens and
encumbrances; and,

WHEREAS, the Subdivider does hereby agree to provide a Maintenance Bond, as outlined in
Article XVII, entitled Subdivision Review, in an amount equal to ten (10) percent of the total street
and drainage improvements (§ \\ | A 2RSC ) in the subdivision for a period of two (2) years
after the date of their acceptance and dedication of the same to the City. Said bond shall be required
by the City as a condition to the acceptance and dedication of any new roads or rights-of-way within
the City; and,

WHEREAS, the Project Engineer acting on behalf of the Subdivider does hereby certify that all
roads and rights-of-ways are complete and are in compliance with the minimum standards as
outlined for construction in the City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance, Article X VII,
entitled, Subdivision Review, and Article XI, Minimum Requirements and Required Improvements.

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne, Alabama, acting by and through the recommendation of the City
of Daphne Planning Commission, has agreed to accept the responsibility for the maintenance of the
roads and rights-of-way of said subdivision subject to atwo (2) year maintenance period as described
above; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has agreed to accept the property within the confines of the road
right-of-way which does not include drainage or utility easements or any other improvements
outside of these confines.
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CITY OF DAPHNE
PETITION FOR ACCEPTANCE
OF ROAD(S) AND/OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Subdivider does
hereby dedicate the roads and rights-of-way in said subdivision to the City of Daphne, a municipal
corporation, as per the recommendation of the City of Daphne Planning Commission at their regular
meeting of _ \Yoverm\oer VR _2ovO . That said subdivision according the plat
recorded in the Judge of Probate, Baldwin County, Alabama and said streets being named

LASHAY DR -294 L F. & KARILANE-362LF.

B LoV S0 Leedte

are hereby accepted for maintenance by the City of Daphne, Alabama as a city street.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Subdivider has caused the execution of this dedication as of the
date setforth above.

Respectfully submitted,

PLAN B INVESTMENTS LLC
Name of ?}wdual or Corporat}on\

/;i/? ) zl/’fﬂa’“‘\
S

Its: f? f{é

STATE OF ALABAMA )
COUNTY OF BALDWIN )

I, the undersigned Notary Public in and for said State and County, hereby certify that
b &)ME‘JE Merans  whose name as _MANAGER, of FLefl B Jyvestm endsan
Alabama corporation or as owner of CAROIPE  XODS  FHASE Twe is signed to the foregoing
instrument, and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of
the contents of the instrument, he as such officer or owner and with full authority, executed the same
voluntarily on the day same bears date.

Given under my hand and official seal on this the | % day of _Oeto beyr 5 2010,
Nada g%a (b (NOTARY SEAL)
NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission expires: _ /[~1-20 1 2-
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CITY OF DAPHNE
PETITION FOR ACCEPTANCE
OF ROAD(S) AND/OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY

Recommendation:

Richard . Johnson, P.E. (
Public Works Director

City of Daphne

/jﬁ\ N0 A eesiroe w U aﬁmuyl/* “/MW
Adriefine D. Jones ;/
Dire¢tor of Community Development

City of Daphne

Approval:

Ed Kirby
Planning Cominissieh Chairman

City of Daphne
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BOND NUMBER 21BCSFL4657

(hereinafter called the Obligee), in the full and just sum of Eleven Thousand Eight Hundred Thirty

Five and no/100 . ($11,835.00)

_________________________________ ~77.. Dollars,

lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves,

our heirs, administrators, executors, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS, said Prmmpal has entered into a certain contract with Plan B Investments, LLC (Owner) for

2. years, general wear and tear excepted.
NOW, THEREFORE, if the said project shall be free from defects of workmanship and materials, general
wear and tear excepted, for a period of 2 years, then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise to

itness as to
Pri orpal /
T A 02{ BT et

Summit Industries, LLC

________________ G s = (8

ham Goodloe, I1I Attorney-in-fact
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Direct Inguiries/Claims to:

THE HARTFORD

BOND, T-4
P.0O. BOX 2103, 690 ASYLUM AVENUE
HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT 06115

call: 888-266-3488 or fax: 860-757-5835
Agency Code: 21-250403

Hartford Fire Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut

Hartford Casualty Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Indiana
Hartford Accident and Indemnity Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut
[:::j Hartford Underwriters Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut
I:l Twin City Fire Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Indiana

D Hartford Insurance Company of Hllinois, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Illinois

I:J Hartford Insurance Company of the Midwest, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Indiana
1::] Hartford Insurance Company of the Southeast, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Florida

having their home office in Hartford, Connecticut, (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Companies”) do hereby make, constitute and appoint,
up to the amount of unlimited:
Gaylord C. Lyon, Jr., W.E. Cadden, Charlene C. Stout, Virginia M. Byrd, Rebecca Ward
Roland G. Fry, Jr., Erling Riis, lll, J. William Goodloe, I, O.M. Ofts, IV
of
Mobile, AL

their true and lawful Attorney(s)-in-Fact, each in their separate capacity if more than one is named above, to sign its name as surety(ies) only as
delineated above by K, and to execute, seal and acknowledge any and all bonds, undertakings, contracts and other written instruments in the
nature thereof, on behalf of the Companies in their business of guaranteeing the fidelity of persons, guaranteeing the performance of contracts and
executing or guaranteeing bonds and undertakings required or permitted in any actions or proceedings allowed by law.

In Witness Whereof, and as authorized by a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Companies on July 21, 2003 the Companies
have caused these presents to be signed by its Assistant Vice President and its corporate seals to be hereto affixed, duly attested by its Assistant
Secretary. Further, pursuant to Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Companies, the Companies hereby unambiguously affirm that they are
and will be bound by any mechanically applied signatures applied to this Power of Attorney.

2t e,
Dnple, e b
3 el
&

Q-
W) o e
Paul A. Bergenholtz, Assistant Secretary David T. Akers, Assistant Vice President

STATE OF CORKECTICUT ~
g5, Hartford

COUNTY OF HARTFORD

On this 4th day of August, 2004, before me personally came David T. Akers, to me known, who being by me duly sworn, did depose and
say: that he resides in the County of Hampden, Commonwealth of Massachusetts; that he is the Assistant Vice President of the Companies, the
corporations described in and which executed the above instrument; that he knows the seals of the said corporations; that the seals affixed to the
said instrument are such corporate seals; that they were so affixed by authority of the Boards of Directors of said corporations and that he signed

his name thereto by like authority.

Scott E. Paseka
I Notary Public
CERTIFICATE My Commission Expires October 31, 2007

g

I, the undersigned, Assistant Vice President of the Companies, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing is a true and correct
copy of the Power of Attorney executed by said Companies, which is still in full force effective as of October 28, 2010.

Signed and sealed at the City of Hartford.

sesHtg,, iz
fo TS woen
w
) :

i {1937‘ 2 h
R
& /)

176

Gary W. Stumper, Assistant Vice President

POA 2005



RESOLUTION 2010-109

Acceptance of Streets and Drainage
located in Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part B

Whereas, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama has received notice that the Planning
Commission of Daphne has given Final Plat approval to Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part A on November
18, 2010, and the City of Daphne hereby recommends acceptance of said street(s) located in Dunmore Subdivision,
Phase Two, Part B; and,

Whereas, an inspection was made by the Director of Community Development. All reports, as well as, all
other related documents have been provided stating that said streets and storm water drainage have been installed
in conformity with city standards; and,

Whereas, an inspection was made by the Director of the Division of Public Works, and has accepted said
streets and storm water drainage of Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part B; and,

Whereas, the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne has accepted the utilities of Dunmore Subdivision,
Phase Two, Part B; and,

Whereas, the developer has provided to the City a two-year construction warranty bond as required and
requests acceptance and dedication of the same for maintenance of said improvements as outlined in Article XVII,
entitled Subdivision Review of the City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE AS
FOLLOWS, that Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part B according to the plat presented by Rester & Coleman
Engineers as recorded in the Judge of Probate, Baldwin County, Alabama, and said street(s) being named
Tullamore Lane and Scully Lane are hereby accepted by the City of Daphne, Alabama as a city street for
maintenance.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE DAY OF , 2010.

THE CITY OF DAPHNE,
AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION

CATHY S. BARNETTE,
COUNCIL PRESIDENT

FRED SMALL,
MAYOR

ATTEST:

DAVID L. COHEN, CITY CLERK, MMC
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To:
From:

Subiject:

Date:

fice of e Cit lerk 7/ -
o che oy ”w{&\i MEMORANDUM

Adrienne D. Jones,—"
Director of Community De&felopmdnt
Acceptance of Streets
Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part B

November 19, 2010

At the Thursday, November 18, 2010 regular meeting of the
City of Daphne Planning Commission, eight members were
present and the motion carried unanimously to set forth a
favorable recommendation for the acceptance of the streets
and drainage in Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part B.

Upon receipt of said documentation, please place the
resolution on the Monday, December 6, 2010 agenda for
acceptance by the City Council.

Thank you,
ADJ/gd

Attachment (s)

1. Copy of resolution

2. Correspondence requesting acceptance

3. Petition of Acceptance of Road(s) and/or
Right(s) of Ways

4. Copy of two-year maintenance bond

cc: file

Mr. Richard Johnson, Public Works Director
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RESTER AND COLEMAN ENGINEERS, INC.
CONSULTING ENGINEERS - LAND SURVEYORS
66 MIDTOWN PARK WEST- (251)479-4518

MOBILE, AL 36606

October 18, 2010

City of Daphne

Director of Community of Development

P.O. Box 400

Daphne, AL 36526

Attn: Mrs. Adrienne Jones.

Re: Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part “B”

Dear Mrs. Jones:

Please accept this letter as our request for the City of Daphne to accept the streets and
right-of-ways with the above mentioned subdivision. These include Scully Lane (337 L.
- 50'R.0.W.) and Tullamore Drive (1327 L.f. - 50' R.O.W.).

Please notify us if you have any questions or require any further information.

Sincerely,

RESTER & COLEMAN ENGINEERS, INC.

e

D. }{éel Coleman

ic
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CITY OF DAPHNE
PETITION FOR ACCEPTANCE
OF ROAD(S) AND/OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY

SUBDIVISION NAME: Dunmore, Phase Two, Part "B"
North and East of Dunmore, Phase One
LOCATION: At the North terminus of Tullamore Drive

THIS ACCEPTANCE OF ROADS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY is made this _\®*" day of
AN T\ oldby Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity DL P | hereinafter called the Subdivider,

owner of certain property located in Baldwin County, Alabama known as _Dunmore, Phase Two, Part "B"
Subdivision to be recorded in the office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin County, Alabama; and,

WHEREAS, the Subdivider has agreed to the dedication of the roads and rights-of-way located in
said subdivision to the City of Daphne, and further warrants that said roads and rights-of-way are
complete and are in compliance with the minimum standards as outlined for construction in the City
of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance, Article XVII, entitled Subdivision Review, and
Article XI, Minimum Requirements and Required Improvements. The Subdivider further warrants
that the same are free from defects from any cause and are free and clear of any liens and

encumbrances; and,

WHEREAS, the Subdivider does hereby agree to provide a Maintenance Bond, as outlined in
Article XVII, entitled Subdivision Review, in an amount equal to ten (10) percent of the total street
and drainage improvements ($:\ 2 , N\AW OO ) in the subdivision for a period of two (2) years
after the date of their acceptance and dedication of the same to the City. Said bond shall be required
by the City as a condition to the acceptance and dedication of any new roads or rights-of-way within
the City; and,

WHEREAS, the Project Engineer acting on behalf of the Subdivider does hereby certify that all
roads and rights-of-ways are complete and are in compliance with the minimum standards as
outlined for construction in the City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance, Article XVII,
entitled, Subdivision Review, and Article XI, Minimum Requirements and Required Improvements.

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne, Alabama, acting by and through the recommendation of the City
of Daphne Planning Commission, has agreed to accept the responsibility for the maintenance of the
roads and rights-of-way of said subdivision subject to a two (2) year maintenance period as described

above; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has agreed to accept the property within the confines of the road
right-of-way which does not include drainage or utility easements or any other improvements

outside of these confines.
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CITY OF DAPHNE
PETITION FOR ACCEPTANCE
OF ROAD(S) AND/OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Subdivider does
hereby dedicate the roads and rights-of-way in said subdivision to the City of Daphne, a municipal
corporation, as per the recommendation of the City of Daphne Planning Commission at their regular
meeting of _YDeoveonimo ey L _20V0 | That said subdivision according the plat
recorded in the Judge of Probate, Baldwin County, Alabama and said streets being named
Tullamore Lane and Scully Lane
VBRI LAV | 2 0L SN

S0 X @ow

are hereby accepted for maintenance by the City of Daphne, Alabama as a city street.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Subdivider has caused the execution of this dedication as of the
date setforth above.

Respectfully submitted,

Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity D L P
Name of Indmdual or Corporatlon

Its: V-%D { S iMU& (N s A A ee £

STATE OF ALABAMA )
COUNTY OF BALDWIN )

y I, the undersigned Notary Public in and for said State and County, hereby certify that ____

¢ %ﬁ'% /ﬁ# T whose name as_Vice /)@f‘f«@"ﬁwA 7_of _Mrdgitsrone , an
Alabama corporation or as owner of _Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity D L P_is signed to the foregoing
instrument, and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of
the contents of the instrument, he as such officer or owner and with full authority, executed the same
voluntarily on the day same bears date.

Given under my hand and official seal on thlS the [__‘! diiy/ol /7/7 TDH L, WD
Y

@f} Vi } ,//}

NOTARY PUBLI(‘

i(/ly commission expires: /4 ’i/ O/ /1/57/9/

(NOTARY SEAL)
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CITY OF DAPHNE
PETITION FOR ACCEPTANCE
OF ROAD(S) AND/OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY

Recommendation:

Rlchard D, Iohnsen P E W
Public Works Directo

City of Daphne

ﬂ /Z/éfé{/ ﬂ nL /7& \7@jf/ 9\)

Adrienne D. Jones
Director of Community Deve opment
City of Daphne

Approval:

Hd Kirby
Planning Commission Chairman
City of Daphne
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Bond No.: SB024000086
Premium: $657.00/annual

MAINTENANCE BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That we Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity D,
L.P., as Principal, and Ullico Casualty Company, ~ a corporation organized, existing under the
laws of the State of Delaware and duly licensed to do business in the State of Alabama, as
Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the City of Daphne, Alabama, as Obligee in the penal
sum of Forty Three Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety Four and No/100
Dollars ($ 43,794.00 ) to which payment well and truly to be made we do
bind ourselves, our and each of our heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns
jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS, the said Principal entered into an obligation with the City of Daphne, Alabama
for :

Dunmore, Phase Two, Part "B"
Street and Drainage improvements

WHEREAS, said Obligee requires that the Principal furnish a bond conditioned to guarantee
for the period of Two years following the date of acceptance of the said improvements, by the
owner, against all defects in workmanship and materials which may become apparent during
said period, and

WHEREAS, the said project has been completed, and was approved on 18th day of
November, 2010

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that, If the
Principal shall indemnify the Obligee for all loss that the Obligee may sustain by reason of any
defective materials or workmanship which become apparent during the period of Two years
from and after completion of the work and acceplance by the Obligee then this obligation shall
be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

SIGNED, SEALED AND DATED: October 25, 2010

e, Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity D, L.P.
‘g“ ‘\‘}‘ORPON@ éf% a California limited partnersh%u
L S By: Gulf States GP, LLC,
£5F SEAL Y % a California limited liability company,
S L APRLIG 1992 § 2 Its: General partner
2 %a § By: Hearthstone, Inc., a California corporation,
% elpone § Its: Manager -7

S (Principal 7 7

KR SRR I, ,;/”/d:f%,i
By: N oy

TRALY T CAEA
VP-4 P éé;%&f/f

Ullico Casualty Company
(Surety)

By: Z%g&{é{;’% / % %;;///

Michael E. Cunﬁifff‘?\ttorné}’//m-f:act
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Document:  Maintenance Bond (no. SB024000086)
Dunmore (Hearthstone Multi-Asset Entity D, L.P.)

State of California )
' ) ss.

County of Marin )

On October 27, 2010, before me, Angie Wong, Notary Public, personally appeared TRACY T.
CARVER, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person whose name
is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his
authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument the person, or the entity upon

behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

3 ;A— ‘f
WITNESS my hand and official seal. D& Cﬁgﬁ%?a‘fg%ﬁé &
(I8 AZAZFNOTARY PUBLIC - CALIFORNIA O
S MARIN COUNTY 0
i COMM. EXPIRES MAY 17, 2013 7
. . L TN

> %ﬁ\f . (Seal)

R /,/ e
Slgnaﬁn‘e
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CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF CALIFORNIA }

County of Los Angeles

on ¥ A 2010 before me, R.Rangel, Notary Public ,

Date Here insert Name and Title of the Officer

personally appeared Michael E. Cundiff

Name(s) of Signer(s)

i

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to
be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the
within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they
executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies),
and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s)
acted, executed the instrument.

| certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of
the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true
and correct.

//f'

, N ) \
Witnhess my’ﬁfand arid g}flctal seal.

Signa’cure({,ﬂ,}:’%. k%ﬁf(f\ﬂi ji%

Place Notary Seal Above Stgratufe of Notary Public /
Y % ) )/ &&/f/f/

OPTIONAL

Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document
and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document. ‘

Description of Attached Document

Title or Type of Document:

Document Date: Number of Pages:

Signer(s) Other Than Named Above:

Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s)

Signer’s Name: Signer’s Name:

[0 Individual O Individual

[ Corporate Officer — Title(s): [ Corporate Officer — Title(s):

O Partner — [ Limited [] General [ Partner — [ Limited [] General

[] Attorney in Fact [] Attorney in Fact

[ Trustee [ Trustee

[1 Guardian or Conservator [] Guardian or Conservator Top of thumb here
(1 other: (] Other:

Signer Is Representing: Signer Is Representing:

R R R R A T A A AR R R R R R SRR R A B E N SR BRSOl CHEE

© 2007 National Notary Association » 9350 De Soto Ave,, P.O. Box 2402 ¢ Chatsworth, CA 91313-2402 » www.NationalNotary.org Item #5807 Reorder: Call Toll-Free 1-800-876-6827
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ULLICO Casualty Company
1625 Eye Street, N.W. Washington D.C. 20006
Power of Attorney

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That ULLICGO CASUALTY COMPANY (the Company), a corporation organized and existing under the laws
of the State of Delaware, does hereby constitute and appoint: Michael E. Cundiff and Michael G. Hall of Ullico Casualty Company.

Its true and lawful Attomey (s) in fact with full authority to execute on its behalf bonds, undertakings, recognizances and other contracts of indemnity and writings
obligatory in the nature thereof, issued in the course of its business and to bind the Company thereby, in an amount not to exceed $5,000,000.00.

This Power of Attorney is granted and is signed and sealed by facsimile under and by the authority of the following Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors
of ULLICO Casualty Company at a meeting duly called the 15th day of July, 2009.

RESOLVED: That the Board of Directors hereby authorizes the President or any Vice President of
the Company to: (1) Appoint Attorney(s) in Fact and authorize the Attorney(s) in
Fact to execute on behalf of the Company bonds and undertakings, contracts of
indemnity and other writings obligatory in the nature thereof and to attach the seal of
the Company thereto, and (2) to remove, at any time, any such Attorney-in-Fact and
revoke the authority given. And, be it

FURTHER
RESOLVED: That the signatures of such officers and the seal of the Company may be affixed to

any such Power of Attorney or certificate relating thereto by facsimile, and any such
Power of Attorney so executed and certified by facsimile signatures and facsimile
seal shall be valid and biding upon the Company in the future with the respect to any
bond or undertaking to which it is attached.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, ULLICO CASUALTY COMPANY has caused this instrument to be signed and its corporate seal to be affixed by its
authorized office this 16" day of July, 2009.

S e A

RRESIDEMNT

Daniel Aronowitz
President ULLICO Casualty Company, a Delaware Corporation.

On this 16th day of July 2009, before me came the individual who executed the preceding instrument, to me personally known, and being by me duly
sworn said that he is the therein described and authorized officer of the ULLICO CASUALTY COMPANY, that the seal affixed to said instrument is the
Corporate seal of said Company; that the said Corporate Seal and his signature were duly affixed.

LS WL

CATHERINE M. OBRIEN
NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF MARYLAND
MONTGOMERY COUNTY
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES JANUARY 21, 2012
CERTIFICATE

1, Teresa E. Valentine, Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of ULLICO Casualty Company, do herby certify that the foregoing resolution of the
Board of Directors and this Power of Attorney issued pursuant thereto on this 16th day of July 2009 are true and correct and are still in full force and effect. Ido
further certify that that Daniel Aronowitz, who executed the Power of Attorney as President, was on the date of execution of the attached Power of Attorney the

duly elected President of ULLICO Casualty Company,

In Testimony Whereof I have subscribed my name and affixed the facsimile seal of each Company this Qa//mday of ,{ 96?05% , 20 !’ % .

Teresa E. Valentine
Senior Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary
ULLICO Casualty Company
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RESOLUTION 2010-110

AlIG Baker Development Agreement:
Sixth Amendment and Supplement

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, as follows:
SECTION 1: FINDINGS

Having made due and proper investigation of the matters herein referred to, the City Council
has ascertained and does hereby find and declare the following facts are true and correct.

A. The City of Daphne (hereafter “City”) has heretofore entered into a Development
Agreement dated the 20" day of July, 2000 (the “Development Agreement”); the First
Amendment and Supplement thereto dated the December 21, 2000; the Second
Agreement and Supplement thereto dated January 31, 2003; the Third Amendment
and Supplement thereto dated July 18, 2005; the Fourth Amendment and
Supplement dated October 16, 2006; and the Fifth Amendment and Supplement
dated March 19, 2007 by and between AIG Baker Development, LLC, also doing
business as AIG Baker Daphne, LLC and AIG Baker Shopping Center Properties,
LLC (collectively referred to as the “Developer”).

B. The City and Developer have deemed it to be mutually beneficial to execute a Sixth
Amendment and Supplement to the Development Agreement for the purpose of
authorizing the installation of a temporary ice skating rink, by CimCo Refrigeration
LLC, in the Jubilee Square Parking Lot.

SECTION lI: AUTHORIZATION OF SIXTH AMENDMENT AND SUPPLEMENT TO
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver, for and on
behalf of the City, the Sixth Amendment and Supplement to the Development Agreement which
will be approved in form and content by the City Attorney for the temporary installation and
operation of an ice skating rink, by CimCo Refrigeration LLC, in the Parking Lot of Jubilee
Square.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, on this the day of , 2010.

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President

Fred Small, Mayor

ATTEST:

David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC
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Daphne Temporary Rink Page 1 of 1

Kim

From: mayorsmall [mayorsmall@bellsouth.net]
Sent: Thursday, December 02, 2010 10:54 AM
To: Kim Briley

Subject: FW: Daphne Temporary Rink

From: Jose Mergulhao [mailto:JMergulhao@toromont.com]
Sent: Monday, November 29, 2010 9:53 AM

To: mayorsmall@bellsouth.net

Cc: Patrick Ledbetter; Neil G. Simmons; Jose Mergulhao
Subject: Daphne Temporary Rink

Fred,

As requested here is a simple proforma | set up for the rink. Take a look at it and call me with any
questions or comments.

| think the Jubilee Center will be a great venue for the city and the residents of the area.

Let me know what else you need to get this going. Keep in mind that if it is a go we will need at least a
couple of weeks to get all the items organized to be installed.

If you need further information on Ice-World you can visit www.ice-world.com

Talk to you soon.

<<Mobile Rink ProForma Nov. 5, 2010.xlsx>>

Jose D. Mergulhao, P.Eng.
Vice President

U.S.A. Operations

CIMCO Refrigeration Inc.
Phone: (251) 471-2425

Fax: (251) 476-7337

This e-mail and any attachments may be confidential or legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying,
distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited. Please notify us imrnediately by email at
corpmail@toromont.com or by telephone (collect if necessary). Please delete this email and destroy any copies. Thank you for your cooperation.
Toromont Industries Ltd., 3131 Highway 7 West, Concord, ON, L4K 1B7 (416)667-5511.
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OUTDOOR SKATING - JUBILEE CENTER - DAPHNE, AL

Chiller Blectrical
Chiller Electrical disconneet
Sound & Lighting
Fencing

Zamboni

Tent

Security

Floor Grading
Insurance

Rental Skates
Portable floor
Adverlisement
FFood & Beverage
Event Clothing
Technical Oversite
Water

Miscellaneous

Riviera Utilities
Riviera Utilities
City of Daphne
City of Daphne
City of Mobile
Optional

City of Daphne
City of Daphne
City of Daphne
Lee-World
Tee-World

City of Daphne
Baumhower/Wings
Tee-World/Daphne/CIMCO
CIMCO

Daphne Utilities

$1,570.53

700 amps, About 350 RLA while running approx. 16 hrs/day
700 amps. New Sub panel from transformer (approx. $10k)

On loan to City of Daphne

Source by the City or another sponsor

Wood border with sand fill (Approx. 1 foot)

Jackels and Shirts

1 3/4" Hose Connection

Includes any Sponsorships

Total Expenses $31,411

Break even Point per Day $1,047.02

Sponsorships

Sponsor 1
Sponsor 2
Sponsor 3
Sponsor 4
Sponsor
Sponsor 6
Sponsor 7
Sponsor 8
Sponsor 9

$10,000.00
$5,000.00
$5,000.00
$2,500.00
$2,500.00
$2,500.00
$2.500.00

Total Sponsors $30,000
Total Available per Month $10,000
Other Revenues
Corporate Skale (2 hrs) 5600.00
Schoole Qutings (Per day) $1500 - $2000
Event Sponsors $500-1000

Other Revenues $600
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Admission
Adults Kids (6 and Under) | Skate Rental | Schools (or rebate) |
$10.00 $8.00 [ $3.00 | $5.00 |
Revenue Based on Mixed Attendance per Month
adults/kids ratio 1000 2000 3000 4000 5000
100/0 $12,700.00 $26,400.00 $38,100.00 $50,800.00 $63,600.00
80/20 $12,300.00 $24,600.00 $36,900.00 $49,200.00 $61,500.00
70/30 $12,100.00 $24,200.00 $36,300.00 $48,400.00 $60,500.00
60/40 $11,900.00 $23,800.00 $35,700.00 $47,600.00 $59,500.00
50/50 $11,700.00 $23,400.00 $35,100.00 $46,800.00 $58,600.00
Net Income based on Attendance matrix
80/20 $29,110.53 $6,810.53 $5,489.47 $17,789.47 $30,089.47
70130 $19,310.53 $7,210.53 $4,889.47 $16,989.47 $29,089.47
60/40 $19,510.53 $7.610.53 $4,289.47 $16,189.47 $28,089.47
650/50 $19,710.53 $8,010.53 $3,689.47 $15,389.47 $27,089.47
Expenses per Month Notes
livent Management $9,000.00
Staffing $15,840.00
Chiller Rental $13,000.00
Decorations $2,000.00




ORDINANCE 2010-68

U.S. 98 Median Safety Improvements

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget is being considered by the City Council;
and

WHEREAS, prior to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, the City Council
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved
and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget; and

WHEREAS, ALDOT has requested the City pay the engineering costs associated
with the medians in order to enhance and further the safety improvements to be
made at certain locations on US 98; and

WHEREAS, such Highway (Hwy) 98 improvements were chosen by ALDOT due to
the high number of traffic accidents in this area.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne,
Alabama, that contingent upon receiving a commitment letter from ALDOT to fund
100% of the remainder of the project: the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget is hereby
amended to include 1) an appropriation from the General Fund in the amount of
$48,500 for the Engineering, construction Observation, and Geotechnical testing
for US 98 Medians, 2) the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any and all
documents required in order for the City of Daphne to participate in the cost of
engineering of the US 98 Medians for such safety improvements, and 3) such
engineering services will be provided by Volkert & Associates according to the
scope of work attached hereto and made a part hereof.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Daphne, Alabama, this day of , 2010.

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President

Fred Small, Mayor

ATTEST:

David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC
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CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA
ORDINANCE NO. 2010-69

Ordinance to Amend the City of Daphne
Land Use and Development Ordinance’s
Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama at its
regular meeting held on September 23, 2010, considered certain proposed
amendments to Article XXXV titled “Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions”, of the City
of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance No. 2002-22, and any amendments
to the same; and,

WHEREAS, after consideration the Planning Commission sent a favorable
recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne for the approval of
amendment to the Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions contained within said Article
XXXV of the City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance to amend the Use
District for a Family Entertainment Center; and,

WHEREAS, after consideration of amendment to said Table of Permitted Uses
and Conditions contained in Article XXXV of said Ordinance the Planning Commission
sent an unfavorable recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne for
amendment to the Use District for Bowling Alley; and

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed amendments has been provided to the
public as required by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public
Library and City Hall, a public hearing was held before the City Council on December 6,
2010; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and
review and consideration of the recommendations, both favorable and unfavorable, of
the Planning Commission, deemed that said amendments to the City of Daphne Land
Use Ordinance, Article XXXV titled “Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions”, is proper
and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City of
Daphne, Alabama; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows:

SECTION I. AMENDMENT

The Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions contained in Article XXXV of the
City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance shall be amended
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( a) to permit “Family Entertainment Center’ as a defined Use allowed by
Planning Commission approval in Use District B-1, the below shall be and is hereby
added to the Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions contained in Article XXXV of the
City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance, Ordinance 2002-22 and its
amendments;

(b) to permit a “Bowling Alley” as a defined Use allowed upon Planning
Commission approval in Use District B-1 and by right in Use District B-2, the below
shall be and is hereby added to the Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions contained
in Article XXXV of the City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance,
Ordinance 2002-22 and its amendments;

ARTICLE XXXV USE DISTRICT

TABLE OF PERMITTED USES AND

CONDITIONS R1 |R2 | R3|R4|R5|B1]| B-2| B3| Cl
Bowling alley P R

Family Entertainment Center P

All other sections, uses, conditions and/or contents of the Table of Permitted Uses
and Conditions shall remain the same and shall be unchanged by this Ordinance; this
Ordinance is only to amend the “Family Entertainment Center” and “Bowling Alley”
designations.

SECTION IlI: REPEALER.

All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this
Ordinance, in so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed.

SECTION lil: SEVERABILITY.

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph,
sentence, or part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not
affect or impair the remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain
and enact each provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately
and independently of each other.

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its
approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and after publication as required by
law.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS day of , 2010.
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ATTEST:

THE CITY OF DAPHNE,

AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION

CATHY S. BARNETTE,
COUNCIL PRESIDENT

FRED SMALL,
MAYOR

DAVID L. COHEN,
CITY CLERK, MMC
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CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA
ORDINANCE NO. 2010-___

Ordinance to Amend the City of Daphne
Land Use and Development Ordinance’s
Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama at its
regular meeting held on September 23, 2010, considered certain proposed
amendments to Article XXXV titled “Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions”, of the City
of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance No. 2002-22, and any amendments
to the same; and,

WHEREAS, after consideration the Planning Commission sent a favorable
recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne for the approval of
amendment to the Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions contained within said Article
XXXV of the City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance to amend the Use
District for a Family Entertainment Center; and,

WHEREAS, after consideration of amendment to said Table of Permitted Uses
and Conditions contained in Article XXXV of said Ordinance the Planning Commission
sent an unfavorable recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne for
amendment to the Use District for Bowling Alley; and

WHEREAS, upon further consideration the Planning Commission of the City of
Daphne, Alabama at its regular meeting held on November 18, 2010, reconsidered the
amendment of the Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions contained in Article XXXV of
said Ordinance and voted to send a favorable recommendation to the City Council of
the City of Daphne for amendment to the Use District for Bowling Alley; and

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed amendments has been provided to the
public as required by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public
Library and City Hall, a public hearing was held before the City Council on

; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and
review and consideration of the recommendations of the Planning Commission, deemed
that said amendments to the City of Daphne Land Use Ordinance, Article XXXV titled
“Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions”, is proper and in the best interest of the
health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows:
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SECTION I. AMENDMENT

The Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions contained in Article XXXV of the
City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance shall be amended

( a) to permit “Family Entertainment Center’ as a defined Use allowed by
Planning Commission approval in Use District B-1, the below shall be and is hereby
added to the Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions contained in Article XXXV of the
City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance, Ordinance 2002-22 and its
amendments;

(b) to permit a “Bowling Alley” as a defined Use allowed upon Planning
Commission approval in Use District B-1 and by right in Use District B-2, the below
shall be and is hereby added to the Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions contained
in Article XXXV of the City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance,
Ordinance 2002-22 and its amendments;

ARTICLE XXXV USE DISTRICT

TABLE OF PERMITTED USES AND

CONDITIONS R1 |R2 | R3|(R4|R5|B1|B-2 | B-3]|Cll
Bowling alley P R

Family Entertainment Center P

All other sections, uses, conditions and/or contents of the Table of Permitted Uses
and Conditions shall remain the same and shall be unchanged by this Ordinance; this
Ordinance is only to amend the “Family Entertainment Center” and “Bowling Alley”
designations.

SECTION II: REPEALER.

All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this
Ordinance, in so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed.

SECTION Ill: SEVERABILITY.

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph,
sentence, or part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not
affect or impair the remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain
and enact each provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately
and independently of each other.

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its
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approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and after publication as required by
law.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS day of , 2010.

THE CITY OF DAPHNE,

AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION

AUGUST A. PALUMBO, COUNCIL PRESIDENT
Date and Time Signed:

FRED SMALL, MAYOR
Date and Time Signed:

ATTEST:

DAVID L. COHEN,
CITY CLERK, MMC
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CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA
ORDINANCE NO. 2010-70

Ordinance to Amend the City of Daphne
Land Use and Development Ordinance’s
Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama at its regular
meeting held on August 26, 2010, considered certain proposed amendments to Article XXXV
titled “Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions”, of the City of Daphne Land Use and
Development Ordinance No. 2002-22, and any amendments to the same; and,

WHEREAS, after such consideration the Planning Commission sent a favorable
recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne for the approval of said amendment
to the Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions contained within said Article XXXV of the City
of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed amendment has been provided to the public as
required by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City
Hall, a public hearing was held before the City Council on December 6, 2010; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon
recommendation of the Planning Commission, deemed that said amendment to the City of
Daphne Land Use Ordinance, Article XXXV titled “Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions”, is
proper and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City of
Daphne, Alabama; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows:

SECTION I. AMENDMENT

The Table of Permitted Uses and Conditions contained in Article XXXV of the City of
Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance shall be amended to permit “Convenience
Store” as a defined Use allowed by right in Use District B-2 and by Planning Commission
approval in Use District B-1, the below shall be and is hereby added to the Table of Permitted
Uses and Conditions contained in Article XXXV of the City of Daphne Land Use and
Development Ordinance, Ordinance 2002-22 and its amendments:

ARTICLE XXXV USE DISTRICT

TABLE OF PERMITTED USES AND
CONDITIONS R-1 R2 | R3 (R4 | R5|B1 )| B2 | B3| CA1

Convenience Store P R
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ORDINANCE 2010-70 AMEND LAND USE ORD/TABLE OF USES PAGE 2

All other sections, uses, conditions and/or contents of the Table of Permitted Uses and
Conditions shall remain the same and shall be unchanged by this Ordinance; this Ordinance is
only to amend the “Convenience Store” designation.

SECTION II: REPEALER.

All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance,
in so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed.

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY.

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph,
sentence, or part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or
impair the remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each
provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately and independently of each
other.

SECTION 1V: EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the
City Council of the City of Daphne and after publication as required by law.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS day of , 2010.

THE CITY OF DAPHNE,

AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION

AUGUST A. PALUMBO, COUNCIL PRESIDENT

FRED SMALL, MAYOR

ATTEST:

DAVID L. COHEN,
CITY CLERK, MMC
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ORDINANCE 2010-71
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2011 BUDGET

WHEREAS, the Mayor of the City of Daphne has submitted to the City Council a budget
for Fiscal Year 2011 which begins October 1, 2010 and ends September 30, 2011; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed and considered such proposed budget and
submitted certain revisions to such proposed budget; and

WHEREAS, the City Council believes that the amended proposed budget is a viable
spending plan for the City during the next fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, the City’s procedures require the adoption of the budget by Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, if the amounts budgeted for departmental operating items or purposes are
not required to be utilized for such items or purposes, then these amounts may be
expended for other departmental items or purposes, provided that the total amount of the
adopted budget is not exceeded.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Daphne, Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2011 budget Option as attached hereto and
made a part hereof for Fiscal Year 2011 beginning October 1, 2010 and ending
September 30, 2011 is hereby approved.

FURTHERMORE, as of the date of this adoption, a hiring freeze is hereby enacted.
Authorized positions vacated, for any reason, may only be advertised and filled upon
express approval by the City Council.

Approved and adopted on this the day of , 2010.

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President

Fred Small, Mayor

ATTEST:

David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC
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FY 2011
Balanced Budget Proposal #1
General Fund

Projected Exp>Rev (806,147)
Fund Balance- Paving 500,000
Release Encumbered $ to Fund Balance
FY 99: Speed Tables 5,000
FY 03: Bay Front Bldg Imprvmnts 32,000
FY 04: Decorative Street Lighting 58,800
Bay Front Bldg Imprvmnts 10,365
FY 06: Bay Front Water Main/Swr 25,380

131,545
Revenue Adjustments:
Riviera PILOT (150,000) Actual FY10 revenues 1,610,000; so proposed budget is 190,000 over FY10 actual
not reduced the full 190,000 b/c of Publix impact on the shopping area.

Property Taxes 83,000
Business Licenses 70,000
Investment Earnings 130,000
133,000
Expenditures:
Finance- Investment Mgt Fee (12,000)
Ruff Wilson Youth Org (27,205) Note: Add to exp to match the cigarette tax paid to the organization
Reduce Council Training to 2,500 17,500
Reduce City Attorney 25,000
Property/Liability Insurance 15,000
18,295
Transfers:
Apply Interest from Debt Sve Fund
to Reduce Transfers to Debt Svc 24,000
24,000
Revenues> Expenditures 693

Note: Changing the Medical Insurance to Self-Insured will not result in a "savings” this fiscal year.
The "savings" will be next FY if the amount paid into the plan this FY is more than the total claims
paid out.
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FY 2011

Balanced Budget Proposal #2

General Fund

Projected Exp>Rev

fund Balance- Paving

Release Encumbered $ to Fund Balance

FY 99: Speed Tables

FY 03: Bay Front Bldg Imprvmints

FY 04: Decorative Street Lighting
Bay Front Bldg Imprvmnts

FY 06: Bay Front Water Main/Swr
Library Roof Repair

FY 07: Main St Conceptual Streetsca

FY 08: Abatement & Demolition

Revenue Adjustments:
Riviera PILOT

Property Taxes
Business Licenses
Investment Earnings

Expenditures:

Finance- Investment Mgt Fee
Ruff Wilson Youth Org
Reduce Ceouncil Training to 2,500

(806,147)

500,000

5,000
32,000
58,800
10,365
25,380
13,070
4,000
9,729
158,344

(150,000) Actual FY10 revenues 1,610,000; so proposed budget is 190,000 over FY10 actual
not reduced the fult 190,000 b/c of Publix impact on the shopping area.
83,000
35,000

130,000

98,000

{12,000)
{27,205) Note: Add to exp to match the cigarette tax paid to the organization
17,500

Reduce Overtime 18,264
Reduce City Attorney 15,000
Property/Liability Insurance 15,000
26,559
Transfers:
Apply Interest from Debt Svc Fund
to Reduce Transfers to Debt Svc 24,000
24,000
Revenues> Expenditures - 756

Note: Changing the Medical Insurance to Self-Insured will not result in a "savings" this fiscal year.
The "savings" will be next FY if the amount paid into the plan this FY is more than the total claims

paid out.
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FY 2011
Balanced Budget Proposal # 3
General Fund

Projected Exp>Rev (806,147)
Fund Balance- Paving 500,000
Allowance for Vacant Positions 300,000

Release Encumbered $ to Fund Balance

FY 99: Speed Tables 5,000
FY 03: Bay Front Bldg Imprvmnts 32,000
FY 04: Decorative Street Lighting 58,800
Bay Front Bldg Imprvmnts 10,365
FY 05: Civic Center Elec Signage 14,755 (remaining encumb for future consideration 30,000)
FY 06: Bay Front Water Main/Swr 25,380
Library Roof Repair 13,070
FY 07: Main St Conceptual Streetscape 4,000 (Original appropriation 10,000)
FY 08: Abatement & Demolition 9,729
173,099
Revenue Adjustments:
Riviera PILOT (150,000) Actual FY10 revenues 1,610,000; so proposed budget is 190,000 over FY10 actual
not reduced the full 190,000 b/c of Publix impact on the shopping area.
Property Taxes 83,000
Business Licenses 50,000
Investment Earnings 220,000 Takes into account an additional 2,000,000 investment in Jan 2011
203,000
Expenditures:
Finance- Investment Mgt Fee (22,000)
Ruff Wilson Youth Org (27,205) Note: Add to exp to match the cigarette tax paid to the organization
Reduce Council Training to 2,500 17,500
Reduce Overtime 18,264
Reduce City Attorney 15,000
Property/Liability Insurance 15,000
Chamber of Commerce (6,000)
SARPC (12,944)
Community Contributions (10,5586)
4th of July Fireworks (12,000)
(24,941)
Transfers:
Apply Interest from Debt Svc Fund
to Reduce Transfers to Debt Svc 24,000
24,000

Revenues> Expenditures 369,011

Note: Changing the Medical Insurance to Self-Insured will not result in a "savings" this fiscal year.
The "savings" will be next FY if the amount paid into the plan this FY is more than the total claims
paid out.

Positions required to remain due to grant funding: 1) the Police Dept COPS award states " your agency
is expected to make a good faith effort to retain the positions funded by the grant funds at the conclusion
of the grant." Furthermore, a requirement of the grant is that the number of positions must be above the
May 1, 1995 funding level. 2) Still awaiting official word and documentation for the fire SAFER grant.
However, the funded and accepted grant application states "the City Council committed to the matching
funds for these positions and sustaining the positions from the end of the grant period forward."

2011 Cost: 224,896, 2012 Cost 323,743; 2013 Cost 462,968.
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